Phoenix Journal # 205



By Gyeorgos Ceres Hatonn

Table of Contents

CHAPTER 1	1
THE VIRUS CON—A LETHAL GAME!	1
PART II: WHAT IS A "BALANCED" DIET?	1
LET TRUTH BE YOUR AUTHORITY,	
DO NOT LET AUTHORITY BE YOUR TRUTH	1
WHY DOES GOD NOT ALWAYS ANSWER	
PRAYERS FOR HEALING?	2
WHO ARE THE HEALTH EXPERTS?	
WHAT IS A VIRUS?	3
WHAT IS A GENE?	
WHAT IS NUCLEIC ACID?	6
WHAT IS THE "SOMETHING ELSE"?	
FREQUENCY AND THE WAVE	
WAVELENGTH AND SPECIFIC FREQUENCIES	
SOME INTERESTING FREQUENCIES	
EINSTEINIAN PHYSICS	
HOW DO VIRUSES REALLY WORK?	
HOW CAN VIRAL DISEASES BE CURED?	-
HOW DO YOU CREATE A VIRUS?	
THE HOLOGRAPHIC UNIVERSE	
A LOOK AT SOME OTHER DEVICES	
CYMATICS	
CHAPTER 2	
THE NEWS DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 5/13/97	
BORNEO MINE WORTHLESSINVESTIGATIONS LAUNCHED	. 20
INTO COLOSSAL HOAX	. 23
UNDERMINING CHRISTIAN ANGER	
EXPERTS OF HATE INSTILL FEAR IN JUDGES	
THE MONETARY SYSTEM CANNOT BE SAVED	
EXXON ATTACKS ELECTRIC VEHICLES IN BROCHURE FOR KIDS	
JEWISH PERSECUTION	
YELLOW PERIL	
BRITAIN HAS ANSWER TO HILLARY CLINTON	
CLINTON PLAN WOULD ALLOW TOLLS ON	
INTERSTATE HIGHWAYS	. 30
THE SECRET OATH OF THE 32nd DEGREE MASONS	
HOW STATISTICS LIE	
BLOOD SUCKERS	-
THEY ALL HAD A GOOD TIME, TOO	
MORALS AND ETHICS CONSIDERED EXPENDABLE	
FORGIVING WORDS	

CHAPTER 3	
SIGMUND FREUD: ANTICHRIST DEVIL by Eustace Mullins 5/10/97	
WHAT HAPPENED TO FRANCES FARMER	
SHOULDN'T HAVE HAPPENED AT ALL!	
PSYCHIATRISTS' TESTIMONY SAID WORTHLESS IN COURT	
by Gene Blake	
CHAPTER 4	
AUTHOR DAVID ICKE IN TEHACHAPI A SERIESPART II	
4/13/97 HATONN & DAVID ICKE	
CHAPTER 5	59
MORE "INCONVENIENT" DATA ABOUT	
OKLAHOMA BOMBING FABRICATION by Norio Hayakawa 4/30/97	59
UPDATE FAX TO THE ABOVE	
CHAPTER 6	61
SOLTEC: FURTHER SIGNS OF PACIFIC PLATE TENSIONS	61
5/7/97 SOLTEC	
CHAPTER 7	
THE NEWS DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 5/17/97	
VOLUNTEERISM CLOAKED IN FASCISM	
MARK OF THE DEVIL DISCOVERED	
A SYMBOL OF FREEMASONRY	
A SYMBOL OF OCCULTISM	
NO HAPPY LANDING FOR BUSH, CONFRONTED	
IN ITALY ON LaROUCHE FRAME-UP	
COMPUTER IN EVERY HOME—MANDATORY!!	
FROM THE PUBLISHER'S LOG (A LETTER)	
ANOTHER LETTER	
MOTEL 1600	
ANTI-NUKE BUNCH	
WHAT IS FREEDOM?	
HUGE OZONE HOLE OVER RUSSIA REPORTED	
NOBEL WINNER JAILED	
THE MULTILATERAL INVESTMENT AGREEMENT	
AND THE MULTILATERAL AGREEMENT ON INVESTMENT	
(TWO SEPARATE AGREEMENTS)	
FDR JOINS NATION'S HONORED ELITE	
THE WRONG KEYBOARD	
ONLY HUMAN	
CHAPTER 8	
AUTHOR DAVID ICKE IN TEHACHAPI A SERIES PART III	
4/13/97 HATONN & DAVID ICKE	
CHAPTER 9.	
THE NEWS DESK, SPECIAL by Dr. Al Overholt 5/17/96	
QUESTION & ANSWER:	
AN EXCHANGE WITH LaROUCHE CONCERNING CHINA	

THANKING SCHILLER INSTITUTE	
CHINA'S ENEMY	
THE PRIVY COUNCIL	
CHAPTER 10	
THE SOVEREIGN CITIZENS (AUTHORITY) VSTHE FEDERAL	
GOVERNMENT by V.K. Durham And Ray Bilger 4/14/97	
CHAPTER 11	
AN ODE TO GRANDMA	
CHAPTER 12	100
HILARION: UNDERSTANDING YOUR	
BIO-ELECTRIC SENSING MACHINE	100
5/17/97 MASTER HILARION	100
CHAPTER 13	104
TUTORIAL ON VOLCANOS AND RELATED GEOPHYSICS	104
10/24/90 #1 SOLTEC/HATONN	105
VULCANISM	105
INTRUSIVE VULCANISM	106
BATHOLITHS AND STOCKS:	
LACCOLITHS:	107
SILLS:	107
DIKES:	107
PEGMATITES:	
EXTRUSIVE VULCANISM	108
VOLCANOS:	
VARIATIONS IN ERUPTION	108
CALDERAS	109
LOSS OF LIFE	109
CLASSIFICATION BY CONE SHAPE	
FISSURE FLOWS	110
SO WHAT, SOLTEC?	
5/29/93 SOLTEC	
PHYSICS ON A PLANETARY SCALE	114
LONG VALLEY CALDERA	115
DEADLY RADIOACTIVE GASES	116

CHAPTER 1

THE VIRUS CON—A LETHAL GAME! by Calvin Burgin 4/17/97

PART II: WHAT IS A "BALANCED" DIET?

Editor's note: Part I of this article was presented on p. 2 of last week's CONTACT. Part II, to the end of this article, is presented here.

The "authorities" in nutrition, and the government, say that we should eat a "balanced" diet. By that they mean we should eat a food from each of four food groups, every day. The diet "expert" at Harvard even recommends a fifth food group, "recreational" food, such as pizza, hotdogs, tacos, ice cream, etc.

We have to be careful about relying on "authorities" and "experts". Sometimes we must use our own common sense.

LET TRUTH BE YOUR AUTHORITY, DO NOT LET AUTHORITY BE YOUR TRUTH

I have questions for the "experts". Why should we eat a food from each of the food groups every day? Should a cow eat a food from each of the food groups every day, or should it eat the food it was biologically adapted to eat? Should a wolf eat a food from each food group every day, or should it eat the food to which it is biologically adapted? Should a bird eat a food from each food group every day, or should it eat the food to which it is biologically adapted? Should a fish eat a food from each food group every day, or should it eat the food to which it is biologically adapted? Should a fish eat a food from each food group every day, or should it eat the food to which it is biologically adapted? Are humans' digestive systems different? How are they different? Should we eat a food from each food group every day, or should we instead eat the food to which we are biologically adapted? I think the answer is rather obvious. The real reason the government, the American Dietetic Association, the American Diary Association, the American Meat Council, etc., recommend eating from each food group is to keep the people selling these "foods" happy—it is an economic reason, not a health reason.

I don't want to go into exactly what you should eat. We are less-than-perfect beings and live in a lessthan-perfect world (civilization). It is easy enough to figure out that the best foods for us, the foods to which we are biologically adapted, are fresh, raw fruits and vegetables. However, such foods are simply not available to most of the world most of the time, and when available have been denatured by human greed practices. So we have to make compromises, compromises which compromise our health. Humans were not designed to eat meat (where are the claws, the fangs, the 1,000 times more acidic digestive system, etc.), but we live in a meat-eating culture. It could also be said that humans were not designed to fly (where are our wings), yet we manage pretty well. Life is a struggle between choices, a struggle for balance, a search for what is balance.

If everybody ate natural, raw foods, think of all the food processors, can makers, canneries, advertisers, etc., who would go out of business. And that does not count all the parasites who live off of sick people—

hospitals, doctors, nurses, drug companies, etc., all of whom would go out of business.

I would also like to point out that Kraft, General Foods, and several of the other major food companies are owned by R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Co., the cigarette giant. You can bet the bosses in these companies are not concerned with your health, they are concerned only with profits, so they go to great lengths to create addictions and to finance studies to brainwash people into purchasing their products. Most of their food products are not much better than the poison cigarettes they push.

WHY DOES GOD NOT ALWAYS ANSWER PRAYERS FOR HEALING?

I now think I understand why God does not always heal people who pray for healing. Suppose a man were to beat his head against a wall, and while doing so he would pray to God: "God, I have a terrible headache, please heal me!" Bang, bang, he continues to beat his head against the wall. Do you think God would answer that prayer? What if someone eats garbage and gets sick, then prays for God to heal him, without changing any of his bad health habits and bad diet. Will God heal him? Yes, sometimes, in His mercy, He will. More often though, the plain facts are He will not. What good would it do to heal the person if he continues to bang his head against the wall or otherwise continues in his bad habits? He would just get sick again, and probably accuse God. If God always healed people who prayed for healing, then we would live in an unrealistic chaos in which we would be free to live on pizza and ice cream or eat anything we wanted. God would have to suspend His Own health laws.

WHO ARE THE HEALTH EXPERTS?

Jerome Irving Rodale was the founder of *Prevention* magazine, and he died of a heart attack at age 72 on a TV talk show. One would think he should have lived longer.

Adelle Davis (Mrs. Frank Sieglinger) died at age 70, I do not know from what cause, but again that is a rather average age for someone who was supposed to be at the forefront of good nutrition and long life.

Nathan Pritikin at one time had one of the most popular diets in this country. His diet was a high-starch diet, allowed no more than 1/4 pound of meat per day, and allowed no avocados or nuts. He developed cancer and became so depressed that he committed suicide at age 72.

On the other hand, the champions of the raw food diet do indeed generally live longer. Norbert Walker, who invented the Norwalk Juicer (which is the best juicer there is, but it usually costs about \$1,200) wrote books in the 1930s and 1940s promoting a raw fruit and vegetable diet (with lots of juices, of course). He died at age 109. A few days before he died he was seen out working in his garden.

Paul Bragg called himself a "life extension specialist." He was a strong advocate of fasting and good foods. He was physical fitness advisor to people like Douglas Fairbanks, Tom Mix, Gloria Swanson, Rudolph Valentino, Ethel Barrymore, Lon Chaney and many more famous people. He died in his 90s, I believe in his late 90s, but I don't remember exactly. When he was 85 years old he wrote about hiring 10 college athletes to hike with him from Furnace Creek Ranch to Stovepipe Wells, a distance of 30 miles, in Death Valley, California. They started at 8 in the morning in July when the temperature was 105 degrees. At 12 noon the temperature was 130 degrees. The college boys drank quarts of cool water and took salt tablets. For lunch they ate ham and cheese sandwiches and drank cola drinks. Soon three of them got sick and threw up everything and collapsed and had to be driven back. Later 5 more got sick with cramps and had to be driven back, then at 4 PM the last two collapsed and had to be driven back. Bragg finished the 30 mile hike in 10 1/2 hours, camped out overnight and then walked back the next day. He drank only warm water and fasted the whole time. When he got back the doctors examined him and he was in perfect health. This great-grandfather was in much better shape than the college athletes.

Dr. Herbert Shelton died at age 90, just after he lost a lawsuit that bankrupted him, which may have contributed to his death. He taught all his life that you should never use medicines, yet they accused him of practicing medicine without a license. He was the leading promoter of Natural Hygiene in this country. Can you imagine what would happen if most people followed his teachings and became well? The AVER-AGE doctor's income is over \$300,000 per year. Almost all doctors would have to get jobs waiting tables and driving taxis. The multi-billion-dollar research industry would go under. The multi-billion dollar drug industry would disappear. Hospitals by the thousands would fold. Most of the millions of nurses and other health leeches would be out of a job (the dictionary says leech is another name for a physician—look it up). Most insurance companies would go under. The whole world economy would collapse. The people would become healthy and vibrant, and would probably not tolerate a lot of things that are presently being forced on them. The powers that be (the "experts" and "authorities") will do anything and say any kind of a lie to prevent that from happening.

Of course, many of the medical doctors, etc., are sincere, they are just deluded and brainwashed. If you can learn the truth, the truth (properly acted upon) can make you free of bad health and their brainwashing.

I enjoyed learning about a doctor in the late 1800s who was curing hundreds of people with a secret pill. Here was a pill that actually worked! Other doctors were very envious of his success, and sick people by the score flocked to him and were cured. People would come to him with all kinds of problems, and he would prescribe these tiny pills, one to be taken with water every 4 hours, and it was very important not to eat anything because food would make the pill stop working. He kept the secret of his miracle-working pill until he retired. What was the secret drug in his miracle pill? Bread. He found that if he tried to tell people to go on a fast, they would not listen to him. So he tricked them into fasting, "miracle" healings occurred, and business boomed.

WHAT IS A VIRUS?

Now let's take a look at one of the main factors of modern health and disease—the virus. What is a virus? "Viruses are complex organic substances that have some living and some nonliving characteristics.... They are made of nucleic acids and proteins. Nucleic acid is the center or core of a virus. A coat of protein surrounds the core. Viruses can grow and reproduce only inside living cells. Yet, crystals of viruses taken from cells can be stored in bottles for many years. These crystals do not grow and produce more viruses until they are inside living cells again. Inside a cell, a virus may take control and change the normal activities of the cell. In effect, the virus becomes the 'master' and the cell becomes a 'slave'" (p. 236, *Focus on Life Science*, by Charles H. Heimler, Charles E. Merrill Publishing; a standard school textbook).

In plain, simple language, perhaps too simple for the "educated", viruses are crystals of nucleic acid in a

protein coat. The definition of virus in the glossary of *Essentials of Microbiology*, Jaime S. Colomé & Raúl J. Cano, is: "Virus—Protein-covered nucleic acids that infect all types of cells." Wait a minute, I want to know what a virus IS, not what a virus DOES. A virus IS NUCLEIC ACID. Period. Viruses have no reproductive system, yet all they do is reproduce. A virus is a crystalline chemical, as is table salt. Is table salt alive? Are viruses alive? How can that be?

Viruses (Arnold J. Levine, Scientific American Library, p. 2) says that viruses are like pieces of computer tape that contain part of a computer program, and says "...all viruses can duplicate themselves only inside cells, because they require significant contributions from their hosts."

On page 8, it says the first virus discovered was a crystal from tobacco. "In truth, the ability to form a crystal simply reflects the structural uniformity or symmetry of all the viruses in a population....." Then the book continues, "Almost all viruses are composed of two parts: a nucleic-acid core containing the genetic information and, surrounding and protecting this core, a coat built from repeating protein subunits....A virus's genetic information may be encoded in deoxyribonucleic acid (DNA), as it is for all non-viral living organisms, or in some viruses it may be encoded in ribonucleic acid (RNA)....All plant viruses are RNA viruses....In the simplest cases, the DNA or RNA of a virus is surrounded by proteins." It points out that the simplest viruses consist only of genetic codes (DNA or RNA) enclosed in a protein coat.

Viruses are marvelous little beasties. They have no reproductive systems, yet all they do is reproduce. They have no metabolic systems (they don't eat anything). They are not alive at all, yet they are described as "virulent", "infectious", "deadly", they "inject themselves" into cells, doctors talk about "live-virus vaccine" and "killed-virus vaccine", yet, when forced to, they admit that viruses have no life.

Science News, Vol. 140, Dec. 14, 1991, said (under the heading, "Instant virus: Just add RNA"): "Viruses are such primitive things that many scientists don't consider them alive. They cannot reproduce on their own." *Funk & Wagnalls* article on virus says "Like living organisms, the virus has the power of self-duplication, but reproduction occurs only within susceptible living cells." Same as saying, "I can do it all by myself as long as you help me." The article also says "As early as 1935 biochemical research established that in the extracellular state the virus is metabolically inert, behaving like a chemical rather than a living organism....it may be preserved outside the cell indefinitely...."

Look up "life" in the dictionary. My dictionary says "the condition that distinguishes animals and plants from inorganic objects and dead organisms, being manifested by growth through metabolism, reproduction, and the power of adaptation to environment through changes originating internally."

According to the normal definitions of life taught in most schools, life is the metabolic processes of a living thing. Viruses are "metabolically inert". VIRUSES ARE NOT ALIVE. Mean little demons, to be so dead, aren't they? What are viruses? They are genetic material, enclosed in a protein coat. Outside the cell, they dry out and become crystals. *Encyclopedia Britannica*, under "Viruses", says: "Viruses are self-reproducing agents, smaller than the microscopically visible bacteria, that multiply only within living susceptible cells and are responsible for a wide range of infectious diseases." Think about these dead crystals, with no reproductive systems, that are "self-reproducing", yet they reproduce "only within living ing...cells..."

Later in the article it says, "All the viruses contain their essential genetic material in the form of nucleoprotein, which is a combination of nucleic acid and protein." And it says a curious thing: "The essential features are the disappearance of virus as such as soon as infection is initiated..."

Infection is when this dead crystal organized into a genetic code injects itself into a living cell. And then it disappears! A little study reveals that it disappears because it is exactly like the cells own genetic material and **it is impossible to tell the difference.**

This same *Britannica* article also says: "There are now many instances where an apparently normal plant or bacterium can be shown to carry a virus indefinitely. The multiplication of the virus keeps pace with the multiplication of host cells in so precise a fashion that some form of mutual coordination must be postulated [how does a cell 'mutually coordinate' with something dead?].

"It can be argued that this must mean that a virus is essentially made of host material, though capable of being set free; or alternatively that a free parasitic organism can become so integrated with its host that it becomes incorporated into its structure."

Hmmm, this dead thing is made from its living host cell, and when it magically injects itself into the cell, it disappears by becoming part of the cell? Does something sound fishy to you?

Sure enough, farther down in the article, it says: "Viruses, when they enter a cell, lose all identity except that of the chemical substance, nucleic acid....it has proved possible to infect cells by means of nucleic acid alone.... the natural history of a virus is determined by the fundamental requirement that multiplication can take place only within the living cells of a susceptible host."

The Austin American Statesman, Friday, 13 December 1991: "**Polio virus is made in test tube**", by Gina Kolata, *New York Times Service*. NEW YORK—Scientists have synthesized polio virus in the test tube, the first time that an entire virus has been created outside of living cells....The feat, accomplished by biologists at the State University of New York at Stony Brook and published today in *Science* magazine, also underscores the fuzzy border between living things and chemicals....They gently extracted a soup of the proteins from human cells, then dropped into it strands of the genetic material of the polio virus. After five or more hours, complete, assembled polio viruses appeared in the mixture" (p. A11). The article states the virus was *created "outside* of living *cells*" by dropping *already created* polio virus *into* a "soup of the proteins from human *cells*". Hey, this rock is a dollar bill, trust me. It doesn't make sense to me, but then, not much of what they say makes sense to me.

"I think it's fantastically important,' said Dr. Donald Summers, a molecular virologist at the University of Utah. 'This is an amazing finding. It's a real first for molecular biology.' Dr. Vincent Racaniello of Columbia University's College of Physicians and Surgeons said, 'It's a seminal discovery, no doubt about it."

"Amazing". "Fantastic". Indeed. A fantasy is right.

Look at that again, this was the first time that viruses were created outside of cells, right? How was this done? It was done by making a "soup...from human cells." How did the viruses get into this cell/no-cell

soup? By dropping "into it strands of the genetic material of polio virus". What are viruses? They are genetic material. The article makes it plain: "In the Stony Brook experiment, only human cell components and the virus' genetic material were used." Oh, I see, you create a virus by using a virus to start with, and you do it outside of cells by doing it inside of cells. Can you see that these stories are NUTS?

WHAT IS A GENE?

"The nucleus is the control center of the cell. It controls both the chemical reactions that occur in the cell and reproduction of the cell. Briefly, the nucleus contains large quantities of *deoxyribonucleic acid*, which we have called *genes* for many years. The genes determine the characteristics of the protein enzymes of the cytoplasm, and in this way control cytoplasmic activities. To control reproduction, the genes first reproduce themselves, and after this is accomplished the cell splits by a special process called *mitosis* to form two daughter cells, each of which receives one of the two sets of genes" (from pages 15, 16 of *Basic Human Physiology: Normal Function and Mechanisms of Disease* by Arthur C. Guyton, M.D., W. B. Saunders Company, 1977).

Let's boil down the bare bones answer from what was just said—genes are nucleic acid. Period. Got that? If you look under "genes" in the index, it says "see DNA". DO NOT MISS THIS POINT—GENES ARE NUCLEIC ACID. AND VIRUSES ARE NUCLEIC ACID.

WHAT IS NUCLEIC ACID?

Nucleic acids are molecules of acids arranged around the *nucleus* of the cell, that's why they are called *nucleic* acids. One type of acid is called deoxy-ribo-nucleic acid, abbreviated DNA. The other is called ribo-nucleic acid, or RNA. These acids (when dried they become crystals) consist of small parts called nucleotides. The nucleotides are adenine (A), cytosine (C), guanine (G), uracil (U), and thymine (T). The A, C, G, and T nucleotides are what make up the "steps" or "cross-bars" of the DNA double-helix "ladder" of genes. In DNA, the strands ("steps") connect in binary pairs, A to T and G to C.

The T is replaced by U in RNA. In RNA molecules, G - C and A - U are the paired "steps" on the gene ladder.

The genes of animals and humans are DNA molecules, although the cell also uses RNA to promote chemical reactions and transport of materials. DNA is found in the nucleus of the cell, RNA is found in the cytoplasm surrounding the nucleus.

If you are awake and thinking and following me so far, you will have noticed that viruses are pieces of RNA and DNA. And the genetic code, the genes, of living things are pieces of RNA and DNA.

So, how do you tell the difference between a virus and a gene?

Ah, Ha! You can't. THEY ARE THE SAME THING, called two different names by the witch doctors.

Think maybe there is something fishy going on here?

It probably has not sunk in yet, so let's look some more.

"If proteins are the principal stuff of life, the nucleic acids are its blueprints—the molecules on which the Secret of Life, if we may speak of such a thing, is written....There are two kinds of nucleic acid: DNA, short for deoxyribonucleic acid, and RNA, ribonucleic acid. DNA is always found in the nucleus of the cell, RNA mainly in the cytoplasm outside the nucleus" ("Recombinant DNA", *Scientific American*, 1957, p. 1). On page 8, it says "...when a bacterial virus infects a bacterium, it is the virus's DNA (not its protein) that enters the bacterial cell, and much of this DNA turns up in the progeny virus produced in the cell. Taking all the evidence together, it is difficult to resist the conclusion that DNA is genetic material. If that is the case, our problem is to learn how DNA reproduces itself." Note that it says DNA is genetic material.

"Viruses consist of a single type of nucleic acid (DNA or RNA) within a protein coat called a capsid. The nucleic acid and the capsid are referred to as the nucleocapsid. The nucleic acids contain the information for making the proteins found in the viral coat as well as many of the enzymes required to invade the host and to replicate the virus's nucleic acid. Some viruses are covered by a membrane, often called the envelope. The term virion is used to describe the complete viral particle, including the nucleocapsid and any envelope it may have. None of the viruses is able to replicate in the absence of host cells. Thus, all the viruses are obligate parasites of cellular organisms" (p. 254, *Essentials of Microbiology* by Raúl J. Cano and Jaime S. Colomé).

Don't let the big words throw you, a virus is a molecule of DNA or RNA. Period. Sometimes its coat changes, but that is beside our point. A gene is a molecule of DNA or RNA. Period. There is no (apparent) difference between a gene and a virus, except if it is a "bad" gene we call it a virus.

A virus is a crystal of acid. Is it any wonder that it "cannot live outside the cell"? A virus is DEAD. It always was, it always is, and forevermore, it is DEAD, by all the rules in the book. A virus by itself is NEVER ALIVE. How can an acid be alive? How can a crystal be alive? (Don't jump to conclusions yet, there is more the this story!) If it is alive, can't you see that there MUST BE something more going on here? Can it be that the rules of the book are WRONG?

By all the normal rules of what is life, a virus *is not* and *cannot be* alive. It has no metabolism. It has no digestive system. It has no reproductive system. It has no system of mobility, it has no intelligence. It is plainly and simply a crystal of acid. "Viruses are such primitive things that many scientists don't consider them alive" (*Science News*, Vol. 140, December 14, 1991, article "Instant virus: Just add RNA"). Keep that thought in mind as we continue to look at this subject.

"There are certain entities, in fact, such as the viruses, about which biologists have had recurrent doubts as to whether they should be admitted into the category of truly 'living' organisms" (*The Explosion of Science—From Molecules To Man*, edited by J. Z. Young and Tom Margerison, p. 34).

"One class of entities which are less structurally complex than the cell is the viruses. Whether, however, they are 'living', and thus qualify as the 'simplest' of all living things, is another matter....The question as to whether viruses are truly 'living' or not has, in its time, been a famous biological controversy" (*ibid*, p. 40). And on the next page: "Experiment, however, shows that not only is a virus quite incapable of growing outside a living cell, but exhaustive tests fail to reveal any genuine indigenous metabolic activity in it, when

it is in the 'free' form. The extracellular virus is biochemically an inert particle, devoid of all synthetic or energy-releasing activity." That is just a fancy way of saying that, by normal definition, IT IS DEAD. The "simple cell", however, is ENORMOUSLY active and complex and very much alive.

The book *Viruses*, by Arnold J. Levine, Scientific American Library, asks: "Are Viruses Alive?" on page 22, but then does not answer the question. It says "Volumes have been written to elucidate the properties of a living thing, but consensus has been rare in these debates."

This book also says: "When, in 1935, Wendell Stanley succeeded in obtaining a crystalline form of the tobacco mosaic virus, this form was seen by some scientists as filling the gap between the living world of reproducing viruses and the chemical or nonliving world of molecules and crystals" (p. 8).

You have been so brainwashed that you will probably still find what I am saying hard to follow. Look at it this way. If you have a computer, you probably have a piece of plastic called a computer disk. We say that the computer disk controls the computer. IT DOES NOT. It is simply a piece of plastic with a magnetic coating on it, it cannot DO anything, except just BE. The *computer* does all the "*doing*". A higher intelligence arranges the magnetic coating on the disk in a certain way, and the computer is designed to do certain things based on how the magnetic coating is arranged.

Or look at it this way: Saying a disk controls the computer, or saying a virus "forces" the cell to do anything, is like saying this piece of paper is alive, it takes control of you, it forces you to read and act upon it. NOT SO.

On CNN on TV, I saw a program which showed the "AIDS virus" "injecting itself into a cell". Right in front of our eyes, we were told the virus was injecting itself into the cell, and the screen, using a scene from an electron microscope, showed this mean little beastie crawling right into this big white wall (which we were told was the cell). How, exactly, does a piece of acid do that?

Well, see this pencil on my desk (let's pretend). Now watch. The pencil is forcing my hand to move. It makes my hand open up and grab it. It forces my hand to draw skulls and crossbones on a piece of paper. This must be a very evil pencil. In fact, this pencil must be a living demon!

Just because I say it, is that what is really going on?

The encyclopedias and textbooks admit that viruses have no life outside the cell. They have no digestive system, no reproductive system. They can be turned into crystals, and the crystals can be turned back into "viruses". Some books even say that scientists at first thought they had found the basis of life, because here was something dead that could come alive. What the medical textbooks teach is that the virus injects itself into a cell (a virus is about <u>one billionth</u> the size of a cell), becomes alive and takes control of the cell, forcing the cell to reproduce viruses until the cell explodes. That is like saying a flea bites a horse's rump and takes over control of the horse and forces the horse to manufacture fleas! Even that is not a good analogy because the flea is at least alive and has some intelligence and has its own reproductive system, while the virus has no life and no intelligence and no reproductive system. *Viruses are not alive*, UNLESS THERE IS MORE GOING ON THAN MEETS THE EYE!

Is that possible? Let me ask you this—are cells alive? You will probably answer, yes, of course.

So let me ask it again. Are the cells in that beefsteak you had for dinner alive? Well, no, you say, not any more.

What is the difference between a living cell and a dead cell?

There is no difference at all. Except, we all know, there is a very BIG difference, but the difference is NOT CHEMICAL, NOT PHYSICAL, not something you can measure or weigh. We might say the difference is electrical, but it is not really electrical, the difference is that mysterious thing we call LIFE.

WHAT IS THE "SOMETHING ELSE"?

There are so many places to start and so much to cover, I shall just hit a few highlights to define the track we are on. For instance, in the 1720s a French astronomer (Jean-Jacques Dertous de Mairan) did some experiments on *Mimosa pudica* plants. As soon as the sun disappeared, they folded their leaves. He placed some in a dark closet at midday, and their leaves stayed open. But when the sun set, their leaves closed, even though they were still in the dark closet. So he took some plants down a mine shaft about 650 feet below the surface at mid-day, and they immediately closed their leaves. The leaves stayed closed even when incandescent bulbs were turned on. There was apparently something unseen, something besides light, coming from the sun that was affecting the plants.

One experimenter placed a certain metal plate on the roof, ran a wire to a dark basement and into a pot with seeds in it, further sealed the container with foil wrap, and grew quite healthy and productive plants (Phoenix Journal #96; *Heave-Ho (Phase Two)*, p. 22)!

From the 1700s, scientists such as Jean Antoine Nollet, Peirre Charles Lemonnier, Benjamin Franklin, Gardini, Bertholon, Galvani, Mesmer, and many others were researching electrical and other radiations and how they affected plants and other life.

Baron Karl von Reichenbach, the man who discovered creosote, wrote a book in 1854 about a light force he called the OD Force. Nowadays we would say he was researching sound and light and color and magnetism from the vacuum. Andrija Puharich, in *Beyond Telepathy*, 1973, has a whole chapter of extremely detailed information on the OD (Appendix C). Others called a similar vacuum force the ether, the orgone, prana, cosmic field, lepton gas, etc., and most recently, scalar waves from the Zero Point.

In 1845, William Ross tested claims by the Marquis of Anglesey that electricity made seeds sprout faster, and wrote an account called "Influence of Electricity on Vegetation". In 1902, Selim Lemström published a book showing that plants treated with electricity produced greatly increased yields, tasted sweeter, etc., compared to non-treated plants. James Lee Scribner, Dr. George Starr White, Bindo Riccioni, and many others were reporting success at treating plants with electricity. In 1963, the Soviet Union built a commercial processing plant to treat seeds with electricity at the rate of 2 tons of seeds per hour.

Dr. U. J. Pittman in Canada, L. J. Audus in Britain, and A. V. Krylov and G. A. Tarakanova of Russia published papers showing that plants also responded to magnetism. In 1968, *Aviation Week and Space Technology* had an article saying that satellites could tell the health of crops based on their "electromagnetic signature", and Dr. H. Len Cox, a space scientist, after reading the article, started Cox's Electroculture

Corporation in 1970 selling a special metallic culture that greatly increased the yield and flavor of plants by using electricity. An article in *Fusion* magazine, March-April 1985, p. 11, called "Let's Use Our Technology To Wipe Out Drugs", says that "Every growing plant, when hit by sunlight, reflects back radiation in a specific array of frequencies that is different from every other plant; thus the scanner can identify the signatures of illicit drugs. For example, cannabis plants can be detected in the 1.55- to 1.75-micron band of the infrared part of the electromagnetic spectrum, its specific, identifiable signature." A picture of a multispectral scanner made by Texas Instruments (to be carried under an airplane wing) is included in the article. They can identify "signatures" from airplanes, from satellites, and of course, from desktop. They can also tell if the plant is healthy or not, and can tell to some extent what diseases the plant might have. There is simply too much information for me to cover it here, but *Acres USA* newspaper sometimes has articles along these lines (*Acres USA*, PO Box 9547, Kansas City, MO 64133, (816)-737-0064).

Don't you realize you can do that with animals, too? Animals such as, say, humans? Yes, you can use spectroscopy to precisely evaluate the composition and condition of elements, cells, and bodies. Scientists can analyze the composition and condition of stars billions of light years away, and they most certainly can do the same with cells 6 inches or so in front of their machines. The only reason they do not do so is because of the drug cartel and medical mafia. Using a spectrometer and evaluating by frequency and light would quickly reveal that their drugs do not work, and in fact, are often the cause of the problem.

Recent Space Shuttle trips to repair the Hubble Space Telescope included checkout of the Nicmos Near Infrared Camera/Multi-Object Spectrometer installed in the Hubble Space Telescope by a Shuttle crew in February. I suspect there is a lot more involved than they are telling us, like in weapons and secret communications, but how would I know, I'm just guessing.

In the 1920s, Georges Lakhovsky wrote a book explaining that cells of plants and animals were electromagnetic radiators. They absorbed and emitted radiation in various waves and frequencies. Normal cells had certain frequencies, diseased cells had different frequencies, and by the application of certain frequencies, the diseased cells could be brought back into a condition of health. He developed a "multiwave oscillator" to heal cancers, radiation burns, and many other problems normally considered to be difficult to cure. The American authorities suppressed and banned his machines and writings, while in Russia great strides were made in understanding the frequency-based foundation of life.

FREQUENCY AND THE WAVE

In 1978 I received a packet of communist literature from the Soviet distributor, Northern Book House, Box 1000, Gravenhurst, Ontario, Canada. At the time, I considered the material as worthless nonsense garbage. Later, as I learned more and reviewed it, I was shocked. They talked about getting energy out of the vacuum and talked about humans and animals responding to "electromagnetic waves".

To begin to understand the wave is to begin to understand the method of creation.

The wave is the mechanism of transferring zero-point energy from the vacuum (commonly called ether) into matter and force.

All energy is expressed in motion. All motion is expressed in waves. The wave is too complicated to

describe simply, but let's start simply and begin to understand.

The waves we are most familiar with are waves caused when we toss a pebble in the water, or sound waves in the air from vibrations.

Waves consists of a series of crests and troughs of varying pressure. It can be said that waves divide a medium by concentrating it and decentrating it at the same time (compression and rarefaction). For instance, a wave in the atmosphere is called a "front" by the weathermen, which concentrates or compresses air in front of it (a "high pressure" area), and decentrates or expands air behind it (a "low pressure" area). Since the high pressure area moves into the low pressure area, the weathermen look at this oppositely as to the "front" and "back", but these terms are relative to your viewpoint.

Physicists are learning that what we call empty space, the vacuum, or ether, etc., actually is the source of waves which divide the vacuum into sexed pairs of concentrated and decentrated waves. These waves, vibrating at various frequencies and interference patterns and forming holograms (or formed from holograms), are the source of all that we call reality, all that we call existence.

WAVELENGTH AND SPECIFIC FREQUENCIES

What is wavelength? Wavelength is the distance between any point of one wave to the corresponding point of the next wave.

The number of waves along a certain distance in a certain period of time is called the frequency, and is generally measured as cycles per second.

The term now used to express "cycles per second" is called "Hertz". One Hertz equals one cycle per second, 60 Hertz is 60 cycles per second.

The human ear responds to sounds in the frequency range of approximately 20 Hertz to 15,000 Hertz, so this is called the sound frequency range.

Radio waves are from 15,000 Hertz (abbreviated Hz) to about 1,000,000,000,000 Hz.

Heat waves are from 1,000,000,000,000 Hz to 400,000,000,000 Hz.

Light waves are from 400,000,000,000,000 to 750,000,000,000 Hz.

The top speed of sound depends on the material through which it travels, but does not exceed about 20,000 feet per second, or about 6,097.56 meters per second.

Sound travels through copper at 10,800 feet per second; iron at 17,390 fps.; brick at 11,980 fps; glass at 16,410 fps; oak at 12,620 fps; pine at 10,900 fps; water at 4,794 fps; air at 1,129 fps; and does not travel through a vacuum.

The top speed of light is given as about 186,000 miles per second, or 300,000,000 meters per second. This is the standard teaching. In higher understanding, the speed of light is variable and in ultimate truth the limit is not defined correctly (light does not travel), but we shall have more on this later.

The formula for wavelength is wavelength in meters per second equals speed in meters per second divided by frequency in Hertz.

The textbooks generally do not deal with frequencies below 30 cycles per second. This information has been purposely repressed by "the government".

Nikola Tesla was the genius who gave us alternating current and who [*actually, originally*] invented radio, TV, radar, and much more. He is also the one who decided that the standards for our household alternating current would be 120 volts and 60 cycles per second. He decided this after much experimentation with voltages and frequencies.

Tesla learned that the natural resonant frequency of the Earth is about 10 cycles per second.

Frequencies of 8 - 20 Hz are considered the ELF range (Extremely Low Frequency).

Frequencies of 20 - 40 Hz are considered VLF (Very Low Frequency).

Frequencies of 40 - 100 Hz are considered LF (Low Frequency).

SOME INTERESTING FREQUENCIES

Tesla determined that the LF frequency range of 40 - 100 is safe to humans, so he set our standard household current frequency at 60 cycles per second.

He determined that the ELF range of 8 - 20 cycles per second is harmful and can be painful to humans.

A frequency of 16 cycles per second produces a visual flicker-fusion that upsets people.

A resonant frequency of 6.66 cycles per second is damaging to humans and to the planet. In articles about Tesla there is mention that he could build a "black box" that could destroy buildings, cause earthquakes and even split the Earth in two. The formerly restricted/classified frequency for this is 6.66 Hz! Soviet scientists began an experiment with this frequency on October 14, 1976. Andrija Puharich said of this experiment: "What happened had such a disastrous effect on the planetary well-being, that even the Soviet scientists were frightened. Enormous standing waves of electromagnetic energy formed in the atmosphere above the planet extending from the Russo-Finnish region to the reciprocal pole in the Pacific east of New Zealand. These standing waves, thousand of miles long, refused to damp out, even after the Soviet TMT [Tesla Magnifying Transmitter] was switched off. The planetary electromagnetic bell just went on ringing with unprecedented resonance. Normally when the driving oscillator is switched off, the resonant waves damp out and cease shortly. Thoroughly alarmed, the Soviet scientists tried to break up and dampen the resonance of the planetary waves had all the dangerous potential of a catastrophic event, such as

"splitting the planet in two like an apple." After a few months, the standing waves did damp out, but not until some unusual never-before-seen events had occurred.

Puharich then explained that one of the events was the creation of the worst winter in the U.S. in over 100 years, drought, forest fires, etc. Passengers in airplanes were getting sick (from unusual ozone), etc. The winter of 1977-1978 was the worst since 1883 in the northeast U.S, and the winter of 1978-1979 was the worst in recorded history in the Midwest U.S. Jeremy Campbell published an article in the *London Evening Standard*, April 13, 1977, entitled "Are the Russians Changing our Weather?"

A frequency of 6 Hz produces dizziness, nausea, and a cholinergic effect on the parasympathetic nervous system (in plain language, a sudden massive diarrhea). Margaret Cheney, in *Tesla: Man Out Of Time* told about how Mark Twain learned this:

"He [Tesla] led his guests to the corner where a strange platform was mounted on rubber padding. When he flipped a switch, it began to vibrate rapidly and silently.

"Twain stepped forward, eager. 'Let me try it, Tesla. Please.'

"No, no. It needs work." "Please."

"Tesla chuckled. 'All right, Mark, but don't stay on too long. Come off when I give you the word.' He called to an attendant to throw the switch.

"Twain, in his usual white suit and black string tie, found himself humming and vibrating on the platform like a gigantic bumblebee. He was delighted. He whooped and waved his arms. The others watched in amusement.

"After a time the inventor said, 'All right, Mark. You've had enough. Come down now.'

"Not by a jugful,' said the humorist. 'I am enjoying this.'

"But seriously, you had better come down,' insisted Tesla. 'Believe me, it is best that you do so.'

"Twain only laughed. 'You couldn't get me off this with a derrick.'

"The words were scarcely out of his mouth when his expression froze. He lurched stiffly toward the edge of the platform, frantically waving at Tesla to stop it.

"Quick, Tesla. Where is it?"

"The inventor helped him down with a smile and propelled him in the direction of the rest room. The laxative effect of the vibrator was well known to him and his assistants."

The electrical charge of the atmosphere increases about 100 volts for every meter [of height], thus placing

the Earth/ionosphere potential difference at hundreds of millions of volts (Earth negative ground, ionosphere positive). This creates a resonating capacitor (and when scientists fool with it, it also creates "sprites"). The 7.03 Hz frequency is the resonant cavity frequency of the Earth-air-ionosphere condenser/ capacitor. The frequency of Earth *by itself* was determined by Tesla to be 6.67 Hz. This looks to me like it might more precisely be 6.666—a curious number, don't you think?

The Earth's natural oscillating magnetic field frequency is 7.83 Hz (usually rounded off to 8 Hz). Thus, the natural heartbeat of the Earth is considered to be 8 Hz, discovered by Tesla in 1895. In 1960, Balser and Wagner (*Nature*, Vol. 188, No. 4751, 1961) published their findings that showed that the Earth-cavity was resonant at 8 Hz. More precise studies done by M.J. Rycroft showed that the ELF spectrum had its fundamental at 7.8 ± 0.2 Hz (*Radio Science, Journal of Research*, NBS/USNC - URSI, Vol. 69D, No. 8, Aug. 1965, pp. 1071-1081, article entitled "Resonances of the Earth-Ionosphere Cavity observed at Cambridge, England"). None of the authors mentioned Tesla. Tesla was at least 65 years ahead of these authors. By the way, on September 13, 1898, at the Eighth Annual Meeting of the American Electro-Therapeutic Association (whatever happened to them?), Buffalo, New York, Tesla presented a paper he wrote called "High Frequency Oscillators for Electro-Therapeutic and other Purposes". Doctors will tell you frequency-based healing is quackery. The medical profession is a profession of liars and killers.

The 7.8 Hz resonance has been attributed to a man named Schumann and called the Schumann resonance, and is considered to be a constant in physics. Global military communications were developed on this frequency. However, recent reports (from Norwegian and Russian researchers) say the Earth is rising in frequency and the Schumann resonance is now 8.6 Hz, and climbing! At the same time, the Earth's magnetic field strength is declining.

Tesla noticed that the Earth and the ionosphere formed the two plates of a giant capacitor, with a resonating cavity peak at 8 Hz (7.83 Hz). He then tuned a secondary coil in resonance with the two resonant cavities of the Earth by creating a 20,700 Hz wave and pulsing (chopping) it so that the pulses hit the Earth 6 times per second. The Earth began to "ring like a bell". The sound would bounce back in 108 minutes. By keeping this up, he discovered the sonic stationary wave of the Earth. An electromagnetic wave was also created which <u>traveled faster than the speed of light</u> through the Earth (471,240 kilometers per second) and these electromagnetic waves became supraluminal and superconducting! He said that if he kept this up for two weeks, he could "split the Earth in two like a sliced apple"! (*The World Today*, Vol. XXI, No. 8, February 1912, pp. 718-722, "Nikola Tesla, Dreamer", by Allan L. Benson.)

The Soviets recreated this experiment on October 14, 1976. They started transmitting extremely powerful pulses at 6.66 cycles per second (6.66 Hz) and created tremendous standing waves thousands of miles long that became extremely frightening to them as they got out of their control. They created catastrophic weather and were afraid they might "split the Earth like an apple". They tried for months to shut it down, until it finally dampened down.

Normal brain frequencies are 8.6 Hz to 11.3 Hz. The brain wave Alpha frequency is 8 Hz (actual peak is 7.81 to 7.83 Hz). This is a healthful biological frequency and produces feelings of well being.

Magnetic pulse frequencies in the range of 7 to 10 Hz can protect the individual from the harmful ELF magnetic waves. With training, the human brain can generate frequencies in this range.

A single frequency in the range of 3 to 5 Hz can produce cancer.

Another range of frequencies harmful to humans is 10.8 Hz to 11 Hz, being transmitted on carriers by the Russian "Woodpecker" transmissions. NASA's Space Shuttle program has announced "experiments" sending pulse frequencies at 10 Hz or thereabouts. For instance the 10/3/94 *Aviation Week & Space Technology* magazine reported that the *Discovery* mission also involved two Lockheed Electra aircraft which, during the period Sept. 16-17, flew over part of *Discovery's* orbit, each firing its own on-board laser at the Earth, "pulsed at 10 Hz, through quartz windows" on the aircraft. When the Space Shuttle launches, there is usually at least one other launch somewhere, often from Guyana, which is involved with it—does the term "phase conjugate mirrors" fit in here? They are doing weather control and mind control and other "Star Wars"-type games.

EINSTEINIAN PHYSICS

Before we continue, you should become aware that physics and electronics as taught in schools and universities are not correct; we have been purposely lied to by the oil/nuclear energy crowd to prevent us from attaining energy independence.

Albert Einstein is a good example. We are taught that Einstein was a great mathematician, yet in his own biography he says that he had trouble with math and had to ask friends (such as Marcel Grossman) for help.

We are taught that Einstein is the author of the *Theory of Relativity*, yet evidence has come forth proving that the real author was Mileva Maric, Einstein's first wife.

Einstein had a reputation at the Swiss Polytechnic Institute in Zurich of being a man with poor work habits and was often reprimanded for laziness during all his school years including the University. He developed a romance with classmate Mileva who helped him with his math. His autobiography says "In my work participated a Serbian student Mileva Maric who I married later." She had an illegitimate daughter in 1902, which they gave up for adoption. They got married in 1903, separated in 1912 and divorced in 1919. This is when Einstein married his cousin Elsa. The original manuscript of the *Theory of Relativity* submitted for publication had Maric's name on it as co-author.

For more proof, see the article "Theory of Relativity—Who is its real author?" by Dr. Rastko Maglic and J.W. McGinnis, President, International Tesla Society, in the Jul/Aug 1994 issue of *Extraordinary Science* magazine, which contains references for further documentation.

Einstein was a foreign-born Khazarian Jew with membership in at least 16 Communist front organizations (Friends of the Soviet Union, for example). Einstein was head of the Jewish Black Book Committee, which was listed as a Communist front in the 1947 House Un-American Activities Committee Report. He was a Communist cell member with Klaus Fuchs, the famous atomic spy, and was instrumental in bringing Fuchs into the U.S. Einstein was a hoax and fraud saddled on the scientific community to prevent them from learning too much and to promote Jews as being superior.

Einstein's famous equation "E=MC²" is WRONG or at best incomplete. His definition of energy is wrong,

his definition of mass is wrong, C is defined as the top speed possible for anything. Light does not move, our perception of the speed of light is wrong (the perception is what moves). Even in conventional physics, it is said that no material particle can exceed the velocity of light. But every motion of a physical particle or wave has with it another wave called a pilot wave. The velocity of the pilot wave is always greater than the speed of light, and the product of the two wave velocities always equals the speed of light squared. The velocity of mind is greater than the velocity of light (according to Puharich, *Beyond Telepathy*, formula on page 191).

Those who REALLY understand, and who can prove it by creating matter out of "nothing" for instance, say that the original White Light is invisible and still.

The correct science being discovered and revealed by such as Nikola Tesla, Tom Bearden, Andrija Puharich, G. Lakhovsky, Royal Rife, T. H. Moray, Antoine Priore, Amnon Yariv, William J. Hooper, Louis Kervran, David Bohm, Trevor James Constable, Bruce Cathie, Chiang Kanzhen, etc., was downplayed, suppressed, or banned to prevent humanity from achieving energy independence (and thus political and military independence) from the Rockefeller/Rothschild/Royal Family oil/nuclear energy barons. Understanding the correct technology leads to understanding of good health and thus independence from the drug/medical crowd, who happen to be the same oil crowd crooks.

HOW DO VIRUSES REALLY WORK?

What are being called viruses are simply pieces of genetic material. Left alone, they are normally no problem to the body. But "messed up" by drugs, or by radiation, they supply wrong information to the cells and create problems, just as a wrong or doctored computer program messes up what the computer is supposed to do. Computer "viruses" do not really take control of the computer, we just look at it that way. Viruses do not really take control of cells, we just look at it that way. A computer disk has no intelligence of its own, except the intelligence of the programmer that is stored on the disk. The virus has no intelligence of its own, except for the intelligence of the virus creator/programmer. Dr. Chiang Kanzhen, credited with discovering "biomicrowave communications" (the Chiang Scientific Foundation and Chiang Institute are named after him), said that DNA is only a "cassette" with recorded information, *whose actual material carriers are bioelectromagnetic signals*. "In other words, the electromagnetic field and DNA together make up COMBINED GENETIC MATERIAL, which exists in two forms: a passive (DNA) and an active (bioelectromagnetic field) form. The passive form preserves the genetic code, the active (transmitting) form is able to modify it." The bioelectromagnetic field (the material carrier of energy and information) exists in both the microwave and infra-red range of frequencies, and the bio-EM fields act by moving photons.

The government black budget "Starwars" programs and medical programs are reprogramming the genetic codes in the pieces of genetic material and calling them viruses, and, yes, in that case, they do definitely cause disease and genetic mutations.

HOW CAN VIRAL DISEASES BE CURED?

You should know by now that drugs and radiation create defective pieces of genetic codes which we call

viruses. The solution to the problem is to stop the intake of drugs and all harmful elements, and to stop being irradiated. We cannot always do that, so we need to keep the body in top condition to allow it to counter the problems. Since genes are being electromagnetically programmed by our enemies, we need to be able to counter that programming, which can also be done electromagnetically (in which I am including light waves and all forms of helpful frequency).

There is no single AIDS virus, ALL viruses (harmful genetic material) are AIDS viruses, all harm the body's immune system (if they are harmful at all—many are harmless and are scapegoats for the drug dealers). And, yes, these <u>viruses can and are being programmed/created from a distance by pulse beam systems</u>: "Yes, the retrovirus can be manipulated by pulsed beam systems" (Hatonn, *Phoenix Journal* #65, p. 173).

The MIND is a pulse beam generator and can CREATE, OR HEAL viruses. However, we generally do not know how, so we can do it by using machines. You can search the field of radionics for more information.

In 1977, Louis Kervran won the Nobel Prize for showing that plants and animals (his main experiments were with chickens) use "scalar wave" type technology to transmute elements, for instance turning potassium into calcium. This is impossible according to the "laws" of physics currently taught in schools. Lead cannot be turned into gold, we are told, except now by atomic bombardment in nuclear reactors. In fact, living beings do this "alchemy" routinely. The ruling Elite do not want you "common folk" to have this type of knowledge, as it will undermine their control over you. So the "laws" they teach are incomplete or WRONG. Kervran wrote a dissertation (in French, I believe) on "biological transmutations" and a translation was republished in *CONTACT* (August 29 and September 5, 12, & 19, 1995).

HOW DO YOU CREATE A VIRUS?

When a virus is taken into a cell, it vanishes by becoming a part of the cell's genetic code. The cell does whatever cells do, using the genetic code as a guideline. When the cell dies, it falls apart and is digested by enzymes and in the process bits of the genetic code are released until they too are dissolved. These bits of cell garbage are called viruses. They are "harmless" or "deadly", depending on how they have been programmed. They can also be, and are being, generated artificially. Gene manipulation is being used for everything from cloning humans, creating artificial foods (some "foods" that are genetically altered are Coca Cola, Fritos, Green Giant Harvest Burgers, McDonald's French Fries, Nestle's chocolates, Karo Corn Syrup, NutraSweet, Kraft Salad Dressings, Fleishmann's margarine, Similac infant formulas, Land O' Lakes Butter, and Cabot Creamery Butter), to creating new strains of old diseases and germ-warfare-type new diseases. There are billion-dollar industries based on hiding this information from you!

An article in the April 2, 1994, issue of *Science News*, p. 213, talks of the discovery of something they are calling a "holoenzyme". They explained a holoenzyme as something like a chairman over the committee that controls reading the genetic code. The article did not state why the name "holoenzyme", but it sounds like a reference to a hologram. If that's the case, they were on the right track. Since then, they keep

changing the definition of the "holoenzyme".

THE HOLOGRAPHIC UNIVERSE

Quantum physicists are beginning to learn that the universe is in reality a hologram. It is hard for us to accept that we and all we consider as reality are a giant hologram that contains matter and consciousness in the same "dream". This subject is too big for me to try to cover here, so I recommend you start with a book called *The Holographic Universe*, by Michael Talbot, HarperCollins [one word] Publishers, 1991. It has recently been a non-fiction best seller and is available at the library or from most any book store. If you read only one book in the near future, it should be this book. It will change your whole perception of reality.

Another book you may want is called *AIDS*, *Biological Warfare* by T. E. Bearden, available from the Tesla Book Company, P. O. Box 121873, Chula Vista, CA 91912 (their catalog is also on the Internet). Bearden's book contains more than you ever wanted to know on how holographic/scalar technology is being used and what it is. One chapter is called "Developing the EM [electromagnetic] Cure For AIDS".

An article in the March 30, 1991, issue of *Science News* begins: "Zapping the AIDS virus with low-voltage electric current can nearly eliminate its ability to infect human white blood cells cultured in the laboratory, reports a research team at the Albert Einstein College of Medicine in New York City" (p. 207).

It is illegal to sell devices that heal AIDS (are you surprised?), although there is evidence that some of them work. However, the laws exempt making devices for your own use or your own research. See *Code of Federal Regulations 21 807.65 Subpart D* - Exemptions. Paragraphs {d} & {f}:

Exemptions:

"(d) Licensed practitioners, including physicians, dentists, and optometrists, who manufacture or otherwise alter devices solely for use in their practice."

"(f) persons who manufacture, prepare, propagate, compound, or process devices solely for use in research, teaching, or analysis, and do not introduce such devices into commercial distribution."

If you wish to do your own experimenting, you can get a kit of parts for about \$50.00 or a partially assembled kit for \$89.00 from Action Electronics, 1300 E. Edinger, Santa Ana, CA 92705 (714) 547-5169 or you can buy the parts from your local Radio Shack (contact Dr. Robert Beck for a list). Another source for parts and instructions is Brownell Electro, 6450 Caballero Blvd., Buena Park, CA 90620 (800) 774-4643.

Dr. Robert Beck has a taped lecture on this subject called "An Electromagnetic Remedy For Many Disorders", \$8.00 for an audio (plus \$1.50 s/h) or \$20.00 for the video, available from Backcountry Productions, 831 Alpine Street, Longmont, CO. 80501 (303) 772-8358.

A magnetic pulse generator is available from Energetic Transformations, 8425 North Foothill Hwy., Boulder, CO. 80302, (303) 939-0090. Price was \$95.00.

A catalog of useful parts is available from MCM Electronics, Centerville, OH 45459 (800) 543-4330, catalog # 50-940.

No claims are made for any health or healing effect of these machines (keep it legal), so they are for your research into how frequencies and waves affect the universe. They are for informational, instructional, and research purposes only.

A book I have not seen yet, it is supposed to come out in April 1997, is called *The Electric Spark of Life: The Millennium Science* by Dr. Reijo Mäkelä. He says that living cells are electromagnetic units. Everbody already knows this (that's why electrocardiograms work). Mäkelä expands upon this and says "Genetic engineering is electromagnetic in its character. Environmental factors—light and other electromagnetic radiation like radiation heat, noise, all kinds of pollution [HAARP?]—will cause electromagnetic changes in DNA....The compounding of adenine to thymine and cytocine to guanine is governed by electromagnetic laws." An article by Dr. Reijo Mäkelä is available on the Internet from http://www.earthpulse.com.

Another book that appears to be valuable is *Living Energies: Viktor Schauberger's Brilliant Work With Natural Energy Explained*, by Callum Coats. There is such a mind-boggling wealth of information available these days—until the government manages to suppress it all—that a lot of researchers are discovering how to use this new technology. Unfortunately, too many of them do not see the big picture of the politics and conspiracies and deadly control wars going on, so they generally do not get very far. They copyright their material, run to the patent office and turn over their secrets to their enemy, run to banks for financing (banks that make their money from the very enemies of the new technology, or the enemies who want to keep the new technology to themselves). And they do not understand or consider where GOD fits in the picture.

One of the best books with key information is *The Last Great Plague Upon Man: Aids And Related Murder Tools* from Phoenix Source Publishers, P. O. Box 27353, Las Vegas, Nevada 89126, (800) 800-5565. Ordering information is on the back page of *CONTACT* Newspaper (call same phone number for more info). On page 159 he says, speaking of control system of cells: "The master cellular control system is holographic." I wonder how he knew? (joke)

A LOOK AT SOME OTHER DEVICES

SONIC BLOOM—A home and garden plant-growing kit. Dan Carlson developed a combination of harmonics and nutrients to make plants grow better. He's in the *Guinness Book of Records* for having grown the world's largest house plant, and has produced liter-sized potatoes, 500 tomatoes on single vines, three times more roses on a bush, etc. His basic kit is \$60.00 plus \$5.00 shipping, available on the Internet or other sources.

THE NEUROPHONE—Patrick Flanagan has produced a machine that allows the deaf to hear. He invented it when he was 14 years old, *Life* magazine did a feature on him in their September 14, 1962 issue. He demonstrated his machine on the Gary Moore, Bess Meyerson, etc. TV shows. When he first tried to patent the machine, the National Security Agency confiscated the Neurophone (convincing evidence that it works!).

Harry Stine wrote a book called *The Silicon Gods* (Bantam Books), about using the Neurophone as a brain-to-computer interface device. They developed a Man-Dolphin language translator. The limit of human hearing is about 16,000 Hz., but dolphins "speak" and hear up to 250,000 Hz. The Neurophone was successful in allowing humans to hear and speak at these frequencies. The machine was used during the Vietnam War to locate sounds in the jungle. Flanagan developed a digital Neurophone patent application and sent it to the patent office, and the Defense Intelligence Agency put it under a secrecy order. They were not allowed to talk about it for 12 years.

The mechanism uses holographic sound, so that they can locate sounds in 3-D space, and also works backwards—they can project sound in 3-D space. In other words, they can record an orchestra, then play it back and it sounds just like you are sitting in a live concert.

The first Neurophone consisted of two copper Brillo pads connected to insulated copper wires. The pads were put in plastic bags for insulation. The copper wires were attached to a reversed audio output transformer that was attached to a hi-fi amplifier. The output voltage of the audio transformer was about 1,500 volts peak-to-peak. When the pads were placed on the temples next to the eyes and speech or music was played, you could "hear" the sound inside your head. The transformer would oscillate ("ring") with a dampened wave at frequencies of 40-50 kHz.

The next Neurophone consisted of a variable frequency vacuum tube oscillator that was amplitude modulated. The output signal was then fed into a high frequency transformer that had a flat frequency response in the 20-100 kHz range. The electrodes (this time they were two-inch diameter disks with mylar insulation) were placed on the head and the oscillator was tuned so that maximum resonance was obtained using the human body as part of the tank circuit. It used a 2,000 volt peak-to-peak amplitude-modulated carrier wave.

Their literature says: "The Neurophone is really a scalar wave device since the out-of-phase signals from the electrodes mix in the non-linear complexities of the skin dielectric. The signals from each capacitor electrode are 180 degrees out-of-phase. Each signal is transmitted into the complex dielectric of the body where phase cancellation takes place. The net result is a scalar vector. This fact was not known at the time I invented the device. This knowledge came later when we learned that the human nervous system is particularly sensitive to scalar signals.... We established quite early that some totally nerve-deaf people could hear with the device.... We were able to stimulate visual phenomena when the electrodes were placed over the occipital region of the brain. The possibilities of Neurophonic visual stimulation suggests that we may someday be able to use the brain like a computer or television screen."

They also say: "The skin is our largest and most complex organ. In addition to being the first line of defense against infection, the SKIN IS A GIGANTIC LIQUID CRYSTAL BRAIN" (emphasis mine).

"The skin is piezo-electric. When it is vibrated or rubbed, it generates electric signals and scalar waves.... Many primitive organisms and animals can see and hear with their skin.....The Neurophone is an electronic telepathy machine. Several tests prove that it bypasses the eighth cranial nerve, the hearing nerve, and transmits sound directly to the brain. This means that the Neurophone stimulates perception through a seventh or alternative sense." The machine works by means of the skin, not by means of bone conduction. Although this material may sound extremely technical to some of you, any Ham radio General license operator should have no trouble understanding it, or even someone who is "into" hi-fi and stereo electronics.

If the "skin is a gigantic liquid crystal brain," then it would follow that, like other crystals, it receives frequency transmissions, radiates information, and is programmable (silica is an example of a crystal, as in Silicon Valley).

For more information, get the book *Towards a New Alchemy: The Millennium Science* by Nick Begich (who also wrote *Angels Don't Play This HAARP*). The Neurophone sells for \$695.00.

More about Patrick Flanagan is in an article in *CONTACT* newspaper, July 2, 1996, p. 27, article "Water: The Most Amazing Substance On Earth" (call 1-800-800-5565 for back-issue information).

CYMATICS

Cymatics sounds good (that's a pun) in theory. It is a system of using sound to improve conditions of the body (sort of like that forbidden word "healing"). Ultra-sound is used, in diagnosing pregnancy for instance, with no harm. Since viruses are crystals, and crystal responds to sound vibrations (remember the "Is it real or is it Memorex" ad where sound shatters a glass?), there are great possibilities here. Unfortunately, their machine costs an absurd \$5,000. It comes in a briefcase. It fills about half the briefcase, and consists of two coils and some electronics, about as complicated as a computer board or radio, less complicated than a TV. I see no reason it should be so expensive. Nevertheless, they have a lot of good information and they recognize the body as a holographic manifestation. They probably concentrate too much on the purely audible spectrum (there is more than just sound involved). Their manuals are need-lessly complicated and verbose in my opinion.

Example: They ask the question, "What is disease?" Their answer is : "It is the oscillatory disequilibrium of cells, originating from external causes. It is more, especially, the struggle between microbic frequency and cellular frequency. For the microbe, unicellular organism, acts also by virtue of its frequency. If microbic frequency is predominant, disease is the result, and when vital resistance is completely overcome, death occurs. If cellular frequency gains the ascendant, restoration of health follows." Now you know. These are exactly the same words Lakhovsky used in *The Secret of Life*, so I assume Dr. Peter Guy Manners, founder of Cymatics, was quoting him.

They DO have some very good information if you can handle the big words. Example: "The etheric body is a holographic energy field or template that carries information for the growth, development and repair of the physical body. While the genes within the DNA direct the molecular mechanisms which govern the development of individual cells, the etheric body guides the spatial unfoldment of the genetic process."

The machine works by sound vibrations on acupuncture points. They say that the heart muscle is affected by a combination of 105, 160 and 214 cycles per second, while 98, 132 and 234 affect the speech area of the brain.

You can contact them at Bretforton Hall Clinic, Bretforton, Vale of Evesham, Worcestershire, WR115JH.

Telephone: 01286 830537. Or you can contact a representative in Houston at (713) 528-0087. I have an audio cassette tape of Dr. Peter Guy Manners, and he talks like he writes.

There are no "cures" for anything, other than removing the cause of the problem and giving the body what it needs to come back into balance. But what do you do when you are being irradiated against your will? One way to counter harmful frequencies is to counter them with other frequencies (called phase cancellation or creating a "null"). That removes the cause of your problem. The medical mafia and their cohorts want you to concentrate on magic potions, pills, and incantations, which they just happen to sell at a very high price, while in the meantime they are destroying you with their pills, potions and FREQUENCY POLLUTION.

How do you go about using frequency in healthful ways? One of the quickest, simplest ways is to use frequency-enhanced products. Even plain water can store, and transmit, frequencies (see the above mentioned article on water by Flanagan). Now where might one go to find frequency-enhanced products?

I am running out of space and time (which, by the way, according to *The Holographic Universe* do not exist—no wonder I have so little), but in the future I hope to write more about the electromagnetic/ holographic information that is currently available (if one bothers to dig it out) and how to use it. If anyone wishes to share information with me, please do so. To any doctors who might read this, I warn you, Sirs and Madams, many of you have your noses so deep in the bark that you cannot see even the tree, much less the forest. Remember, this is your life, too, and the lives of your loved ones, as well as your patients. You need to wake up from your programming.

I hope I have given you something to ponder. Somebody had better start doing something more than pondering or complaining, though, for it is almost too late.

Good day.

Calvin Burgin

CHAPTER 2

THE NEWS DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 5/13/97

BORNEO MINE WORTHLESS

INVESTIGATIONS LAUNCHED INTO COLOSSAL HOAX

From Los Angeles *Daily News*, 5/6/97, [quoting:]

bre-x mine entrance

TORONTO—The search for a jungle El Dorado is over. The search for culprits in an astounding gold mine fraud has begun.

Half a world apart, Canadian and Indonesian authorities opened investigations Monday into how Bre-X Minerals, a tiny exploration company from Alberta, managed to convince countless experts and investors that a tract of land in Borneo contained the biggest gold find of the century.

After two years as a stock market superstar, Bre-X was suddenly a pariah after an independent consulting company reported Sunday that the Busang site was worthless. It said thousands of seemingly promising crushed rock core samples collected by Bre-X had been doctored with gold from elsewhere in a scam "without precedent in the history of mining".

Partners in the Busang project promptly jumped ship. The Indonesian government, which held a 10 percent stake, vowed to punish whoever was responsible. New Orleans-based Freeport-McMoRan Copper & Gold—which first cast doubts on Busang's value in late March—said it was withdrawing from its planned partnership with Bre-X.

The company that reported the fraud, Strathcona Mineral Services, did not attempt to fix blame for the tampering, but offered to assist in subsequent investigations. Industry analysts said it seemed clear that some senior Bre-X personnel were involved, but there was no consensus whether the culprits were Canadian-based executives, geologists in the field, or both.

Mining analysts say only a small amount of gold—perhaps a few pounds—would have been enough to doctor the Bre-X samples to make them appear Busang was a world-class gold deposit.

Bre-X's president, David Walsh, who launched the Busang project from his Calgary basement while bankrupt in 1993, expressed shock at the evidence of tampering and said his company would conduct its own investigation.

Walsh, 51, sold off some of his Bre-X shares last year, along with other senior company officials, who together reaped more than \$56 million in profits.

They have been targeted by at least eight class-action lawsuits in Canada and the United States alleging that Bre-X executives misled shareholders about Busang's potential while selling off some of their own shares.

The Ontario Securities Commission and the Royal Canadian Mounted Police also are investigating aspects of the Bre-X affair.

Trading in Bre-X on the Toronto Stock Exchange, NASDAQ and other markets has been suspended indefinitely. Share prices already had plummeted more than 80 percent March 27, following Freeport-McMoRan's announcement that its preliminary tests showed little trace of gold.

In Indonesia, the investigation may focus on Bre-X's chief geologist, Michael de Guzman, who plunged to his death from a helicopter March 19. Bre-X claims he committed suicide because of despondency over his health, but his family believes he may have been murdered.

De Guzman died en route to a meeting with officials from Freeport-McMoRan, and some analysts believe he may have realized the U.S. company had begun to suspect Busang was a hoax. [End quoting]

I still don't hear or see mention of George Bush and his Barrick Gold gang and their major activity in this scam. I wonder why—don't you??

I've since heard, on TV news, that the shares have **plummeted to three cents a share.**

UNDERMINING CHRISTIAN ANGER

From THE JUBILEE, March/April, [quoting:]

In an obvious effort to blunt Christian anger at Hollywood's never-ending anti-Christian, pro-Jewish bias, two new organizations have been set up to "keep Hollywood in line". These organizations are promoted as Christian and Jewish and will probably serve the real purpose of keeping Christians in line.

The organizations are the Center for Jewish and Christian Values set up by Rabbi Yecheil Eckstein and the Christian Film and Television Commission set up by Ted Baehr.

The organizations are already serving their real purpose. They have asked Christians not to boycott Disney or other movie studios. This is clearly in response to the highly effective work done by the American Family Association and the Southern Baptist Convention which do advocate boycotts and the targeting of advertisers. [End quoting.]

The good usually end up destroying themselves with the help and the encouragement of the infiltrated evil ones.

EXPERTS OF HATE INSTILL FEAR IN JUDGES

SPLC (Southern Poverty Law Center) stooge plays the role of a "False Patriot" by attending Jubilation '96 undercover

Excerpted from THE JUBILEE, March/April, [quoting:]

Recently discovered video tapes (over 3 hours in length) document a judges' seminar entitled "Impact of the Common Law Court Movement on the Courts".

The seminar was made possible by a grant from the National Center for State Courts in Williamsburg, Virginia—a taxpayer-funded Organization.

Appearing before the Conference of Chief Justices (CCJ) and the Conference of State Court Administrators (CQSCA) (sic), held in Nashville last August, Michael Reynolds, spokesman and senior intelligence analyst for the Southern Poverty Law Center, told the panel of judges he attended the conference that proclaimed, "We Want Our Country Back" as part of his "field work."

The stated purpose of the seminar was to initiate an action plan against the Freemen, aggrieved litigants, patriots, and the common law court movement. The plan was developed by keynote speakers Michael Reynolds and James Reynolds, Chief of Terrorism and Violent Crimes Section, U.S. Department of Justice....

Michael Reynolds appeared to be terrified of the common law movement and relayed this feeling to the judges. He told the judges not to give aggrieved litigants and patriot groups a platform because these groups would use this platform for propaganda purposes....

Other speakers on the panel were Susan Hansen, senior reporter for *The American Lawyer*; Judge Thomas J. Moyer, Chief Justice Supreme Court of Ohio; Judge Michael D. Zimmerman, Chief Justice Utah Supreme Court; and Judge Jeffery H. Langton and Judge Gregory P. Mohr from Montana.

In addition to the video tape, copies of 3 handouts from the conference became available. Susan Hansen admitted that she had been traveling around the country "to witness first hand the rapid rise of right-wing extremists who, rejecting the established judicial system, have set up their own."

Hansen handed out copies of her article in the May 1996, issue of the *American Lawyer* titled "A Rule of Their Own", stating, "A new breed of antigovernment rebels are setting up their own renegade court system. Like Montana's 'Freeman', they're meting out instant 'justice' and death sentences against real sheriffs and judges."

Another handout was a memorandum by Harold Nagle regarding "Common Law Courts in the U.S." covering the history, philosophy, lien procedures, summary of specific common law court activities nation-wide, and common law court documents from Minnesota.

The third handout was from a panel member who could not attend the conference, Susan P. Koniak. She wrote a paper called, "When Law Risks Madness" about the militias. She mentions in a footnote that she was afraid to do primary research with the common law groups because she is Jewish, and was particularly and personally offended by anti-Semitic beliefs of the Common Law community.

Michael Reynolds appeared to be terrified of the common law movement and relayed this feeling to the judges. He told the judges not to give aggrieved litigants and patriot groups a platform because these groups would use this platform for propaganda purposes.

Using a little propaganda of his own, he told the judges, "You are the enemy to the people and you are the ones they intend to hang if you don't come aboard. What is to prevent one of you or one of the members of your court from being kidnapped and being taken before one of those grand juries, charged, convicted and hanged?" He also said of the patriots: "If you are willing to die for a movement, you are willing to kill for the movement. This is what we are dealing with."

M. Reynolds mentioned further that the leaders of the movement are angry Americans who see no future and believe that their government doesn't care. He talked about LeRoy Schweitzer noting he is "a true believer", and that the money he generated went back into the movement. A fact that seemed to shock even himself as he told this to the State Supreme Court Justices and Court Administrators. He said that the "true believers" will not go away. He pointed to the flag and said that the gold fringe means admiralty law—"I don't recognize your court. You have no jurisdiction over me. I'm a sovereign citizen." There was dead silence after this remark.

Perhaps touching upon the most dangerous aspect of contemporary patriots, M. Reynolds lamented, "They don't need and they don't trust the straight media. They have their own media. They don't need NBC. They don't need any of this. They're already well connected. They deal in a closed system. They have a closed system of media that is great. They cover all the angles. All they do is listen to short wave radio. They go on the Internet. They read those publications [referring to papers like *The Jubilee*]. It's a self-supporting closed system. They don't need the lies of the New World Order-controlled media Elite or Jewish occupied government."

In a shocking statement that illustrates the patriots' point, Judge Langton declared that the oath of office was a requirement of the *Constitution*, and that it was an "incident of public office", but not a "contract with the people".

M. Reynolds and the judges expressed great fear that patriot groups will change the system by successfully backing their candidates and getting them elected to office—their interpretation of "we want our country back."

James Reynolds mentioned that there are 94 U.S. Attorney district offices that write monthly reports on every act of domestic terrorism and fraud-type violations, and that 26 districts have an investigation relative to common law activities. He said there is a special task force set up to monitor the Freeman activities.

James Reynolds gave a detailed explanation on how a lien is filed and how to sell liens to foreign governments. He told the judges that 1300 Freeman checks are circulated in almost 50 states and that the losses

from the checks are \$1.8 million. He said the checks have been successfully negotiated and that there are investigations regarding the Freeman activities in 50 of the 94 districts. He categorized the common law activities into 4 areas; flat-out scams, harassment type actions, threatening activities, and assaultive activities.

It is an alarming testimony of judicial ignorance to realize that Michael Reynolds was able to "brainwash" the judges with his biased ideas against the patriot and common law movement. He strongly recommended that judges do not listen to or work with aggrieved litigants, stating that 98% of the grievances filed are frivolous. [As though he had reviewed each of them.]

Another conference was held in Scottsdale, Arizona in early February 1997, called Dealing with Common Law Courts. Over 40 judges and administrators attended this conference, with Jonathan Mozzochi of the Coalition for Human Dignity in Seattle, Washington, as one of the keynote speakers. The goal of this conference was to "develop recommendations which judges and court administrators can pursue and combat the inappropriate and illegal actions of those associated with the common law court movement." A source said that one of the goals of the conference was to identify ways the courts can take preemptive actions against the common law court movement.

As a member of the National College of Probate Judges I attended a Probate Judge Conference in Monterey, California, last November. There, I learned first-hand judges are more afraid of losing power and control than they are in achieving justice. As Judge Martin E. Kravarik said in the Fall 1996, issue of *Court Review*, "There's a tidal wave of change, chaos, and violence coming that will last a generation— and you and I must be the finger in the dike. We have to succeed or our nation's courts and communities will be wiped out." Judge Kravarik is the immediate past president of the American Judges Association, and attended the conference in Nashville.

For more information about these conferences, or a transcript of the Nashville conference, contact: June Wisniewski, 1375 Mill St. #313C, Reno, NV 89502, (702) 324-6856 phone/fax. [End quoting]

They're planning well to keep us from gaining a just court system.

THE MONETARY SYSTEM CANNOT BE SAVED

From THE NEW FEDERALIST, 1/20/1997, [quoting:]

We have a pattern of similar developments around the world. We are on the verge, as everyone in financial circles at top levels knows and says, we are on the verge of a disintegration of the present world monetary and financial system. In the present form, there is nothing that can prevent that collapse from occurring. Absolutely nothing. There is no trick in the book that can save the present monetary and financial system globally in its present form. Very soon, in addition to all kinds of financial market upheavals and collapses of industries and so forth, we are headed for the greatest financial collapse in all human history. Not years ahead, but in the immediate period ahead. It's already on the way.

The day that the derivatives bubble internationally—which is probably on the order of magnitude of \$100

trillion of liabilities, probably, maybe more, because most of it's off-balance sheet—on the day that bubble begins to collapse, you will have, within three to five days, the vaporization of virtually every financial institution on this planet. Not bankruptcy, not "in trouble": vaporization. The door closes, it stops. You take a credit card, you put it in the machine, there's nothing on the other end to connect to.

And if you think about the dependency of people in the United States and in Western Europe on electronic transfers of money, as opposed to actual cash transfers, and realize that not only households depend upon electronic transfers in large degree—credit card debt and similar kinds of things its called here—but also that business firms, such as the local grocery store, depend upon it. What happens on the day that this collapse occurs, and people rely upon certain grocery stores to get their groceries? How many days' supply of groceries for a neighborhood is represented by the stores in that area? What happens when the stock runs out? How does the grocery store secure new supplies? That's the kind of problem that we potentially face.

The question is: Do we wish to survive? Because we will not survive, ourselves, unless we change the policies in a way which addresses our problem as well as solving the problems of Bosnia, and other starving people.

And that's the way to look at it. We're all in a mess, and we cannot turn our back on a neighbor and say, "I don't have time to be a good Samaritan." That's not the issue. If you're not a Good Samaritan, you're not likely to survive yourself. So, you are the guy who's really in a need, whether you know it or not. [End quoting]

The financial markets are scary places today.

EXXON ATTACKS ELECTRIC VEHICLES IN BROCHURE FOR KIDS

From the INTERNET, 4/23/97, [quoting:]

Just in time for Earth Day, Exxon has taken upon itself to combat bias by environmentalists by producing a brochure for school children about the benefits of gas cars over EVs [*electric vehicles*].

In Texas, officials were concerned that children were getting an "unbalanced" view when it comes to education about pollution. So a couple weeks ago the Texas government asked for help from the polluters themselves.

In a seminar held in Houston, major oil and chemical corporations were invited to offer advice on teaching children about the environment. The companies helped pay for and produce the seminar. Among them [*was*] Exxon, who presented their brochure on EVs.

The conference was co-sponsored by the Texas Natural Resources Conservation Commission.

This article was on the front page of Tuesday's *Washington Post* in an article called "Whose Shade of Green? Critics Find Environmental Bias in Schools" [End quoting]

Instead of educating the children about the **absolutely clean energy they prevent us from having use of**, they propagandize the children to **keep using filthy, polluting oil products.**

JEWISH PERSECUTION

From *THE SPOTLIGHT*, 4/28/97, [quoting:]

According to Alan Dershowitz, the Harvard Law School exponent of Jewish "chutzpah", Jews "have become the new WASPs", economically, socially and politically. Serious Semitism is over in America, he believes, but sees a downside in that without such "trouble" Jews could lose their Jewishness. Perhaps Dershowitz fears that untroubled American Jews will prefer to be assimilated Americans, contributing to America rather than [being a] segregated and privileged class. [End quoting]

Can't have the Jews wanting **honesty**, justice and fairness.

YELLOW PERIL

From THE SPOTLIGHT, 4/28/97, [quoting:]

With all the talk of Red China moving in on the U.S., I recall something that happened in 1978. I went into a coffee shop one morning and three men were talking about the Communist threat to this country. They were discussing the takeover of the U.S. by about the year 2000. I asked [them] if they had anything to make the U.S. surrender and one man produced a paper that had President Jimmy Carter's name on it and the secretary of state's name on it.

It was an agreement between Red China and the U.S. [that] in the event of a rebellion...Red China would provide 5 million soldiers to maintain order in the U.S. —Harley Fisk, Houston Texas [End quoting]

Conspiracy? No, there couldn't be such a thing—just "coincidence".

BRITAIN HAS ANSWER TO HILLARY CLINTON

Excerpted from THE DAILY NEWS, Los Angeles, 5/?/97, [quoting:]

Cherie Booth Blair has all the attributes of Hillary Rodham Clinton. A high-flying lawyer, she is strongminded, stylish and loyal. But she also has another important trait for a political wife: she keeps quiet about politics.

Mrs. Blair was a Labor activist at 16. And if fate—or a parliamentary nomination—had gone the other way, the Blairs could have been celebrating her victory Friday instead of his.

She ran for Parliament and lost in 1983, the year Blair won in Sedgefield, a solidly Labor district in north England.

The Blairs, or so the legend goes, made a pact soon after marrying in 1980: whoever got into Parliament

first would be the politician with the big ambitions; the other would be the lawyer with the big earnings.

Pact or not, that is how it worked out. [End quoting]

Again—"coincidence"? They use the same pattern over and over again. It works every time.

CLINTON PLAN WOULD ALLOW TOLLS ON INTERSTATE HIGHWAYS

From FAX (datelined UPI) sent by L. Gersic & M. Backman, 4/29/97, [quoting:]

President Clinton's new transportation budget, if approved by Congress, would allow states to begin placing tolls in the middle of interstate highways.

Administration officials said today they have no specific requests pending from states that want to introduce such tolls, but are nevertheless proposing the change so states have the option.

Deputy Secretary of Transportation Mortimer Downey said the idea for expanding toll authority was "one of the things we heard as we went around the country, that state and local governments are looking for ways to increase their transportation revenues."

States currently can place tolls on bridges and tunnels that are on the interstate system, but not the highway sections themselves.

The President's proposal would allow states the option to introduce such tolls, Downey said, although federal law would continue to require the tolls to be "just and reasonable". [End quoting]

We paid for the roads once and now they are trying to make us pay for them again. They will get away with it unless we give them enough flak!

THE SECRET OATH OF THE 32nd DEGREE MASONS

From THE SEEKERS, Jan./Feb. 1997, [quoting:]

"Brother thou has finished thy instructions as a chief of Freemasonry. Pronounce thy supreme oath, 'I swear to recognize no fatherland but that of the world. I swear to work hard everywhere and always to destroy frontiers, boundaries of all nations, of all industries, no less than of all families. I swear to dedicate my life to the triumph of progress and universal unity and I declare to profess the negation of God and the negation of the soul.' And now Brother, that for thee, fatherland, religion and family have disappeared forever in the immensity of the work of Freemasonry, come to us and share with us the boundless authority, the infinite power that we hold over humanity. The only key to progress and happiness, the only rules of food are thy appetites and instincts."

This is the end product of a succession of oaths taken upon initiation in degrees that become progressively

more Satanic or Luciferic. So secret are they that nothing is ever written, but committed to memory only. [End quoting]

Just a bunch of **"good buddies" at the top of Freemasonry?!!!** <u>HOW STATISTICS LIE</u>

From MIDDLE AMERICAN NEWS, 1/97, [quoting:]

Because of racially-skewed record-keeping of crime statistics under the 1990 Hate Crime Statistics Act, the FBI is reporting distorted pictures of crime in America. According to *National Review* magazine, the FBI classifies victims of "hate crimes" by race, ethnicity, religion, and sexual orientation, but categorizes perpetrators by race alone. Because most Hispanics are designated as Whites, a Hispanic attack on a Black is counted as a White-on-Black crime. [End quoting]

Figures don't lie, but the ones "managing" the numbers do.

BLOOD SUCKERS

From MIDDLE AMERICAN NEWS, 1/97, [quoting:]

Thanks to the immigration policies of the federal government, a contagious killer disease once confined to Latin America is now appearing in the United States. Chagas' disease, which kills 45,000 people a year, is transmitted by the tick-like triatomine insect, which sucks blood. Victims can be asymptomatic for years, but can infect others through-blood transfusions. There is no effective blood screening test. The disease attacks the body's immune system, causing an enlarged heart, colon, or esophagus. Thus far, only a few deaths from Chagas' disease have been reported in the U.S., all linked to blood transfusions. About 370,000 Hispanic immigrants are infected. [End quoting]

Sounds like another World Health Organization (WHO) project.

THEY ALL HAD A GOOD TIME, TOO

From *MIDDLE AMERICAN NEWS*, 1/97, [quoting:]

At a meeting to figure out how to alleviate hunger in the world, the U.N. Food and Agriculture organization staged the "World Food Summit" in Rome, Italy, at a cost of \$10 million. Welfare agency workers in New York said they could have given Thanksgiving Day dinners to 5 million people for that amount. [End quoting]

You don't really think this organization was set up to help the poor—or do you?!

MORALS AND ETHICS CONSIDERED EXPENDABLE

From the INTERNET, 4/17/97, Candace C. Turner <ringup@JUNO.COM>, [quoting:]

When morals and ethics are considered expendable;

When Personal Property Rights are held only at the whim of our Government;

When Political Correctness over-rides The Bill Of Rights;

When a whole generation scorns their right to Vote or bases that vote on Sex Appeal instead of ability;

How, then, will we stand before the World as a Free Nation? [End quoting]

AMEN!

FORGIVING WORDS

We all have suffered through humiliating moments. Here is how one man settled the score for good.

From GUIDEPOSTS, P.O. Box 1479, Carmel, NY 10512, [quoting:]

As I look back over my life, despite thousands of other mistakes and embarrassments, my most humiliating moment was in my seventh-grade class at Immanuel Lutheran School in Mount Vernon, N.Y.

Our teacher had ordered me to remove my shirt and stand at my desk. What bothered him was that I had my shirt collar up—an adolescent style in the '50s. He was going to make an example of me.

I had turned 13 only a few months before. All eyes were on me, and it felt as if they were burning through the back of my neck. I wanted to scream or cry or die. My heart beat so loudly in my ears I was sure others could hear it too.

"Take off your shirt," the teacher ordered.

I promised not to wear my collar up again.

"I've caught you twice already," he said, striding to my desk. "Take the shirt off!"

He had me and he knew it. I lived deep in the south side of town in a tenement on a street where kids often wore motorcycle jackets, greased their hair, talked tough and tried to look unafraid. Immanuel was on the north side, the right side of the tracks. Every night I crossed those tracks to go home to a block where kids wore their collars up.

"Take it off!" the teacher ordered. He blocked any chance I might have to run.

"Please..." I begged.

"Now!" he said. I unbuttoned my shirt and slipped it off, draping it behind me on my chair. My undershirt had holes. Several people giggled. The teacher, who had been standing beside my desk, marched back to the front of the classroom. I stood alone.

I heard my heart beat louder in my ears. For a 13-year-old boy, this was my worst secret. The undershirt with its holes for all to see proved I was poor, a south-sider, unworthy of the north-siders in the classroom.

I wrote about that incident in *GUIDEPOSTS* several years ago. I received many letters after the article appeared, but there was one that touched me more than all the others. "Dear Walter," it began. "I'm really sorry I made you take off your shirt and embarrassed you in front of the class. I had forgotten all about it until I read your story this morning, and oh, how ashamed I am that I did something like that—especially since I was there to teach you and the other young people love."

My former teacher explained in his letter how when he was a boy he was picked on mercilessly by street toughs, and the bullying had left a painful impression on him.

"Walter, I was at least as afraid of you as you were of me. I thought you were the *Dead End Kids* and *Blackboard Jungle* all rolled into one. Who knows how much your inner self saw me as your threatening father, and how much my inner self saw you as the bullies who had terrified me as a child? I'm so sorry things weren't different, and I know that as the adult it was up to me to set the example."

To help me understand his state of mind at the time he wrote about terrible hardships that he, his wife and family had endured. And he expressed a wish: "I hope and pray that you forgive me."

This is the letter I wrote back:

"Your letter touched me deeply. It took great courage to write and to share so much of yourself. Your sensitive words bring my life full circle in the most beautiful way possible. The greatest risk of all is to be vulnerable and to allow others to see us as we really are. Well, you've taken the greatest of risks and I could not be more moved.

"The truth is, you were one of several people I hated when I was a child, and I added quite a few more names to my list as I became an adult. Painfully, I can remember times when my anger and hatred nearly consumed me. Not anymore. I forgave you years ago. I even forgave me.

"What I understand today is you tried your best with all you had. I'm sure you blossomed in the classroom over the years and undoubtedly, at a later time would have found a child like me a little easier to handle but you should also recognize that you did teach me. You are my teacher. Just today you taught me again, about the extraordinary power of forgiveness.

"I was so moved by your candor and kindness that I called my friend Norman Vincent Peale, explained how you had seen the article in *GUIDEPOSTS*, and I read your letter to him

"Tell him the truth," Norman advised me.

"What's that?" I asked.

"That you love him."

"I do."

As you might expect, my former teacher wrote back—and, of course, Norman Vincent Peale wrote too: "This incident will ever be remembered by me as one of the most inspiring I have known." [End quoting]

Never underestimate the power of an apology and forgiveness—no matter what the circumstances. Life is a classroom for experiences and lessons. Why hate the teacher whom you drew to you, on a higher level of consciousness, to play their role in assisting you to have the lessons and experiences you need?

saddam hussein pict

CHAPTER 3

SIGMUND FREUD: ANTICHRIST DEVIL by Eustace Mullins 5/10/97

Few Americans realize that the principal tool of Communist penetration in the United States is the pseudoscience of psychotherapy. Not only have many patriots who opposed Communist subversion been imprisoned for life without trial, but many others have been rendered helpless, their fortunes seized, and their exposures of Communist treachery discredited by the accusation of "mental illness". In 1848, Karl Marx issued his *Communist Manifesto*, detailing the Jewish plans for subduing the gentile, but it was not until 1896 that the most workable system to achieve this goal, "psychoanalysis", was unveiled by his fellow-Jew Sigmund Freud.

pict. freud

No one suspected at the time that Freud (pronounced Fraud) had invented the indispensable tool for the biological parasite in his quest to gain absolute control over the life of the gentile host. Psychoanalysis became the instrument which the Jew used to probe the deepest recesses of the mind of the host, thereby learning his best secrets, as well as the hidden fears and doubts which could be exploited by a clever enemy in order to become his master.

Beginning his career as a medical student, Freud concentrated on the study of the nervous system, obtaining a degree in neuropathology. Up to this point, his education had been strictly scientific, conducted according to methodical Teutonic principles of study in the Vienna Medical School. He now abandoned these principles. For the rest of his life, he would be the typical Jewish adventurer, seeking one path after the other until he hit upon the one which would lead him to fame, riches and, more important than either of these to the Jew, power over the gentile host.

For several years, Freud experimented with "cocaine therapy" or, as a policeman might put it, drug peddling. The only outcome of this was that he himself became a convert, and continued to use cocaine throughout his life. Even today, cocaine is the favored drug of the wealthy and influential Jews in New York and Hollywood who control the minds of the American people through television and the news media. They are loyal to cocaine solely because it was the drug of their master, Sigmund Freud.

After Freud discovered that putting his patients on cocaine brought him no sudden wealth or prominence, he began to cast about for some quicker road to fortune. He seemed to have found it when he began to practice hypnosis on his patients. For more than a century, hypnosis had been the favorite practice of Europe's most notorious charlatans, Mesmer, Cagliostro, and Charcot. Freud now became the legitimate heir of these mountebanks. But how did he escape being branded by their well deserved reputations as necromancers and frauds? Early in his use of hypnosis, he made the fortunate discovery that it was no longer necessary to put his patients "under", or to subject them to hypnosis in order to get them to reveal their innermost secrets. He had only to establish a suitable atmosphere of confidence and trust, and they

would begin to talk about themselves. As Thomas Szasz, the famed critic of this pseudo-science, revealed in his book, *THE MYTH OF PSYCHOTHERAPY*, "Psychotherapy is merely talking."

Freud's reputation as the great inventor of an entire new science rests solely on his discovery that he could get his patients to talk about themselves without the use of hypnosis. Nevertheless, much of the mumbojumbo of psychotherapy was invented in order to create a hypnotic atmosphere. Freud's discovery freed him from the stigma of the charlatans of hypnosis, and put a great distance between him and his discredited predecessors such as Mesmer, the father of Mesmerism. Nevertheless, the practice of psychoanalysis depends heavily on creating and maintaining a pseudo-hypnotic atmosphere in the psychiatrist's office. The patient must be persuaded to relax, to place himself completely in the power of the psychiatrist, and to reveal his innermost self. Thus the pseudoscience of psychotherapy functions only because it is pseudo-hypnosis. No wonder that Freud is pronounced Fraud!

Once he had broken away from the unsavory reputation of his predecessors, and had put the stigma of charlatanism behind him, Fraud began to build an elaborate facade of intellectual supports for his new "science" of psychotherapy. This proved to be a difficult task, for, as Szasz has pointed out, psychotherapy is merely talk. It would not be easy to erect a vast superstructure of scientific procedures around the basic principle of a patient lying on a couch and chatting about himself to a listening doctor. Nevertheless, Freud, exhibiting all of the talent of his race for bewildering and misleading the gentile host, proceeded to do just that. He devised a "system" based upon incorrect and often obscene theories, using these theories to attack the basis of all family life by such developments as the "Oedipus complex".

Not only has an "Oedipus complex" never existed, but Freud either completely misunderstood or more likely, purposely misrepresented, the entire basis of this "complex". He based it upon an ancient Greek myth, the story of Oedipus. Although he first advanced the theory of the Oedipus complex in 1910, it was not until 1920 that he published three essays which purported to establish the foundations for this theory, the projection of "infantile sexuality".

It has been said that the Oedipus complex is the nuclear complex of the neuroses and constitutes the most important part of their content, because this complex, appearing early in life, is the basis for all later neuroses. It represents the peak of infantile sexuality, which Freud claims appears in the first year of infancy, and forever after molds the nervous structure of the adult. In fact, there is not the slightest evidence that "infantile sexuality" reaches its peak in the first year of life, or that there is even such a phenomenon as infantile sexuality. Of course, this did not bother Freud. If there were no such thing as infantile sexuality, he would invent it. He built the Oedipus complex by tacking his pet sexual obsessions onto the myth of an ancient Greek King, Laius of Thebes. When Laius consulted the Delphic Oracle to divine his future, he was told that a child born to him and his wife Jocasta would become his murderer. A son, Oedipus, was born to him, and he had the child set out to die on Mt. Cithaeron. Years later, Oedipus, who had been rescued and brought up by a kindly shepherd who found him lying there, met Laius on a narrow path. After a quarrel as to who had the right of way, they fought, and Oedipus killed him. He continued on to the city of Thebes, where he met Laius' widow, Jocasta, who was also his mother, and married her. The shepherd then appeared, and revealed the true origin of Oedipus, who was overcome by remorse. He blinded himself, while Jocasta hanged herself. This legend, typical of its overtones of traditional Greek tragedy, had deep implications that we must become aware of our identity if we are to lead satisfactory lives, but Freud showed no understanding of this. Instead, he completely distorted the legend by claiming that every

male child, even in the first year of infancy, as it writhes in torments of infantile sexuality, is bedeviled by jealousy of the father, whom the child wants to kill so that he can have sex with his mother. Only a Jew could bring to a traditional myth such perversion and such distortion. As Szasz points out, the Freudian elements, jealousy of the father and the desire to have intercourse with the mother, are completely lacking in the original myth. Donald Wormell, writing in the *Encyclopedia Britannica*, notes that the Freudian interpretation has no similarity to the classical Greek story, because Oedipus as an infant had no jealousy of his father, whom he did not know, or any desire to have intercourse with his mother, whom he did not know.

Despite these inconsistencies, Freud claimed that much of the neurosis of the twentieth century was caused by the Oedipus complex. The frustration of the infant, being unable either to kill the father or to have sex with the mother, became "repressed", and was thus mentally affected for the rest of his life. This tissue of distortions, falsities, and perversions became the cornerstone of Freud's entire "science" of psychotherapy. Freud's reputation as "the father of psychoanalysis" rests upon the Oedipus complex.

The second foundation of the Freudian system is Freud's "theory of repressed homosexuality". Early in the course of his hypnotic treatment of patients, Freud had encountered a number of wealthy and dissolute aristocrats who, wearying of the usual vices of drug addiction, gambling and alcoholism, had taken up the practice of sexual perversion. After "treating" a number of these perverts, whose real problem was not so much their "homosexuality" as their boredom and their ability to spend as much money as they wished to purchase partners for their perverted acts, Freud decided that "homosexual impulses" were universal among men. Why, then, did not most men engage in homosexual acts? Freud had a ready answer for this: They "repressed" their homosexual impulses.

Now that he had created the problem, Freud had only to erect a "scientific" foundation for it. This proved to be a simple task for one of his racial duplicity and lack of morals. He appropriated the greatest figure of Western culture, Leonardo da Vinci, to carry the banner of his new theory. Freud decided that Leonardo da Vinci must have been a homosexual. Da Vinci had once been brought before a court on a charge of homosexuality, and had been acquitted. No other evidence existed that he had been a homosexual, and it had been several centuries since anyone had been around who could testify about it one way or the other. But Freud, the Jewish mountebank, found this important in order to denigrate da Vinci because he was a great non-Jewish artist.

After a notable lack of success in his efforts to find any basis for his theory that da Vinci had been a homosexual, Freud finally came upon a rather dubious recording of a faint childhood memory, in which Leonardo da Vinci wrote that a vulture came down to his cradle and struck him in the mouth with his tail. Eureka! Freud had found what he had been looking for. He immediately interpreted this childhood memory, or dream, as an illustration of Leonardo's "passive homosexuality". Flimsy though this basis was, it became the cornerstone of Freud's theory of universal repressed homosexuality among men. Unfortunately, as Freud's disciples have desperately sought to conceal for many years, Thomas Szasz reveals that Freud's entire theory was wrong because of his defective scholarship. He had based his theory on a German text in which the translator had incorrectly translated Leonardo's word for "toy kite" as a "vulture". The tail of a toy kite had dragged across Leonardo's cradle and brushed him. Freud, relying upon the wrong translation of the kite as a vulture, devised a complicated sexual theory by which Leonardo's memory of the bird's tail touching his mouth had been the conscious fulfillment of his subconscious homo-

sexual desires!

From a wrong understanding, Freud now erected a vast superstructure of Leonardo's entire art and, subsequently, the art of the Western nations being created from his homosexual nature. In so doing, Freud unleashed a terrible weapon against Western civilization. Single-handedly, he created the enormous problem of the "gay" communities which plague America today. By identifying the greatest artist of Western culture as a homosexual, Freud gave an aura of respectability to a sexual deviation. By his claim that all men have "repressed" homosexual desires, he unleashed a torrent of sexual acts and a great blow against established family life. Young men who not only are searching for a career but who also have doubts about their sexual identity have only to abandon themselves to Freud's theories, and they can, simultaneously release all their "sexual repressions", thus avoiding the danger of terrible neuroses, but they can become great artists as well.

Only a Jew could have unleashed such a poisonous theory on the gentile community to further confuse and destroy it. Despite Freud's theories, scientists today have begun to doubt that there really is such a thing as a "homosexual impulse". Instead, they lean to the finding that there are sexual impulses which, in the absence of a member of the opposite sex, tend to turn to a member of the same sex, as in prison, the army or private schools. Such a finding, of course, is devastating to the "gay" community, which has sought to turn perverse impulses into a modern religion.

We could be accused of oversimplification if we sought to condemn the entire "science" of psychotherapy because its two principal foundations, Freud's theory of repressed homosexuality and the Oedipus complex, have been shown to be little more than the products of his cocaine-stimulated imagination. Realizing from the outset that Freud's theories might be subject to serious challenge, later practitioners of psychotherapy have sought to erect an even more complex superstructure of psychological theories to bolster their basic technique of "talk". In this campaign, they have produced millions of words, but not a single workable theory. As Thomas Szasz points out:

"Psychotherapy is secular ethics. It is the religion of the formally irreligious—with its language which is not Latin but medical jargon; with its codes of conduct, which are not ethical but legalistic; and with its theology, which is not Christianity, but positivism."

For several years, before fixing upon his theories of psychotherapy, Freud had experimented with various other "treatments", such as electrotherapy, baths and massages. The German Dr. Wilhelm Erb (1840-1921), in his *Handbuch der Elektrotherapie*, described his technique for applying electric shock to the genitals, which later became a favorite form of torture in Latin America. Erb "assumed" that the victims on whom he practiced this technique had "neurosis". During World War I, the most notorious practitioner of electric shocks was Dr. Julius Wagner-Jauregg, professor of psychiatry at the Vienna Medical School and a former teacher of Freud. Wagner-Jauregg was fond of using heavy doses of electric shock on soldiers who suffered nervous breakdowns during artillery barrages in combat zones. Despite heavy criticism, Wagner-Jauregg continued to use electric shock on soldiers throughout the war. Freud defended him against his critics, calling the soldiers "malingerers".

In 1920, the Austrian War Ministry, in response to the public outcry against Wagner-Jauregg, conducted a lengthy investigation of his mistreatment of soldier patients. Freud wrote a long memorandum defending

Wagner-Jauregg's torture technique of electrotherapy. "I know," wrote Freud in Wagner-Jauregg's defense, "that the motivating force in his treatment of patients is his humaneness". This was a typical Jew view of humaneness.

Electrotherapy was later replaced by chemotherapy, although Freud continued to use some electrotherapy on his patients. He explained it as "pretense treatment", which he used to "keep in touch" with his patients. Throughout his career, Freud was obsessed by sexual imaginings, which ranged from the ludicrous to the obscene. In one of his letters to Ludwig Binswanger, he wrote: "I have always lived on the ground floor in the basement of the building... I already found one for religion when I stumbled on the category 'neurosis of mankind'." One of his last writings (July 12, 1938) contained this "gem": "As a substitute for penisenvy, identification with the clitoris; neatest expression of inferiority, source of all inhibitions."

During the erecting of his psychotherapy empire, Freud was on the lookout for a suitable heir apparent. At one time he had selected a young non-Jewish doctor, Jung, after quarreling with his Jewish disciples. Jung spent much time with him, but found himself unable to accept Freud's wild theories, and he finally dismissed Freud's work as "too Jewish".

IN MEMORIES, DREAMS AND REFLECTIONS, Jung wrote (p.149):

"Above all, Freud's attitude towards the spirit seems to me highly questionable. Wherever in a person or in a work of art, an expression of spirituality (in the intellectual, not the supernatural senses) came to light, he suspected it, and insinuated that it was repressed sexuality."

It took Jung several years to realize that the earthbound Jew was unable to comprehend anything spiritual, having to interpret it in the grossest physical sense, and he finally parted company with him.

It was Thomas Szasz, in *THE MYTH OF PSYCHOTHERAPY*, who writes most revealingly of Freud's creation of "the science of psychotherapy" as an instrument of the Jew to be used to gain power over the gentiles. Szasz titled his chapter, "Sigmund Freud, the Jewish Avenger".(editor's note: Mr. Mullins uses the word "gentile" meaning all non-Jews, not just Christians).

Freud himself was born a Jew, was given the Jewish name of Schlomo after his grandfather, a rabbi, and remained a Jew.

Szasz further comments:

"The inconsistency between Freud's passionate anti-religious tirades and his profound commitment to Jewishness significantly highlights an important aspect of Freud's personality and predilections, namely, his anti-gentilism. The popular image of Freud as an enlightened, emancipated irreligious person who, with the aid of psychoanalysis, 'discovered' that religion is a mental illness is pure fiction."

Szasz then defines the Freudian psyche permanently by writing: "Freud was throughout his life, a proud, chauvinistic, even vengeful Jew." Thus Freud's famed "irreligiousness" was merely his anti-Christian, antigentile bias. In his "science" of psychoanalysis, Freud focused the hatred of centuries which the biological parasite had cultivated against the host, a hatred irreconcilably rooted in the biological situation of the parasite that must live off the host, and that can have no existence without this relationship. Certainly the State of Israel typifies this relationship, as the entire budget of Israel is built on "loans", "grants", "gifts", and the sale of worthless Israeli bonds.

David Bakan writes of Freud's Jewishness:

"Freud believed that anti-Semitism was practically ubiquitous in either latent or manifest form; the broad masses of England were anti-Semitic 'as everywhere'; he refused to accept royalties of Hebrew and Yiddish translations of his works; he was sympathetic to Zionism from the first days of the movement and was acquainted with and respected Herzl. (Editor's note: Herzl died of syphilis, his entire dream of a Jewish empire in Palestine being the product of the decaying brain of a Jew in the last and most violent stages of paresis). Freud's son was a member of the Kadimah, a Zionist organization, and Freud himself was an honorary member of it."

Szasz further notes:

"In addition, Freud displayed his devotion to Judaism in the letters he wrote, the friends and enemies he made, and, last but not least, in his anti-gentilism. His interpretations of Western civilization, Oedipus was not a king, but a complex; Leonardo was not a heroic painter but a homosexual pervert."

The final statement of Szasz on Freud's racial bias is the most important (p.146). "One of Freud's most powerful motives in his life was the desire to inflict vengeance on Christ." At last we get to the meat of the matter! Psychoanalysis is the creation of a hate-filled Jew whose life was devoted to vengeance against Christ. Could any more definitive analysis of the satanic origins of "the science of psychotherapy" be made?

The sick theories of this modern anti-Christ did not long remain theories. They were quickly put to use by the Jews, not only in treating the "mentally ill", but in the techniques of attaining and holding political power. The psychiatrists, interviewing the patients, most of them from wealthy and influential gentile families, learned trade secrets and political information invaluable to the Jewish dreams of enslaving the gentiles. These secrets were quickly turned to advantage in their war against the Christians. They spawned a host of "psychiatrists" that rapidly infested all of the gentile nations, and then turned up as the directors of mental institutions.

The hapless patient who revealed an attitude critical of the Jews, or who was even suspected of such thoughts, was treated mercilessly. The mental institutions provided the Jews with the ideal laboratory for their wildest dreams of power over the non Jews. They now had an endless supply of victims, completely helpless, whose screams would never be heard by the outside world. What tortures, what murders, have gone on in these institutions in the fifty years since the Freudians took over their operations can only be imagined. Most of the victims will never talk—they are dead. The survivors are "insane"; their stories of their sufferings at the hands of the Jews are merely the products of disordered minds.

Nevertheless, we do know that not even the highest government officials have been immune from Freudian "correction" when they strayed from Jewish programs. We have only to remember that when our first Secretary of Defense, James Forrestal, hesitated to commit our entire military power to the support of the State of Israel, within a few hours he suffered a "breakdown". He was taken to Bethesda

Naval Hospital and soon went out the window to his death. In April 1936, Congressman Marion Zioncheck, denounced J. Edgar Hoover on the floor of Congress. Already known as a "maverick", Zioncheck had gone too far. Soon afterwards, he was taken under mysterious circumstances to a Washington, D.C., mental hospital, St. Elizabeth's (where the patriot Ezra Pound was held as a political prisoner for thirteen years without trial, and then released because of pressure from his friends). Zioncheck was kept incommunicado at St. Elizabeth's, and treated by several of the nation's leading psychiatrists. After several attempts to escape, he was released in what his friends described as a "drugged, zombie-like condition". He returned to Seattle, and soon fell to his death from the fifth floor of the Arctic Building. The verdict was suicide, but most people interviewed in Seattle believed he had been pushed. He was succeeded by Warren G. Magnuson, who enjoyed a long political career in Washington, and who was very careful not to offend the Jews.

Shortly after the Crash of 1929, when many gentiles had been impoverished by Jewish money manipulation, the psychiatrists began to show their hands as the new masters. In May, 1930, an International Congress on Mental Hygiene was held in Washington, D.C. Four thousand psychiatrists from fifty-three countries were welcomed by the President of the United States, Herbert Hoover. The new masters drafted a charter stating that they alone had the knowledge to "understand and control human behavior... Psychiatry must now decide what is to be the immediate future of the human race."

The new pronouncement also boasted that "Psychiatrists alone possess the superior intelligence and knowledge to alter materially and permanently human behaviors." Many of the bureaucrats got the message, and promptly signed up for lengthy series of "analysis". Soon afterwards, a number of Communist cells were established in the government bureaus, chief among them the Harold Ware cell. Ware was merely the office boy for Felix Frankfurter, who masterminded this Communist group, placing Communist agents high in the official levels of every government department in Washington.

One of the principal speakers at the Washington Congress of Psychiatrists was Dr. Donald A. Nicholson, a psychiatrist from Seattle who was the president of the Washington State Medical Assn. Nicholson was later to examine Congressman Zioncheck shortly before his "suicide". He committed thousands of Americans to mental hospitals, all of them on his unsupported testimony that they were "insane". Few of them ever saw freedom again. His most famous victim was the great Hollywood actress Frances Farmer. Frances who? A curtain of silence has been rung down on one of America's greatest talents. When she flashed across the Hollywood screen, she became known as "the American Garbo". Today her movies are never shown on television or in the theatres. Those Hollywood figures who knew her refuse to mention her name. They are terrified that they, too, might have to endure the sufferings visited on her. What happened to Frances Farmer? A reporter spent five years investigating her story, which he recently published, *Shadowland*.

As a beautiful young woman in Seattle, Washington, Frances Farmer, was known as a brilliant, outspoken person. She won a newspaper essay contest for a free trip to Russia. Despite warnings from her mother and her friends, she insisted on taking the trip. When she returned, the reporters tried to get her either to praise or condemn the Communist experiment, but she replied, quite honestly, that in such a brief trip she had not seen enough to make a decision. The Communists decided that this meant she was really sympathetic; but did not want to declare herself. Soon afterwards, she was "discovered" by talent scouts, and went to Hollywood. Her radiant beauty proved to be very photogenic, and her movies were an immediate

sensation. Because of her famous trip to Russia, she was supposed to be a rabid Communist sympathizer, although she had said or done nothing to support such a theory. The large community of Jewish Communists in Hollywood, who completely controlled the making and distribution of movies, entertained her and raved about her beauty. She was then asked to become a Communist courier. She indignantly refused, being an extremely proud and intelligent White girl who had no interest in Communism. The Hollywood Jews were infuriated and frightened by Frances Farmer's refusal. They had supposed she was one of them, and had taken her into their confidence. Now she knew the identity of every prominent Communist in Hollywood. At a secret conference, they resolved that she must be disposed of. An "accident" to such a prominent star would be too risky. The Jews decided that "psychoanalysis" was the answer to their dilemma. She would be railroaded to an insane asylum. Any accusations she might make would then be ignored.

At the very height of her fame, while everyone was predicting she would win an Academy Award, Frances Farmer was invited to a party at the home of a Jewish producer. She was given a drug during this party. When she drove away, she was soon stopped by a policeman, who claimed she had committed a minor traffic violation. Instead of giving her a ticket, he immediately took her before a judge, although it was late at night. The judge claimed that she was "confused", and in what could only have been a prearranged plan, he committed her to a mental asylum. Reporters made a complete reversal of their usual practice when a movie star gets into trouble. Instead of headlining Frances Farmer's predicament, they were told not to write about it! From that day on, her name was rarely mentioned in the press.

For six years, Frances Farmer was forced to endure horrors which, even without the drugs and shock treatments which she was given on a daily basis, would have destroyed anyone's mind. After a few days in a California mental hospital, she was transferred to a state mental hospital, Steilacoom, near Seattle, Washington, ostensibly so that her mother could visit her, but actually to remove her from any contact with anyone in Hollywood. Many years later, a reporter, William Arnold, spent five years tracing the record of Frances Farmer during her years in Steilacoom. He discovered that the orderlies at Steilacoom were mostly convict trusties from McNeill Island Penitentiary on the other side of Puget Sound. He also discovered that Steilacoom was known as "the brothel of Ft. Lewis". Each evening, drunken soldiers from Ft. Lewis paid the convicts five dollars each and were admitted to certain wards. Here the convicts held down the women chosen by the soldiers, who then took their will. Arnold found inmates who could recall seeing Frances Farmer, easily the most beautiful and desirable of the inmates, being held down by the convicts while she was being gang-raped by the drunken soldiers. Even the most diseased Jewish mind has never claimed that such horrors went on in the German concentration camps as were nightly enacted at Steilacoom.

To nullify any complaints from Frances Farmer, the orderlies regularly gave her bad reports, claiming that she was "uncooperative". Since she was being forcibly held down during these outrages, her cooperation or lack of it does not seem to have presented any problem, but the Jewish doctors were eager to get this diagnosis. The entry of "uncooperative" by the name of any patient in a mental institution means that any and every possible form of drugs, "treatment" and other punishment is necessary. Frances Farmer was given massive doses of electric shock treatment every week. She was forced to endure medieval form of hydrotherapy by which she was thrown into a tub of ice water for periods of six to eight hours. During the agony of these ordeals, she chewed her lips to pieces. After four months of "treatment", her spirit had been broken. She appeared before the psychiatrists and agreed to "cooperate".

immediately held a press conference to display his latest triumph. In a typical example of Communist "selfticism" and "confession", Frances Farmer gave her performance. "I was rude and disrespectful," she told the reporters. "I was very, very sick."

"I think this case demonstrates how successfully antisocial behavior can be modified," stated Dr. Nicholson. "Three months ago, this woman was mentally unresponsive, and today she is being returned to her family completely cured. This marks a significant victory for the mental hygiene movement in Washington."

Because of her fame as a movie star, Frances Farmer was chosen to be publicly exhibited as an example of the triumph of Freudian theories. The power of the psychiatrists had mushroomed during the war, as psychiatrists were stationed with each unit, just as Communists commissars were placed in each combat unit of the Red Army to identify and arrest any dissenters. As the sole victors of World War II, the Jews rapidly extended the influence of psychotherapy over every aspect of American life. In 1946, Harry Truman signed the National Mental Health Act, which brought "mental health" organizations into almost every community in America. These organizations quickly became local outposts of the State of Israel, seeking out and punishing those Americans who were afflicted with "the running sores of anti-Semitism", as the Jewish Gestapo group, the Anti-Defamation League, characterized anyone who criticized the subversion of the American government by the State of Israel.

No sooner had Dr. Nicholson released Frances Farmer than he received anxious messages. The news that their victim was no longer imprisoned terrified the Hollywood Communists. Dr. Nicholson was instructed to seize her and return her to Steilacoom. Her freedom had lasted less than two weeks. She was now to endure six years of concentrated treatment intended for only one purpose: To destroy her mind so that she would never be able to identify the Hollywood Communists. She was immediately put back on the weekly schedule of shock treatments. This medical boon to mankind came about when two Italians watched the convulsions of a pig after it had been accidentally electrocuted. At first they were merely amused; but they suddenly realized it would be great sport to try this technique on human beings, and electroconvulsive shock treatment was born. The technique called for sending 70 to 130 volts of electricity through the temples of the victim for a tenth of a second. This destroys large numbers of brain cells, and causes years of headaches, permanent loss of memory, and other unpleasant side effects. The benefits of this treatment, as years of experimentation on many thousands of patients has proved beyond all question, are nonexistent. For this reason, electric shock treatments have been outlawed in most European countries for many years. The United States, being firmly in the grip of the Jews, is the only developed nation which still practices this form of barbarism.

Besides enduring the weekly shock treatments, Frances Farmer, who had been consigned back to Steilacoom at a court hearing at which she was not even present, now became the victim of a new operation, the CIA LSD experiments. It was recently revealed that she was the first person chosen to receive the LSD dosages. A Bronx Jew, Dr. Sidney Gottlieb, joined the CIA to direct the LSD program, which he personally operated from 1951-1956. Through Teddy Kollek, a Jewish terrorist who was a close friend of Allen Dulles, Gottlieb obtained Dulles' direct approval of the entire scheme. Kollek, presently mayor of Jerusalem, was at that time in this country illegally to raise money for the Jewish terrorist organization, Haganah. He lived in Manhattan in a rent-free apartment, above the Copacabana night club, provided by its Jewish owners. Kollek was the only non-official person invited to Allen Dulles' home for parties, and at one of these gatherings, he was introduced to Jim Angleton, later director of Special Operations for the CIA, who

became a "Zionist" director of the CIA. Through this alliance, CIA funds were used to pay the entire budget of the Israeli Intelligence Service, while CIA agents all over the world were instructed that Israeli interests came first. They were directed to turn over all information on Arab economic and military operations to the Jews. With this inside information, which the Arabs themselves furnished to the CIA under an agreement set up by Allen Dulles, the Israelis were able to win each confrontation with the Arabs. The CIA also paid King Hussein one million dollars a year for his private spending on blondes, airplanes and fast cars, as his country, Jordan, was penniless. In return, Hussein furnished the CIA complete information on all conferences of the Arab leaders. It was in retaliation for these CIA operations that the Arabs formed the Arabs, we would still enjoy low prices for oil. Every dollar we spend at the gas pumps is a fine which we pay for helping the Israelis, but your friendly local newspaper is not going to give you this information.

Richard Helms now became Gottlieb's immediate superior in the LSD program. Because this program severely compromised the highest officials of the United States, Helms was later able to have himself appointed Dulles' successor as Director of the CIA. When he faced dismissal and perjury charges, the personal file of this program enabled him to resign without punishment and to become Ambassador to Iran.

On April 3, 1953, Helms sent a memo to Dulles, requesting "the covert use of chemical and biological materials" to develop controls over possible agents, foreign officials and other targets of CIA infiltration. In Nov. 1953, Dr. Gottlieb entertained a group of gentile scientists from the Army Chemical Corps, Special Operations Division, Ft. Detrick, MD. He secretly gave them large doses of LSD in their drinks. One of the scientists, Frank Olson, leaped to his death after taking the dose. Twenty-five years later, his widow, learning of the true circumstances of his death, sued the government and obtained a three-million-dollar settlement.

Gottlieb also hired George White, a former narcotics agent, to operate a house of prostitution on Telegraph Hill in San Francisco. CIA officials and other government personages watched the activities through one-way glass and photographed the more unusual scenes. White's assistant in this operation was one Ike Feldman. This operation proved so successful that a second house was opened in Marin County, Calif., and a third in New York City. When Gottlieb retired in 1973, he had most memoranda concerning his activities destroyed. He had spent more than fifty million dollars without a trace.

For more than a year, Frances Farmer received daily doses of LSD, as well as the weekly shock treatments. Despite this cruel regimen, her tormentors were dismayed to find that her brain had not been destroyed. There remained one final horror for her, a treatment which was guaranteed to destroy the brain of anyone. This was prefrontal lobotomy, which in every case had totally destroyed the rational capacity of its victims. A Portuguese doctor, Edgar Muniz, developed this technique for "curing mental illness" in 1935. For this contribution to human well-being, he received the Nobel Prize in 1949. Hundreds of thousands of lobotomies were performed in Europe and the United States. Dr. Walter Freeman, head of the Dept. of Neurology at Georgetown University, became an enthusiastic advocate of prefrontal lobotomy after studying with Muniz. He refined Muniz' technique by inserting an ice-pick type of instrument under the eyelid into the brain, and severing the nerve from the cortex to the thalamus which directed rational thought. This turned the human victim into a vegetable. Presto! No more anger, no more protest. Instead, there was meek compliance with any order. Deciding it might be more prudent to practice his technique away from Washington, Dr. Freeman went to Spencer State Hospital at Spencer, W. Va. The Jewish doctors at this institution lined up thirty-five women patients, and in a brilliant display of virtuosity, he lobotomized them one after the other.

Learning of this triumph, the CIA asked him to go to Steilacoom to lobotomize Frances Farmer. As a cover, he first lobotomized twelve other women patients. Frances Farmer was then brought in, and told that the doctor wished to examine her. To attendants seized her by the arms, and Dr. Freeman quickly inserted the ice pick into her brain. Two seconds later, Frances Farmer had become a human vegetable, her memory destroyed and her brain barely functioning, she was no longer a threat to the Hollywood Communist conspirators.

A few months later, satisfied that her memory was gone, the CIA authorized Dr. Nicholson to release Frances Farmer. Her years of horror were over. On March 23, 1950, she left Steilacoom. She was only thirty-six years old. Despite her ordeal, some traces of her former beauty remained, but when she tried to resume her acting career, she found she could not remember lines or follow directions. She died alone and in poverty in Indianapolis a few years later. Yet, even today, those who ordered her torture and destruction still fear the mention of her name. Not only does the blackout of her films remain in effect, but William Arnold found no one in Hollywood willing to be quoted about her fate.

We know the fate of Frank Olson and Frances Farmer only because those dedicated to their memories spent years fighting to uncover their tragic stories. We do not know the fate of many thousands of other victims of the Jewish pseudo-science of psychotherapy, because no one mourns them or remembers their names. They, too, were done to death by drug overdoses, shock treatments, or the Freeman ice-pick treatment. We must act at once to save thousands of other potential victims from the Jewish terrorists. We must outlaw electric shock treatments as humane nations have done; we must outlaw the practice of pseudo-therapy such as psychoanalysis, ice-pick in the brain, and indiscriminate use of LSD and other drugs in the mental institutions. Unless we act quickly, thousands more will die, the victims of Jewish sadism and Freud's poisonous legacy. This Jew converted the shameless charlatanism of a few eighteenth-century necromancers into a worldwide system for "treating the mentally ill", solely because of his anti-gentilism and his hatred of Christ. Freud gave the Jews their most powerful weapon against us. We must stop them now.

BIBLIOGRAPHY:

THE MYTH OF PSYCHOTHERAPY—by Thomas Szasz.

SHADOWLAND; THE SEARCH FOR FRANCES FARMER—by William Arnold, McGraw Hill, New York City, N.Y. 1978.

"SEX, DRUGS, AND THE CIA", Saturday Review, Feb. 3, 1979.

One single columnist spoke up in her behalf. That was John Rosenfield, at the time of her initial arrest, [quoting:]

WHAT HAPPENED TO FRANCES FARMER SHOULDN'T HAVE HAPPENED AT ALL!

Just when the movie industry is winning the public's admiration, Hollywood breaks out in a rash of petty scandals. It is not a tribute to a part of the press that some of these episodes have been played well beyond their merits as news.

It was the lesser of sagacity that the industry permitted some of these affairs to get out of hand. The Frances Farmer Incident should never have happened. This unusually gifted actress was no threat against law and order or the public safety. Something that began as merely a traffic reprimand grew into a case of personal violence, a serious charge and a jail sentence.

And all because a sensitive high-strung girl was on the verge of a nervous breakdown.

Miss Farmer, who is no prodigy of emotional stability or sound business management, needed a lawyer one unhappy night last winter. A helping hand might have extradited her immediately from nothing more than a traffic violation. The terrible truth is that she stood alone, and lost. [End quoting]

Rosenfield's was the only note of compassion. Tile rest of the press coverage followed the lethal lead of Lolly Parsons, who snickered: "Hollywood Cinderella Girl has gone back to the ashes on a liquor-slicked highway"

PSYCHIATRISTS' TESTIMONY SAID WORTHLESS IN COURT by Gene Blake

LOS ANGELES—Testimony of psychiatrists should not be permitted in court because they do not know any more about their subject than laymen, a National Homicide Symposium was told here recently.

Jay Ziskin, a psychologist and professor of counseling at California State University, Los Angeles, said psychiatric testimony about the prior mental condition of a criminal defendant was worthless.

(Psychiatrists are medical doctors who specialize in mental disorders, whereas psychologists are specialists in human behavior who approach the subject from a non-medical viewpoint.)

"It does not meet the requirements of law of expert testimony," he told the symposium sponsored by the California District Attorneys Association. "It is highly unreliable, highly inaccurate."

"A psychiatric diagnosis is more likely to be wrong than right. It is even more likely wrong when trying to assess the mental condition at some time previous to the examination."

Ziskin said he hopes that the American Psychiatric Association would consider it unethical for psychiatrists to offer testimony in court on a prior mental condition because "they don't have the competence to do so."

"If you need a psychiatrist to tell you that the defendant is crazy," Ziskin said, "he isn't."

Ziskin added that studies had shown the experts are not better at making such diagnoses than are amateurs. Taking issue with Ziskin was Dr. Seymour Pollack, a noted psychiatrist who has given expert testimony in criminal cases including that of Sirhan Sirhan, the convicted assassin of Senator Robert F. Kennedy.

Pollack accused Ziskin of raising a "strawman". Although conceding that medicine—including psychiatry—is an art rather than a science, Pollack said the average layman recognizes that there are people who are "crazy".

"They recognize there are a few offenders who are crazy as well, mentally impaired enough to justify some excuse from criminal responsibility," Pollack said.

Taken from *The Los Angeles Times*—1977.

CHAPTER 4

AUTHOR DAVID ICKE IN TEHACHAPI A SERIES PART II

4/13/97 HATONN & DAVID ICKE

Editor's note: We are continuing to share the visit from author David Icke. This is a continuation of the transcription of our 4/13/97 meeting with Hatonn and David Icke and this is the second part.

HATONN: Well, we've the same questions asked of us. Why would we write so, just almost frenetically? Not the least of which would be my own typist who would ask this, you know—is why would we write, and we're two hundred volumes in less than seven years. And there isn't one of these books that's less than 200 pages. There are thousands of hours of this. You're going to have to live based upon the truth. And as Phil would ask you, "What is truth?" Truth is dealing with responsibility of individual, and universal oneness.

And then comes the next one: "What do you mean you are considering, sir, making agreements, even financial contractual agreements, with a George Bush if he is so bad?" Why not? Can you think of anyone else's money you would rather use? Money is not bad or good. Men may be bad or good, evil or good intended. And he has a lot of problems that I don't have.

And David is right. I don't have to concern myself with all of those negative feelings that you might have to confront, but you'll learn. You'll learn that the minute you've just put them aside and say, "Oh, okay, bring them on," because there's something about the media and the ones who will lie about you. And we could get into fisty-cuffs up here. He thinks he's Jesus Christ? Well, she got written up in Associated Press as calling herself Jesus Christ. And certainly Applewhite called himself Jesus Christ. My good gracious, there's just got to be a lot of them running around somewhere. Will the real ones stand up? [*David Icke stands*.] Well, let's talk about these people. See, there's one in every crowd that will take responsibility. Possibly every one of you should have been on your feet if you're teaching or saying the right thing, a messenger of truth.

A messenger of life truth is nothing more than bearing "dharma". It's not a name, any more than Christ is a name. If you're name is Mr. Christ, then I guess that's a name. And I repeat, if you walk up to me and say, "I am Jesus Christ" (in fact, I may need to call him Jesus now [*referring to David Icke*]), and you introduce yourself to me, I'm going to use the name you give me. If you don't know what your name is, who does?

But Jesus was also a term, but this was the name given by Saul of Tarsus. Now all of you think, maybe, that Saul had this remarkable revelation and met the Light, went blind for a while and then went about spreading the word of truth of Christ. Forget it. He went right on his way of bigotry, putting women down. I mean, I wonder, if the women's movement really, really understood what Paul wrote in that *Bible*, there would not be one woman left tolerating the Christian *Bible*. Does that make him bad? It makes him nothing, bad or good. He just was. But look at what has happened with a beautiful word that became the

name of who you can look back 2,000 years ago and say was a Christed being, this one Esu Immanuel, Jesus, the Christed.

The Masonic Order is waiting for the keystone to the pyramid of the illuminated ones. That is Jesus. If there are any Masons presented, you'll know exactly what I'm talking about. And so you have all of the evangelists coming on and it's all in the name of Jesus. Doesn't anybody see what you are talking about? "Oh, he shed his blood. Oh, he took our sins." Say what? Did you sin, and now he's going to take yours away from you so you that don't have to have any more responsibility. "You wait around, you goin' to get raptured." Well, I suggest you not hold your breath. Who is going to rapture you? You've already turned this Jesus chap into a human being, a physical entity. You can no longer, except for a few brief moments on Easter Sunday, relate to the fact that this is an energy form you're talking about, after the physical is past and gone beyond. "So, in the name of Jesus, who shed his blood and took my sins all I have to do is just believe that story is true." It's come a long way, baby. It used to be, well, you know, "in the name of Jesus, he will help me." No, now it is, "All you have to do is proclaim the name and it's over." No, it's not over.

You've missed the point. Religions have usurped your world. Incorrectly. Religions manipulate and control you because mankind is basically afraid. He knows he errs. And possibly he knows he deserves to be swatted down and therefore he expects his higher-self to make him pay. That's what it's about. And it's never going to work. You have to assume responsibility for what you are, what you think and what you intend, because God is going to look at one thing—your intent. You can't lie about it. You can even think you intend to do some good, but if it does not measure up with those Laws that have been birthed within you on birth day, you're going to fall short.

God is very, very simple. And yes, there is a place. We'll call it the gathering of souls. It's not limbo-land. It's where soul essence resonates in tune with God. And yet there are disadvantages to that dimension of experience. So you don't want to move into that dimension of experience until you've learned your cotton-pickin' lessons, because, in the world of physical dimension, you have the right to practice your intent, make your choices and do your actions in a physical sense of being-ness. You're going to get over there where you don't have any hands or legs or anything to help you out and it's going to be a space of confusion. Just because you pass the veil and cross the threshold, it depends on your level of understanding and your level of knowledge, knowingness, that determines where you are in this limbo-land.

And if you think you are going to go from the lowest of error-makers, with intentional contempt for the priceless treasures of Creator, and you think you're going to just hop over there into a better world of milk and honey, you're going to get stuck in the muck. It isn't that way. And it's time we worked together to get it squared away enough that, if we can prevent that all-out stupidity of pulverizing your planet, for instance. Since you are only illusion anyway, this whole experience, we talk about Hale-Bopp. What difference does it make what Hale-Bopp is? What are you?

So, you are coalesced energy, in only a sequence of activities of seeming motion, because you're like a sequence of lights going off and on. Perhaps it gives you the illusion of movement, but really it's just one little bulb going on and off, in sequence to the next. So your whole universe is built on a pulse, wave, electric motion, like a piston, just exactly like a piston. And eventually the concept is always in a spiraling form, without beginning, without end. And, depending on what frequency you use for your vibrations depends on whether or not you are visible. You are extremely slow motion and basically all we look at is

your energy form.

And all you can perceive of a higher-dimensioned being is a simple feeling of energy. Slow that energy down a little bit, and a little bit more and a little more, and at some point we are able to at least be visible to one another. And I'm talking about the generalities of a dimensional shift or a dimensional change.

This is one reason suicide is such an error in the mental thought processes of an individual. "I will just kill myself and end this misery." What do you think is going to be different over here, other than more confusion? Because the mind is the same, and you have now done away with that ability to deal with the mental things in a physical environment of choice. You're stuck there until you either go around again, and sometimes that's a long, long time in coming, but God has time. Perhaps you think you don't but that is only in the perception of the environment in which you find yourself.

All of these fantastic tales, as he mentions when you talk about fiction and nonfiction, ones will say, "Well it's so boring to be good. There's nothing entertaining about it. You're going to have responsibility in sex, responsibility in food, responsibility in dress, responsibility...Why, you're going to just stick us with responsibility." Well, why don't you try it? Confound it, you might find you like it. It opens whole new vistas of experience. And while all of those ones are running and hiding, or looking for those places to hide, they're going to find there wasn't any place to run and hide, especially from self.

But what has happened on your place, and I will refer most of you back seven or eight years when we first began to have these lessons, I had to get all of those books, those titles back there on that wall, out. So that's exactly what happened. Bruce can say six or seven years ago there was *Satan's Drummers*. We have got to have already written it down. I can't tell you individual truth about every tiny detail or happening or individual, but I can give you what is necessary for the whole, and tell you of the Universal One-ness. And it's not an easy job, but it's a challenging, rather fun job. I doubt David has actually been bored in 10 years. And when you think, "Well, I just learned about babies and children underground over at China Lake and this sort of thing Springmeier writes about." Well, my goodness, your chin goes down too, doesn't it? Well, son-of-a-gun, can you believe this? And then suddenly you have to believe this.

You have to understand that truth is that which is, while they're telling you all of this other garbage. But you only have to deal with the truth. And as long as you set your anchor in the truth of what is and the realization and the knowing about your association and your God and your self and your Creator and your Creation, you stop being so blameful: "Oh, my goodness." And after a while you get up and it's another nasty job, but somebody's got to do it, and so you get up and you say, "Oh, Hell let's just go do it. Let's just go do it. I can't wait for Joe to do it and I can't wait for Pollyanna to do it. She ain't ever going to do anything but tip around on her goody-two-shoes."

"But, this can't be reality," your brain will scream at you. "It is without all humanity, as in the terms of Higher-Universal-Man." But let me tell you something. This is what is the basest of man, Lower-Universal-Man. And that's why you have planets like Earth for you to experience. It's why you have messengers, teachers and angels, whatever you want to call them, that show up when you need them, if you're on the team. And it's the ability to confront truth, accept truth, weed out the trash and keep moving, because you know within it must be done, because it lays a foundation.

Ones can come and say, "Well, but if you ever want a real paper, you're going to have to do this and this and this and...". I don't want a real paper, then. Our paper reaches exactly the ones we need it to reach. And the most avid readers are your enemies. They're cheap about it, but that's to be expected, that runs in the lineage. Our job is not to explain it. Our job is simply to state it. And the more stating it, the safer it gets to state it. The more people pinpointing the truth, the less dangerous it is to any one.

It's why ones ask me, "Why would you point to this one or that one, or the other one and mention something about them? Won't that get them in trouble?" No. Publicity will save your ass. It is really going to be hard, for instance, to bump off David Icke now. Even five years ago he might not have been so missed for awhile, but the more publicly known you are—it's going to be harder to lie about you here in Tehachapi, after last week, ever again in this world. They can't bash you. They can try, but they're not going to make it. And worse than that, you see here, for these ones. David's got to go on out there because he has put his human stamp on this thing that he does. I have not put my human stamp on this thing. She's a typist. The truth is there, made available, and we haven't even hardly begun. So we will just keep right on going.

But you see, we don't have to concern with whether people believe us or do not believe us. And the less they believe us, the more they leave us alone. And in this particular area, I want the people left alone. Doris did a good job of telling them what they had done. You know, we have never asked for anything. We haven't asked for any attention, we have wanted nothing. And look what you've done. In five minutes you've destroyed, and it actually hurt their feelings. There is actually life and love in these beings. All you've got to do is reach in there and touch it. They were shamed, but that doesn't stop their editors from doing a job, does it? But you made some friends here that day. And the less attention ever called to this place, the more we're going to get done, because we are going to do some very magnificent things. And now we have people arguing over who's going to do it first for you. I just wish they'd get on with it.

But when these things begin to flow, some of the team can begin to back up a little bit and get a little rest. And then we can support so that it doesn't drain the life flow out of the ones like David that have to keep going. Because they are now a face, a personality, and they will grow and grow and grow and grow. And he is absolutely right, there's no one going touch him. He's not concerned about them, and the minute you stop being concerned about these buggers, that moment you start living. They haven't anything; they can not stand against the Truth. They can not and will not stand against the Light. So we're just going to keep uncovering and uncovering. And meanwhile, we need to get some remnants through. And we're going to do it. And in that journey, we'll be able to offer many, many things to many, many ones.

Are they going to depopulate this place? And when I say "they", don't assume God is going to knock you off. But, yes. Hurts your heart? Well, you've made that choice of allowing it to happen or stopping it, long, long, long ago. But we are going to evolve into a wondrous society because it has never occurred to us that it would be otherwise. And when it quits occurring to you that it might be otherwise, then is the day we start accomplishing things. And it's happening.

Everybody want a break?

Interrogate David.

DAVID: I'd just like to say a few things after that. First of all, different points. The thing that I think is most magnificent about *CONTACT* and makes it so different from any other publication I've come across is that, apart from my books, *CONTACT* has the same attitude towards life as me: If they believe it's true, they publish it. So many publications that talk about truth and talk about standing up for freedom, they are immediately starting to run back in fear of consequences for certain stuff, so that stuff stays out in the so-called magazines and papers that are speaking truth. I remember what Ghandi was apparently supposed to have said once: "Even if you are in a minority of one the truth is still the truth." I think *CONTACT*, for that reason among others, is a very unique publication.

I also recall something I've put in this book. There was an American comedian called Bill Hicks who's a very brave man, a very angry man, but he used humor brilliantly to expose a lot of the nonsense. Because when you look at what's going on in the world, a lot of it's funny. It is ludicrous. He used to finish his act talking about life and what it was, something that we've talked about this afternoon, how the physical world is just thought made physical. It's just an illusion. And he summed up life like this—I think it was brilliantly done—he said, "it's like a ride in an amusement park." And when you go on it, you think it's real because that's how powerful our minds are. The ride goes up and down, round and round. It has thrills and chills, and it's very brightly colored and it's very loud. And it's fun for awhile. Some have been on the ride for a long time and they are beginning to question, "is this real or is this just a ride." And others have remembered and they come back to us and they say, "hey, don't worry, don't be afraid ever, 'cause this is just a ride." And we kill those people. "Shut him up. We've got a lot invested in this ride. Shut him up. Look at my throes of worry. Look at my big bank account and my family. This has to be real."

It's just a ride, but we always kill those good guys who try to tell us that and let the demons run amok. But it doesn't matter because it's just a ride and we can change it anytime we want. No job, no savings of money, just a choice right now between fear and love. And what I think we've created is fear made physical. That's what we're looking at. And we can make this love made physical with another choice. And I couldn't agree more that one of the things, I guess the greatest thing I've remembered—because that's what we're doing, remembering—is there's no such thing as no choice. Just a series of choices, some which we'd like to make and some which we'd would rather not like to make. But they're just choices to be made.

I've got a four-year-old boy at home, in England and by the time I get home—and I've been away for six months in nine, and it's only just beginning—and that part of this is killing me. But I have a choice. I could choose not to do this or I could choose to do it. And I can't say, "I have no choice, I've got to do it," because I have a choice. I could choose not to do it, for a while. But in the end, the more you open up, the more the power within you, the direction within you urges, you on. And in the end, once you step on this conveyor belt and you start to see what's really happening in this world, there is no turning back, because you can't face yourself if you try to turn back, once you realize what's going on and the kind of world my four-year-old and other four-year-olds are going to live in, unless we wake up and take our power back. And that's all we need to do. It's just a choice, just a choice.

AUDIENCE: I have some thoughts generating along here with all these stories this morning. When we are studying with these enlightened beings of other realms, they point out that what we're, what you, what we seem to be talking about is the power of sound, or what Sia Baba would call Matrika-shaki. And he would describe how it would start at the solar plexus and come up Poushanti, the heart, where it's a

thousand times more powerful, as it moves to the throat with a thousand times more power, as it moves to the end of tongue with a thousand times more of that previous power. Before you spit it out, like venom from a snake, you take a thought and you think, "Is it the truth? Is it kind? Is it necessary?"

What I was going to ask you and Commander to both comment on is the meaning of those three positions right there. Because we're really wrapped up in truth here. Is it kind to talk about George Bush and some of his habits? And it sure seems necessary to expose these things. At the end of your statements on that, my real question is, how do know if you're doing the right thing?

DAVID: Right. Well, I've got one now. First of all is it kind? Depends on what level of kindness you're talking about. I don't guess George Bush thinks it's kind to reveal what he's been doing. But when you're looking at a "George Bush's" true evolutionary situation, it is very kind to him to reveal what he's doing, as a part of his evolution as well as everyone else's. Is it kind to accept, as I do, that tens-of-thousands, at least, of children are being abused in this way by the day, and walk away from it? I don't think that's kind at all. So we have to make those judgements, and they're the choices we have to make, and we can only make them from what we think is right.

Secondly, is it necessary? Well, I think that a lot of stuff we talk about isn't necessarily necessary. I must say, if I get caught in a corner at the dinner party (which I avoid like the plague, and I can't remember the last one I've been to), but when I do, I start to realize there's a hell of a lot of things that come out of people's mouths that are utterly unnecessary. So that takes a bigger point, which I will use under the word "focus". I think it's very important that we do get focused on what is actually necessary because, if we are starting to shoot in all directions, we are actually going to so dissipate the energy we're using that we are not actually going to focus that energy on what would be most effective. I do think that there's great dissipations of energy in organizations I come across, where basically they don't know their ass from their elbow. There's no focus on "what are we trying to achieve here?" So, I think that question is very well worth everyone asking all the time. Otherwise, your energy goes in so many different directions, its power is not what it could be if it was focused.

Thirdly, how do you know if you're doing the right thing? Well, this takes a wider thing for me. People talk about the need to seek enlightenment. I don't think we need seek enlightenment at all. I don't think enlightenment has ever gone anywhere. I think enlightenment is sharing the same space as ignorance. The highest dimensions of knowledge and love are sharing the same space as ignorance. What I feel we need to do is to remove the barriers we throw up between ignorance and enlightenment.

One thing, you see, enlightenment does once we allow it in is it transforms our lives, and we start to do things which in the three-dimensional world appears strange and challenging. This is why so many people who are in the prison of the fear of what other people think of them are shutting out enlightenment, because they know where enlightenment is going to take them. And it's going to take them out of the imposed engineered norms, like Carl-bloody-Lewis. And people are frightened of being different in a world of uniformity. That is the prison. Therefore, they are shutting out enlightenment, which they know is going to take them straight out of the prisons of uniformity, and people are going to call them "mad" or "bad" or whatever. What's it bloody matter what people call us? It's for so many reasons we are shutting out enlightenment because enlightenment, is leading us to do things that we think our mother might not like. Or the guys down at the bar might find funny. So for many, many reasons, all of them based on fear, we're

shutting out enlightenment.

Once we let those barriers, that fear, guilt, resentment, that "I could never, I'm just an ordinary man or woman"—I call them low vibrational eggshells—when we let them fall (a friend of mine has done a lovely illustration in there of the eggshell principle), once we let the Light in, then two things happen. First of all, all that suppressed emotion that we haven't wanted to deal with, all that grunge we've pushed down— "change the subject, I don't want to talk about it"—when we let that Light in, that higher dimension of us because, in the end there's no such a thing as we, just one gigantic "I", of which we are expressions of once we let that in, it acts like a hose-pipe. And all this stuff we've suppressed comes to the surface.

I don't know whether you've found this, but I certainly found it, big time. Once you let the eggshells crack and the Light in, there's a period of very great emotional challenge as your life is turned upside down and you deal with all the stuff you need to deal with to find a vibrational level in the three-dimensional consciousness, for want of a description. That is the same as our higher consciousness. Allow that connection to take place. And once—this is the answer to the question I'm getting around to, the question is it right? is it the right thing to do?—can only be answered by each of us individually, by what we feel is right.

Now that feeling—I've said in this book somewhere that we believe too much and feel too little: it's belief systems that control us, and believe systems tend, because they're head-based, to suppress the feelings intuitive-based, it's the intuition—that intuition for me is that connection with multidimensional self. All I've done, and it's the only thing I've basically done for the past seven years, more and more, as I've set myself free, is when head and intuition have come into conflict, intuition is always the way I've gone. And in the end what you find is that the head and the intuition come into harmony and they both push you in the same direction.

So, there's an antenna somewhere here which you really can't put words to, because it's a feeling that you either know it's right or you don't know it's right. And sometimes your head is going, "oh, my God!" But something here says, "this is right," and you go with it. And that's—I feel, anyway—our connection with who we really are. This is our connection with this world overwhelmingly and the stuff that comes this way. This comes this way. And when we shut out this, our whole focus for inspiration and information starts to look this way, and therefore we become a manipulator's dream because most of the information coming this way is controlled by a handful of people. So when this opens, not only do you vibrationally reconnect or start to get closer to who we really are, you start to filter this because you start to get dead streetwise, via this "something feels right or doesn't". But in the end, what feels right to one might not feel right to another, because we're all in a different point in the journey with different things to experience.

I think that the danger comes when people start to impose their intuition on someone else. In this whole New Age area I do hear, so often, people saying to people, "Trust your intuition, follow your intuition." But, what they're saying, without saying it, is so often, "Follow your intuition as long as it agrees with mine because if it doesn't, you're off your path." And so I know what's right for me. Full stop. And everyone else knows what's right for them, which is why I wouldn't dream of advising anyone what action they should take. Because within them they know exactly what they've come here to do and exactly what they've come here to contribute and how they've come to do it. It's accessing that knowledge that's the trick. And that means getting the hell out of the head domination—not that the head's going to part to play

domination—and let the feelings, the intuition, in there and go with what that says, even though this is screaming, "oh, my God!" because it's frightened of being different in a world of uniformity.

AUDIENCE: Is there a point in your life where you remember how you really got into this stuff, or is it just something that you've always known all your life?

DAVID: No. I could have feared for England, I could have felt guilty for England, I could have represented my country. All these emotions, you know, the emotional olympics; I'd have got a gold. Because I feel our journey—and this is why we've got to start being kind to ourselves. Humanity loves to put itself down. "I'm human, give me a slapping." We're on a journey, and if we follow our intuition, there is a point where awakening particularly if we come to contribute something—we all have—there's a point where you need to wake up. You can stay asleep after that point, and I think a lot of people still are. But there is a point to wake up because if you kind of come in, and say you're doing something that I'm doing, which is interacting with people, if I'd have come in as an all-knowing being, I couldn't go around now talking to people and have any relevance or connection with them, because I wouldn't understand where they're coming from, why they react in certain ways, why they're frightened, why they feel guilty, why they feel insignificant. But having lived about thirty-odd years of my life in that same state, you get to understand what these emotions are and what a prison they are. And then there comes the awakening point, and then you've got the balance. You've got the wider understanding because you've accessed more of yourself, but you've also got the understanding of where you were.

I was traveling around in Australia, and I met a guy who was creating his own reality about every fifteen seconds, because he saw himself as a victim. And therefore every day, no matter how well the day had gone, he had to manifest something to feed his addiction to being a victim, because that was his sense of self, that was his imagination of self. So every day, no matter how well the day went, he would manifest a crisis at some point to feed his addiction. Now I could see where he was coming from and I could understand it, and I learned a lot from observing it, not in the least because I was looking at myself about 15 years ago.

So I think we need to be kind to ourselves. There's no such thing as a bad experience unless we perceive it like that, only experience. Everyone in this room, and everyone on this planet, and everyone in creation is not what they are now, despite what has happened to them and what they've experienced. They are what they are because of what has happened and because of what they've experienced. That's one of the things I talk about in the book, you know, one of the things that I believe slows down human evolution so much, is that instead of taking this evolutionary process in its simple form—because all genius is simple: experience, learn, evolve—instead of saying, "Right, I've got what I need to learn from that experience. Terrific. I'm a more enlightened being now. Move on," we take with us, because of the conditioning, the debris of experience, the guilt, the resentment, the fear and all this stuff. And so that becomes weights, then, that we have to carry. The journey actually gets harder because of all the emotional weights we're carrying. And yet, from my perspective, we are attracting to us, magnetically, energy fields we need to interact with: experiences, people, ways of life and what have you. And therefore, every experience we have is an experience we uniquely need because of where we are on the journey. And it's also—and this is where I think we forget—it's also an experience that the people or the person we're interacting with needs.

Coming back to the thing with George Bush here, George Bush is attracting me in as much as I'm attracting

him in, right, because this is the interaction of states of being? And this is why we need to get out of the personality I think, because once we get pulled into the personality of an experience, we start to externalize responsibility to personality: "It's your fault, you're to blame" and all this stuff. If I'm travelling through California and I'm in a certain state of being which needs to interact with another state of being for an experience that I need to have for my journey, then that state of being in California will be called "Chuck". If I'm traveling through Germany in that state of being and I need to attract in another state of being to interact with in Germany, that same state of being will be called "Wolfgang". In Britain it would be called "Charley" or "Fred" or "Bill". It's just a state of being which I'm pulling in, because that's what I need to interact with for the experience that I need. So once you get out of the personality, you actually operate on a level which is above this highly programmed, manipulated, conditioned world. And you don't get pulled into that view of ourselves.

I was talking about America once in Australia, underground bases and stuff, and this lady stood up and said, "I'm outraged. You're insulting my country. I'm an American." And I said, "You're a multidimensional infinity. Why are you identifying with a belief system that's been around for little more than 200 years?" If we get pulled into countries, sort of racist, we get pulled into religions, we get pulled into all of this stuff. When actually what we're doing is getting pulled into a fraction of our consciousness, because we're seeing ourselves as what we are experiencing in human form instead of what we are, infinity. And that is a completely different way of living our lives. When you get to the big, big, big, big, big, big, big, big picture of infinity, of Creation, of the ultimate, what we are sorting out here at this time, is a little local difficulty. It's big to us, because we're living it. But this is a little local difficulty which offers fantastic consequences in the short term, in the three-dimensional world, unless we sort it. But it also offers fantastic challenge, fantastic experiences, and when we get out of here, we will be far more enlightened beings than we would be if we had not had the experience. And what I feel is happening now is that, collectively, we are going through a massive evolutionary experience.

Just on an individual level, we experience, learn, evolve, if we learn from the experience. If we don't take stage two and learn from the experience, then we stand still. But nothing happens in Creation without consequences. That's what the evolutionary process is. So for a long, long time—thousands and thousands and thousands of years, goodness knows how far back—the human race has been giving its power away to "leaders", and followed and shut its mind down and conceded its uniqueness to fear. That can't happen because nothing can happen in isolation. So where I feel we are at this point now is Creation, the evolutionary process saying to humanity, "Hey, over here."

This is what happens when you give your power away. This is what happens when you concede your uniqueness to someone else's version of what you should be. This is what happens when you concede your right to be you. Because what you do when you do that is, first of all, you give your life away. If enough of us do it, we give the world away. And that's what we've done. But this edifice of so-called power is a house of cards dependent totally on us doing that. When we take the power back, the power used to control us is also taken back, and this little local difficulty is all over. And we're going to see it and we're going to live it, because I ain't come here to mess about, right? I haven't left a four-year-old in England to mess about. And I haven't left whereever I've bloody come from, where ever that is, to mess about. This is sort-out time. It's a great time to be alive.

AUDIENCE: Amen.

DAVID: It's time for pudding.

AUDIENCE: A couple of words you mentioned in there, intuition and feeling, but what do you want to do with your actions?

E.J.: There must be a difference there.

AUDIENCE: When we asked this teacher the question, "How do we know if we're doing the right thing?" he said, "By the results." So we really can't know if we're doing the right thing 'cause we got to wait for the results. Or can we actually predict the results and know by that means, or are we just under the power of intuition?

DAVID: Well, I just disappeared up my own backside, and I'm trying to let that out—No, no, I'm only kidding. I think the question that we need to ask at all times—no, the question that I need to ask at all times—is, "what is my intent?" You know, if my intent is positive, then that's good enough for me. What the outcome is, we then learn from and we get streetwise. But it's the intent, I think, that is the key point. If you put the intent out there—it's like people. When you put the intent out there that you want to reveal this stuff, you're putting out the magnetic vibrational field, and therefore that magnetic vibrational field then starts pulling back to you the stuff and the experiences and the information and the people you need to interact with to do what your intent puts out there. This is where focus comes in. If you're not focused and you say, "Yeah, I'd really like to kind of reveal this, but I don't really know how and I'm a bit confused," that state of being is going out as a vibrational field, and it's going to pull back complete bloody confusion and chaos around you. This is where focus is so important: "This is what I want to achieve. This is how I want to do it, with love." And that's going out and that will pull back a focused set of physical circumstances interacting, synchronisticly, which will manifest what your intent is.

In the end, if the intent's out there, powerful enough and focused enough, there's nothing that could stop us. Absolutely nothing. Certainly not the consciousness that George Bush is interacting with, which is, I think, in evolutionary infinity terms—the consciousness that's running this planet—is intellectually sharp, but spiritually in the kindergarten. I think that the children just need a little word in their ear and they need to evolve also. And I think it's so important we don't give too much power away to this, you know, because it is just a local difficulty, in Creation terms. And we live forever, and the next second is the first second of the rest of our eternity. Whether we get taken out or whether we don't get taken out, we will just continue our evolution into infinity.

My knees are knocking as I speak. I'm terrified. I think that, if we can hold that big picture, we actually, the higher of our consciousness we can access, the more powerful the magnetic energy we're accessing and projecting into this world. Therefore, the more detail we can pull back towards us in terms of synchronicity and attracting to us all the things we need to do.

People don't talk about a magnetic personality just as a throw-away. That's what we are. We're magnetic people. The more magnetic, the more power the magnetism we allow in by getting these eggshells out of the way, the more we will manifest exactly what we need to do. We said earlier, money's just an energy. You can attract it to you or you can push it away. You can use it positively and you can use it negatively. I

mean, in physical terms, most of it doesn't exist anyway. Well, it's obviously energy because it's fresh air. So, I think, if we come from a space of thinking that it's going to be difficult and, "oh, yeah, they're all so powerful" and all that stuff, we're going to create that reality big time. We come from a space that we are multidimensional infinity. This is going to be sorted. And that's what we've come to do. It will be sorted. It's just a thought. It's just a state of mind, it's all it is. If we get the mind right the feelings right, and the intent right the physical world naturally comes right because the physical world is just a reflection of that, I think, anyway.

Oh, we can take some more later. Shall we have a cup of tea?

[To be continued.]

CHAPTER 5

MORE "INCONVENIENT" DATA ABOUT OKLAHOMA BOMBING FABRICATION by Norio Hayakawa 4/30/97

I rarely send any FAX to you at *CONTACT* unless something highly important comes my way. And surely it has!!

I have just recently (a few days ago) acquired a color photocopy of an astounding aerial photo allegedly taken by a private pilot in early April of 1995 (before the bombing), near Camp Gruber (near Braggs) in the state of Oklahoma. **[See end of chapter.]** The pilot apparently is remaining anonymous for fear of retribution.

This amazing aerial photo shows a yellow Ryder truck tucked inside white walls within an enclosed area of what appears to be some type of temporary makeshift military-type of quarters. Several humvees can be seen, also some dark-green tent-like covered quonset huts and possibly military trucks.

The private pilot was flying over Oklahoma state in early April of 1995 (before the bombing). He began to notice a small clearing in the forest area near Camp Gruber, Oklahoma. He became curious because he noticed a white-walled enclosure with makeshift-type quonset huts and several humvees parked along with possibly dark-green covered trucks. He became curious and decided to fly a little lower, and from the side he noticed that there was a yellow Ryder truck inside the white walls within the enclosure. For the next few days he didn't really think much of any significance of what he saw.

Then, after hearing the astonishing news for the first time about the Oklahoma City building bombing on April 19, he was shocked to learn that a Ryder truck was involved in the bombing! He then remembered that he had indeed seen a similar Ryder truck in the area he flew over. So a few days later, he flew over the same area again and, to his astonishment, the whole place was already dismantled!! I got these photocopies just a few days ago through a source that I consider fairly reliable (in my opinion). You are welcome to link the web-site to yours. This is a web-site which I made just a couple of days ago. The information belongs to the public!! But no news media would dare publish these photos (for fear of retribution?)!!

It's at: http://members.aol.com/bardsquill/truck.htm

I would certainly appreciate if you could circulate this widely.

The web-site is accessible to anyone. This belongs to the public!

UPDATE FAX TO THE ABOVE

A truly astounding alleged aerial photo [See end of chapter.] taken by a private pilot in early April of 1995 (2 weeks before the Oklahoma bombing) over what then appeared to have been a makeshift military-type encampment within U.S. Army CAMP GRUBER, northeast of Braggs, Oklahoma, has surfaced (2nd generation color photocopy) and can now be seen at: http://members.aol.com/bardsquill/truck.htm

The pilot is now getting ready to identify himself, despite fear of retribution.

The photo was taken approximately 2 weeks prior to the Oklahoma bombing. Approximately one week later, the pilot flew over the same area and the encampment was gone. You can tell that the camp had just been built. There are also two large portable chemical tanks located on site.

For reference on CAMP GRUBER, check out: U.S. Army Site: http://www.atsc-army.org/dev/itsd/VTCL.HTM http://www.faa.gov/arp/okpri.htm http://www.faa.gov/arp/okpri.CSV

> Mail address seems to be: OK Braggs, Camp Gruber Oklahoma Military Dept. 3501 Military Circle, N.E. Oklahoma City, OK 73111 Tel. (918) 487-6001 (918) 487-6042

PHOTOS NEXT 2 PAGES

okc photo #1

okc photo #2

CHAPTER 6

SOLTEC: FURTHER SIGNS OF PACIFIC PLATE TENSIONS 5/7/97 SOLTEC

Thank you for taking the time this evening to sit and write. Thank you for listening and hearing my call. Yes, it is I, Toniose Soltec, come in and with the Light of Holy God of Light, God of Creation, and with the Golden-White Christ Light. Do not struggle with your thoughts; allow my energy to flow. Thank you for clearing your space and for lighting the white candle. This is a symbol for yourself, and it will, if you allow, help you to focus upon the task at hand.

I am with you this day to tell you that we at Command, sit at an extremely high state of alertness. The agitation, the ear ringing, the nervousness you and others are experiencing now is due to the stresses which are present RIGHT NOW upon your planet, for many of you are "sensitives" and are experiencing physical reactions to the stresses and changes of your planet.

Do not be distressed over these things, for you are MEANT to be in tune with your planet! Over time, those upon your world have become desensitized to the "nature" of things, and only recently are so many becoming once again attuned to your planet's inner workings.

In a writing on 2/11/97, I called to your attention to watch Japan for clues to impending further pressure build-ups around your tectonic plate called the Pacific Plate. At that time I said:

"Watch Japan VERY closely during the next several weeks. Watch for POSSIBLE activity to occur in this place—beginning with many small quakes, followed by an earthquake which could well register up to 9.5 on your present scales.

"As the Pacific Plate continues to grind against all adjacent plates, watch next for POSSIBLE quake activity to begin along the coastlines of the Americas—both South and North. There is indication at this time that, should quakes occur in Japan, there would follow, within three to five days time, some significant shaking along the coastal areas of the Americas."

Now, so far that "big one" has not yet struck Japan. However, as that writing was going to press, there WAS quite a swarm of smaller quakes in the general area of the Japanese Islands and these, in turn, continue to cause many repercussions.

There is extreme pressure that has built on the eastern edge of your Pacific Plate, and though this place has been experiencing many small-to-moderate earth tremors in the past several weeks, the pressures are but slightly relieved in that place. The ground there is in a brittle state, which means that rather than being in state of flexibility, it acts more like a dry piece of timber, and the pressure present now could easily cause it to snap, which would result in a most violent earthquake. This is not a prediction, and it is, of course, not carved in stone; however, the state of alertness under which we are operating is in part due to this state of high tension all along that eastern border of the Pacific Plate. There are several points at which the plate is in a locked state—that is, the plate is attempting to move, and movement is not possible and, therefore, more pressure is building at these critical points.

I realize that we have been down this road many times before, and each time, a large, devastating quake has been averted. However, it is our agreement with you ones that we will inform you at any time this area is in a state as critical as at present.

The preparations should already be in place for those of you who are going to prepare. We are not going to go over that one again, except to say to be ready, for the potential for SEVERE activity is there, right now.

There are also other activities present now which we need to bring to your attention.

The volcano 43 miles southeast of Mexico City, Mount Popocatepetl, whose summit is almost 18,000 feet high, is showing signs of building to a massive eruption. Those who live near this place are living in GREAT danger.

Several small eruptions have already taken place, but these only work to make people complacent about a massive eruption. Though warnings have gone out, there are those who say that this mountain has been erupting for eons, and thus are not concerned.

Many have already fled the area, for they have been forewarned; others have heard the warnings before, only to have them never pan out. These ones are remaining and refusing to leave the area. If the volcano should really blow its top, these ones will not have a chance for survival.

And, yes, there is a definite correlation between the tremendous swarm of "UFO" activity in Mexico (especially in the area of Mexico City) and the impending, explosive state of the volcano. As usual, much information on this subject has been suppressed by your controlled news media outlets. However, avenues such as Art Bell's late-night talk-radio program have provided much factual reporting on this lively "UFO" activity being observed around Mexico.

Is this activity increasing? Of course, and it shall continue to do so. That, however, is all that I shall say about that, except that these craft are NOT from your planet.

There will be many more of these types of "natural disasters" which you ones are going to experience in your time. Do not allow selves to be so overwrought with worry, fear, or grief that you find yourselves unable to function. You knew, before coming into this lifetime, that these were the times and challenges for which you incarnated, and it is NOW that you ones are most needed.

We must have channels through which to get the messages out, and though the free-will human element of choice always exists, we must continue to use those channels who have come to your place at this time for this purpose. It is not always an easy task, for either you or us, for while you ones want to participate and assist in the mission at hand, there is always that human element, prone to fears and other distractions, which can and does intrude.

Though it can, at times, be a handicap for the task of messaging, it is also that human element the "Spark of Life" or Light from Creator, so to speak—which makes it all possible. So it is somewhat of a "Catch 22" situation for both of us. We will adjust frequencies on both ends of the spectrum whenever necessary and whenever possible, so that the messages can flow with the highest possible "fidelity". This is not possible with ALL third-dimensional humans, for first must come the desire to serve, and to serve selflessly, and that, dear ones, is a most rare quality amongst those on your planet today!

Very few are they who have determined to work and serve without worrying about personal compensation, for you live in a world filled with greed and lusts for material possessions, and power. It may come as a surprise to you ones, but power is more sought after than even monetary gain.

As your world grows more and more crowded, and more and more impersonal, there is the desire within the third-dimensional ego to be recognized, thus the impetus to generate something through which to call attention to oneself, for these ones are fearful of being lost in the crowd, so to speak. So, ultimately, these ones strive to achieve more and more recognition through many different sources. For some it is career, for others it is outrageous actions, but the ultimate goal is the same—recognition.

It is all due to the fact that each of you feels as though you are losing your individuality. And, as you continue down the accelerating path toward your planet's transition, these tendencies will continue to increase, until at last the transition is completed. Then, and only then, will balance begin to return to your now very much out-of-balance planet.

All the political games of power are, in the long-term, for naught, and the struggles in which your world finds itself embroiled at the current time, are but that—games, and these too shall, one day, come to a halt, when finally the transitional process has been completed.

However, see that you pass not judgment upon these ones, for they are but acting out their roles in this play. Each one has their own lessons to experience, and you know not another's agreement prior to entering into this life.

Karmic retribution is in full-swing, and that which is sown is also being reaped. But the germination time has much shortened, and what might be called "instant karma" is occurring. There is not much time left for your world in the third-dimensional framework, so many ones upon your planet are experiencing that karma in their current life streams. You have but to watch what goes on around you to see that this is truth.

Be cautious, however, for not all is of the Light; in fact, very little upon your planet now is of the Light, and that is why it is all the more important for you ones to gather about you your protection of Light, and maintain it at all times. It does not hurt to reinforce your protection several times throughout the day, if you feel it necessary. Better to call it in more than needed, than to not call upon it and leave selves exposed and vulnerable.

The darkness is very subtle and very enticing, and sometimes will even APPEAR, at first, to be of Light; however, it is not Light, and will flee from your presence when you bring the Light about you. The darkness cannot and will not stay where the Light is. So, to stave off the darkness, keep yourselves in the Light at all times!

I will here again emphasize that your world is in a very grave state at present. Can the process be reversed? I do not see how, and the only way to the other side is to go through what is on the horizon. There is no turning back now, for you have come too far. Once you have reached the other side, you will see that the trip was all worth it.

The numbers of those who shall make it in their present physical state will be few. It is a hard truth to hear, but you need to hear it, and not lose sight of your goal once the REAL turmoil begins.

As another useful direction in which to keep watch for clues to the upcoming turmoil as Mother Earth efforts to reclaim her balance and shake off the poisons, I again return to my earlier writing of 2/11/97. Therein I suggested that you pay attention to the anomalies around you. That is:

"I would like to urge all of you who have animals near you to watch them very closely. They are telling you that the Earth is about to give a great heave. Watch for abnormal migrations and animals showing up in odd places. Watch your house pets, as well, for many of them are exhibiting odd symptoms of apparent illness or they may be just acting 'weird'.

"You see, these creatures are more attuned to the frequencies of the planet than are their twolegged counterparts, and they will begin to react long before earthquakes and other geophysical events take place. Watch them also for out-of-the-ordinary behavior, such as dogs biting who normally don't bite—that sort of thing. Those of you at the coastal edges, watch the tidal activity, for there are many, many small earthquakes occurring within the depths of your oceans and the tidal activity will reflect these occurrences."

It is NOW that you ones must make yourselves ready, for time has run out. Prepare yourselves quickly, and then be watchful, for it is coming. Keep your eyes upon the skies and your ears to your planet. Be mindful and attuned to our calls, for they shall be on the increase. Remember, this is why you have come to Earth-Shan, and you are about to come into your fullness of purpose in this mission!

Many will there be coming unto you and asking for help. DO NOT TURN THEM AWAY, BUT LIKEWISE DO NOT ALLOW THEM TO SHIRK *THEIR* RESPONSIBILITIES TOWARD SELF AND OTHERS. IF THEY ARE TO MAKE IT THROUGH, THEN THEY MUST PICK UP AND CARRY THEIR OWN LOADS. NONE SHALL MAKE IT ON THE BACK OF ANOTHER! Each one will, of his own, make it or not make it, and there will be no victims in this transition—only personal choices.

Be not in fear of the changes that are upon you, for they are a very necessary part of the transition. The Earth will heave to and fro, and many wondrous things will you experience, but lose not your sight upon the final goal. We will always be there with you, and we are but a call away.

Now, let us close this writing, and allow the information to settle within each of you. The Light is about you—keep it there and stray not from that which you know to be The Truth. We of the Heavenly Hosts are very near you, and we are in the service of Holy God of Light. We thank you for your time, and for your determination to see it through the upcoming changes.

I leave you, as always, in the Light of Holy God.

Toniose Soltec to clear. Salu.

CHAPTER 7

THE NEWS DESK by Dr. Al Overholt 5/17/97

VOLUNTEERISM CLOAKED IN FASCISM

From THE DAILY NEWS, May 1997, [quoting:]

clinton cartoon

The President's Summit for America's Future—a call for national service under the banner of volunteerism—came and went without widespread criticism.

Lest freedom-loving Americans mistake the summit as a peaceful gathering of big shots getting together to pick up garbage, let me caution: I was there, listening to their calls for national service, and when the organizers of the summit demand that each individual serve society, they mean it.

As I made my way into the host city of Philadelphia, the philosophical implications of the summit were immediately clear.

Jumbo television screens heralding a new era of service to others dwarfed the Liberty Bell. Chains, fences, steel gates, platforms and scaffolding built to hold masses of volunteers engulfed Independence Hall.

A sophisticated department store had replaced cashmere-suited mannequins with pictures of toothless children and gigantic posters of President Clinton and Vice President Al Gore.

Deafening chants of "Volunteer! Volunteer!" erupted when Clinton approached the podium at Marcus Foster Stadium.

For what cause were these willing servants volunteering?

Nothing—anything—it did not matter.

They were pledging allegiance to an idea: the principle of self-sacrifice for the sake of others.

Clinton asked the droning mob: Are you ready to go to work? They cheered in affirmation.

Then I thought of those millions of Americans who go to work every day. From coast to coast, they go to

work not to serve others but for their own life, liberty and the pursuit of their own happiness. Many Americans help others if—and only if—they are able to afford it. Their livelihoods are drained by taxes and regulations.

The youngest among them are bound to a future of servitude to pay for Medicare and Social Security; they can barely afford to buy a first house.

Nonetheless, Gen. Colin Powell declared: We must be good stewards of each other.

He proclaimed: All of us can spare an extra 30 minutes. All of us can spare an extra dollar. Who is the retired Army general to decide what constitutes an *extra* dollar?

And what if someone chooses to save or spend an extra dollar?

In an interview with U.S. News & World Report, the general **promises punishment if you don't follow** our standards.

Whose standards, what kind of punishment—and what exactly is the crime [emphasis mine]?

Through the happy talk, group hugs and celebrity kiss-kisses, the dark cloud of Fascism was evident throughout the summit.

As the former chairman of the Joint Chiefs of Staff said, aware that corporations and businessmen already donate millions of dollars in charity: "I just don't want chairmen and CEOs to give more money. I really want them to take on the personal commitment."

Apparently, giving is not enough—each individual must **submit to the will of the masses** [*emphasis mine*].

For die-hard individualists not willing to join this parade of volunteerism; for those who view charismatic speeches, waving flags and calls for service to society with skepticism; for those who dare to exist for their own sake—one speaker (I think she was a teacher) issued a command at the summit's opening ceremonies: Just do it.

The popular Nike slogan, in this context, translates as: **Don't think, don't question, don't trust your judgment.**

Just volunteer [emphasis mine].

This is the real meaning of Clinton's era of big citizenship: Renounce your self-interest and step up to serve.

Summit supporters had gathered at the birthplace of the *Declaration of Independence* to claim that every living American is obliged to serve others [*an oxymoron*] [*emphasis mine*].

Throughout the three-day event, the summit's core principles were repeated like a mantra of floating

abstractions: Mentor, Protect, Nurture, Teach, Serve.

Protect whom—and from what? Serve whom—and to what end?

In this context, the ideas are a recipe for tyranny.

The philosophy preached at the summit is self-sacrifice camouflaged as volunteerism. It is the moral premise of the Philadelphia summit and carries the unmistakable mark of Fascism.

As Powell told an adoring Tom Brokaw, "We're all part of (the same) family." No, General Powell, we are not part of a giant family—we are a society composed of unique, unrepeatable individuals, with each individual as his own highest value.

Each individual must be free to live for his own sake, to pursue his own goals and reach for the highest potential within.

The summit was an attempt to desecrate the notion of independence.

The proper response, for those individuals who love freedom, is to reject the morality of self-sacrifice and proclaim a personal declaration of independence. [End quoting]

Amen!

MARK OF THE DEVIL DISCOVERED

Strange Symbol Adorns New *King James* Version of the *Bible*

Excerpted from FLASHPOINT newsletter, 3/97, [quoting:]

three times three pict

"And he causeth all, both small and great, rich and poor, free and bond, to receive a mark in their right hand, or in their foreheads: And that no man might buy or sell, save he that had the mark, or the name of the beast, or the number of his name." (Revelation 13:16-17)

The publisher of the *NKJV*, Thomas Nelson Publishing, may claim that their *Bible's* logo represents the Holy Trinity of Father, Son, and Holy Spirit. But, if so, why is the same design found dominant in New Age and occult circles? Why does a revoltingly blasphemous Masonic ritual also employ the same symbol?

A SYMBOL OF FREEMASONRY

We reproduce in *Flashpoint* an illustration from the classic Masonic text, *Duncan's Ritual of Freemasonry*, which shows how the cryptic "Three Times Three" handclasp is performed in the Royal Arch Degree by three "brothers" of the Lodge. Incredibly, it is during this grotesque ritual that the Masonic initiate learns the true name of the Masonic god, nebulously referred to by Masons as the "Grand Architect of the Universe".

In this secret ritual, however, the Masonic Lodge reveals that the actual name of their deity is *Jahbuhlun*. This repugnant name is obtained by combining the name of Jehova, or Yahweh, with the names of the Philistine god, *Baal*, and the Egyptian god, *On*. (On is one of the several names of the great Egyptian Sun god.) Thus, Jah-baal-on, or Jahbuhlun.

A SYMBOL OF OCCULTISM

Riplinger has brought to my attention that this same tri-part symbol is found concealed in the tail of the Green Dragon, illustrated in Harry E. Wedeck's occult classic volume, *Treasury of Witchcraft*.

The same symbol and logo can also be found on an album from Atlantic Records of heavy metal music by Led Zeppelin, the satanic rock group. Moreover, it is similar to the logo of the immense Krupp Works, the German manufacturing giant that was one of the most important producers for Adolf Hitler's Nazi war machine. [End quoting]

Still think the ones who wrote and publish the "*Holy Bible*" are **Holy God of Light's** (Aton's) messengers?? And that the *Bible* is the <u>inerrant</u> Word Of God??

NO HAPPY LANDING FOR BUSH, CONFRONTED IN ITALY ON LAROUCHE FRAME-UP

From *THE NEW FEDERALIST*, 4/14/97, [quoting:]

Former President George Bush was challenged in Milan, Italy April 5, on the LaRouche case and on his own involvement in drug-running. Bush was here attending a conference of the Non-Governmental Peace Strategies Project. With former UN Secretary General Javier Perez de Cuellar, NATO General Secretary Javier Solana, former Swedish Prime Minister Ingvar Carlsson, and former Soviet President Mikhail Gorbachov, he signed the "Milan Charter" against intolerance.

cartoon bush in parachute

During the question period, *EIR* correspondent Andrew Spannaus was given the microphone. He began, "I am very surprised that you, George Bush, have come here to speak about tolerance, since in the United States, you put your political enemies, Lyndon LaRouche and his colleagues, in jail, because they were exposing your Iran-Contra operations of drug-running...and arms-running. How can you possibly come here and talk about tolerance?"

Bush retorted: "if I'm not mistaken, the *Intelligence Review* this gentlemen works for is run by a crackpot [*Calling him a crackpot is tolerance??*] named Lyndon LaRouche. LaRouche was put on trial in a court and convicted of tax fraud. And he's a crackpot, in my view. A crackpot." The newspaper *Il Giornale* characterized Spannaus as having been "impertinent", if determined, and Bush as "forgetting the fair play and the paeans to tolerance which had just been enunciated in perfect harmony with his former colleague Gorbachov."

The paper added, "[Bush] sharply defined LaRouche as 'a crackpot', and said that he doesn't have to explain anything to anyone about this case."

"It's difficult to know," mused *Il Giornale*, "how Bush would have reacted if someone had pointed out to him that Saddam is still in power, and he's out."

Maybe he would have bombed them. [End quoting]

What's this?? A treasonous, lying, drug-running, pedophile, mind-controller, con-artist calls LaRouche—who is not a saint, but certainly one who has much higher ideals—a crackpot?? **Who's cracked??**

COMPUTER IN EVERY HOME-MANDATORY!!

From the INTERNET, 4/97, [quoting:]

"The shadow government's sinister plan to minutely control our daily lives via a global, beast computer network has recently made astonishing advances. The high-tech noose is quickly being tightened around the necks of the citizenry. Clinton announced last October 10th, that the Govt. wants every home in the U.S. to have a computer and be linked to the Internet. Clinton made it seem a noble thing as he remarked: "Let us reach for a goal in the 21st century of every home connected to the Internet, and let us be brought closer together as a community through that connection." Brought closer, indeed! The goal is to bind us together as 21st century slaves under the watchful, electronic eye of Big Brother.

Big Brother wants to keep all patriots, nationalists constitutionalists, fundamentalist Christians, and other supposed "discontents" off the Internet. Working the Internet and getting their message out exposing the New World Order will no longer be allowed.

The scheme to require the Universal Biometrics I.D. card for computer access was first revealed in an article in *The European* newspaper [29 Aug.-4 Sept. 1996, pg. 21]. The article explained that Acorn Computer Group, based in England; Oracle Software, a California software giant; and Things That Think, a Massachusetts-based, high technology research and development outfit, are working on this project, along with 40 other companies representing a cross section of the world's business community.

So the ultimate plan is to have every computer fitted with this card reader and no one can turn on a computer unless first inserting this Universal Biometrics I.D. card.

To insure that all goes well and the behemoth Project LUCID is fully implemented by the target date of Jan. 1, 2000 A.D., last July 15th Pres. Clinton signed an executive order [No. 13010, Federal Register July 17th, 1996, Vol. 61, No. 138, pp.37345-37350] setting up a monstrously huge federal bureaucracy to oversee and direct all high tech, citizen control operations and systems. The executive order established the President's Commission on Critical Infrastructure Protection. Its membership includes top-level officials from the Treasury, Justice, Defense, Commerce, Energy, and Transportation Departments.

Meanwhile, a global police organization called the Infrastructure Protection Task Force was also established. Made up of FEMA, the FBI, and CIA, and the NSA, the IPTF will use its considerable police, law enforcement, and intelligence authority to whip the the citizenry into line. The Internet and all individual computers will be monitored and censored to make sure no "cyber terrorists" can thwart or prevent Project L.U.C.I.D.

There is more, but you can get a pretty good idea what is being planned for us! [End quoting]

Under the new laws governing telephones and fees, the FCC made rules that charge every user of telephones a fee for putting computers in every school.

Do you really think they would want every school to be filled with computers if they were to help improve your children's education? If that were true they would, simply, supply the schools with **excellent and highly paid teachers.**

Excellent teachers should be the highest paid of all workers—not movie stars, sports stars, corporate executives and politicians. That would cure our school problems and NATION PROB-LEMS.

Excellent education is the only way we are going to solve any problems for the long term.

FROM THE PUBLISHER'S LOG (A LETTER)

Excerpted from The Press of Freedom MILITARY, 4/97, [quoting:]

When Sgt. Maj. Larry Williams, Angola, IN, retired from the Army after 27 years (starting in 1967, a year that rings a bell for many of us), he received a Certificate of Appreciation, machine-signed by Bill Clinton,

Commander in Chief. Williams replied:

"I am returning this document to you, for it possesses no meaning or value to me.

"You and I are two different people, I chose to serve my country 27 years ago with honor; YOU chose a different path, one of dishonor.

"I was tutored by my parents to place honor and responsibility above all else; you obviously did not have that same type of instruction.

"When I chose to retire after 27 years of military service rather than remain, it was because of YOU!!!!

"I do not agree with your homosexual views (in the military or in mainstream society) or how YOU (and your wife) are destroying such a fine and proud organization as the United States Military (the organization that I love so dearly). For that matter, I do not agree with anything else you have done to date.

"Sir; I have NO respect for you whatsoever!!!

"I will close now by asking GOD to bless the United States Military along with the honorable men and women who serve her so proudly; I will also ask GOD to speed along the remainder of your term in office." [End quoting]

Things might change if our rotten politicians received millions of this type of response.

ANOTHER LETTER

[Quoting, same as above:]

We also get letters against our position that read, "I am a liberal, I voted for Clinton." Then don't complain about the schools, for it was liberalism that stopped the Boys' Dean paddle that you and I remember so well. Remember when you made sure that, when you were in the service, that you stayed on the straight and narrow because you knew that your future employer would want to see your discharge papers? If you wanted a job you knew that it better say "honorable". Today, an employer is PREVENTED BY LAW to even ask if the applicant was in the service. That is liberalism.

Parents leave a video camera running in their home. It records the baby sitter battering the child. Who is at fault? The parents. They "invaded the privacy" of the baby sitter. That is liberalism today. —Armond [End quoting]

MOTEL 1600

Excerpted from *The Press of Freedom MILITARY*, 4/97, [quoting:]

The White House released the names of 938 contributors who spent the night at the White House during

Clinton's first term. Send in \$100,000 to get on the list for Al Gore's first term. [End quoting]

Signs of the times!

ANTI-NUKE BUNCH

Excerpted from *The Press of Freedom MILITARY*, 4/97, [quoting:]

The anti-nuke crowd is busy trying to stop the U.S. from deploying the B61-11, a nuclear bomb designed to destroy underground command bunkers. It directs the force of its blast downward, destroying everything **several hundred meters deep** [*enhancement mine*]. The B61 can be carried by the B-2 bomber and it replaces the B35 nuclear bomb, which can't be carried by the B-2 and is less effective. Critics of the B61 say we will anger Russia, which has extensive underground command posts and other facilities. These critics also say Libya will not like it. They have a large underground chemical weapons plant. [End quoting]

Now-a-days you really have to burrow deep, but if the bomb doesn't penetrate far enough, volcanos, earthquakes and the Photon Belt can still reach them so they can die in their self-dug graves.

WHAT IS FREEDOM?

From the INTERNET, 4/10/97, [quoting:]

Just what did our fathers and grandfathers fight for? Do we, their children, enjoy freedom? We are free so long as we obey. That is, if we do as we are told, then we are free. Just what is wrong with that picture?

We are born. If we have nothing, then are we free? Free to do what is good, what we wish to do?

Capitalism is not freedom. It is based upon sin and thus, at its very root, is an evil social system.

The more I hear about "TWA 800" the more I think that "America, land of the brave, home of the free" is an open Facist police state. Pursuit of happiness? Nope, pursuit of "rent". Of course, if everyone is ruled by fear, how much different is it from the days of "castles" containing land-barons and controlling the serfs on the lords' property?

"Bring me Wallace. Alive if possible. Dead, just as good." (Braveheart)

The Scottish, Irish and the French fought the "English rule of law" because it infringed upon their freedom as humans.

Have things changed that much? Remember the Falkland Islands war?

Capitalism: To steal as much as you can to be "rich". So America did, indeed, learn from the English. The very thing America rebelled against is what rules their every day life. The serfs work and the lords reap

"where they do not sow".

It is not society that is "evil" but the motivations behind it. The motivations behind our systems are greed, that is what drives growth in our economies. The bottom line.

That one driving force is responsible for all the conflicts we face all the time. People have needs and wants to fufill, every one of us. Why should it be such a struggle just to meet our most basic needs in such rich countries?

If a person commits murder, one must ask, "What is it that drove that person to such an extreme?" How often is it motivated by want? Usually it is extreme anger which is generated by the constant negativity that is poured at us.

It is obvious that when one commits a robbery that the person wants money. For whatever reason.

What causes a person to try drugs? Again, it is not drugs that are evil but the motivation behind using them.

What are the goals of our "Western society"? To make the whole world "free"? Free for exploitation? Do we even have goals as a society?

Everyone tells us to set goals but it is still "every man for himself" in our society. Is this right? Is it moral? Oil companies still set our agendas. Free energy devices are suppressed, the media does not cover them, and generally nobody is aware of such things because they are conditioned in their thinking. The governments are just ruthless rulers who care nothing for the individuals in society, only how much tax they can pay.

Drug dealers and prostitutes are "hated" because they pay no tax. The deaths caused by drugs hardly compare to the deaths caused by the pursuit of the money it takes to buy the drugs. The loss in tax revenue for an individual who uses some drug is also an issue which is quietly swept under the rug.

Money does not buy happiness.

What is the point of our world? Our societies have no goal other than to rule all under the tyrannical boot of capitalism. The "haves" enjoying while the "have-nots" struggle to overcome their oppression.

To gain "freedom" in today's world is to give up your freedom, work at some job, be forced into the mold, and hope you can somehow rise above it by saving and slaving. But no, costs rise while your pay does not. If you screw up and have kids then you are locked into the mold—you must feed your children.

So to gain freedom one must give it up. Therefore, it was never accorded to anyone to begin with. Except the "lords", they are free to continue grinding the rest of us.

We must make ourselves free.

"They may take our lives, but they can never take our freedom."

It is just too bad we, good people, just give it up, without a fight. [End quoting]

Sounds just like a lot of people out there. But, when you look at this Earth as being a classroom for many levels of students and that as many as 2/3 of these are, for all practical purposes, soul-less, the picture changes. What better place could there be for the advanced students and teachers to experience and help others. **This is a planet in a grand transition.**

The ones who are ready for freedom will be freed during this transition and the remainder will be placed into other "classrooms" where they can continue until they are ready for their grand transitions to freedom and **it won't be accomplished with guns.**

Truth is the ONLY thing that will set us free!

HUGE OZONE HOLE OVER RUSSIA REPORTED

I wonder what Russia would think if it were aware of what HAARP's doing? Maybe they do know.

From the INTERNET, 5/9/97, [quoting:]

MOSCOW—A Russian newspaper reports a huge ozone hole has developed over North Siberia stretching towards the North Pole.

The Moskovsky Komsomolets daily says Russian scientists estimate the size of the hole has now reached a record 2,000 km in length and has taken ozone levels to a new low, matching the levels seen in Antarctica. The hole has been holding over the area for two months and is becoming a major environmental concern. The paper reports ozone levels have dropped by 40 percent in the last month alone.

NASA has reportedly sent a plane to make high-altitude measurements of ozone in the area.

Scientists believe the reason for the huge hole, the first this size in the Northern Hemisphere, is due to unusually low temperatures in the Arctic this spring. [End quoting]

TIT-FOR-TAT??

NOBEL WINNER JAILED

From THE MODESTO BEE, 4/30/97, [quoting:]

Nobel-winning scientist Daniel Gajdusek was ordered Tuesday to serve 1.5 years in jail for sexually abusing a 15-year-old boy he brought back from a research trip to Micronesia. Gajdusek pleaded guilty to two counts of child abuse in February. He began serving his sentence immediately Tuesday at the Frederick County Detention Center. Under a plea agreement, the judge suspended all but 18 months of a 30-year sentence. Prosecutors said Gajdusek brought home 56 boys from research trips to the Pacific

islands beginning in the 1960s. [End quoting]

Every now and then the Elite have to show us they are "trying" to stop crime by **jailing someone visible** who is cutting into their business.

THE MULTILATERAL INVESTMENT AGREEMENT AND THE MULTILATERAL AGREEMENT ON INVESTMENT (TWO SEPARATE AGREEMENTS)

This could be worse than NAFTA and GATT!

From the INTERNET, 4/16/97, [quoting:]

My concerns are:

(1) Canada will ratify these agreements this year.

(2) The consequences are far more significant than NAFTA.

(3) The public is completely unaware of this. (What else is new?)

(4) We will have a Federal election in a few months and there will be no way to stop or influence this process after the election. (Sound familiar?)

Using e-mail and www (Internet) I am slowly gathering documents and a list of names/addresses.

OECD web site, re: Multilateral Agreement on Investment; WTO web site, re: Multilateral Investment Agreement; Third World Network web site (Third World nations are very worried.)

Please let me know if you are interested in this issue and I will send you a list of documents and sites. We need to find some way to get this on the public agenda before it is too late.

For more information: <vmenotti@igc.apc.org> (Victor Menotti) [End quoting]

Some more nails for our coffins.

FDR JOINS NATION'S HONORED ELITE

Memorial in Washington pays tribute to the man and his time.

Excerpted from THE BILLINGS GAZETTE, 5/3/97, [quoting:]

A new national memorial took its place Friday beside those for Washington, Jefferson, and Lincoln. In word and sculpture, it honors Franklin D. Roosevelt, who calmed a shaken nation, led it to victory in war and set in place a social system that still endures.

"We honor the greatest president of this great American century," said President Clinton, born after Roosevelt's death in 1945....

"He electrified the farms and hollows, but even more important, he electrified the nation, instilling confidence with every tilt of his head and boom of his laughter," said Clinton.

"It was that faith in his own extraordinary potential that enabled him to guide his country from a wheelchair, and from that wheelchair...he lifted a great people back to their feet and set America to march again toward its destiny." [End quoting]

This man was one of the most evil men to ever rule a country. Talk about a Hitler—in many ways he was even worse because he fooled a great nation over many years—even worse than Hitler.

It was his actions that took us back into a deeper depression when the country was emerging from one (fabricated) so that he could get far more damaging laws passed so the liberals could get us under their control and into the mess they have us in today—**ready for the final takeover.**

Did you ever think that smile might have been a cynical smile, just like Clinton's—a smirk—laughing at us fools who bought and **are still buying** the treasonous actions as fatherly love?

Don't you think Lincoln would like to have his memorial moved far, far away from the stench of that treasonous man, Roosevelt, who purposely started the war with Japan and Germany for pure greed and turned over much of our property and power to the Communists.

We are still building monuments to our slave masters and executioners, and gushing over them.

WILL WE EVER WAKE UP??

THE WRONG KEYBOARD

From POPULAR SCIENCE magazine, 6/97, [quoting:]

Buying your kids a computer to open their minds to the wonders of science and logic? Maybe you better buy a piano instead. A team of psychologists exploring the link between music and intelligence has found that piano instruction is far superior to computer instruction in enhancing the kind of abstract reasoning

skills a child will need for excelling in math and science later on.

In a two-year experiment, one group of preschoolers was given private piano and singing lessons and another got private computer lessons. The musically trained kids scored 34 percent higher than the others on tests measuring the higher brain functions critical in science, math, and engineering. [End quoting]

Take heed, parents. With training of the higher brain functions the kids will be able to get the knowledge they need on their own and not have to be a **slave** to teachers the rest of their lives.

ONLY HUMAN

From GUIDEPOSTS, P.O. Box 1479, Carmel, NY 10512, [quoting:]

In the first light of dawn I stood at the Reflecting Pool at the outer edge of the Vietnam Memorial in Washington, D.C. I had driven all the way from California to see it, but I couldn't bring myself to take the final steps to the Wall.

I had fought in Vietnam as an 18-year-old and it was there that I had started using drugs. One night I convinced my friend Gil to take my patrol duty while I went off to get high. Gil was killed that night. Back home, after the war, I hopped from town to town and jail to jail, tormented by guilt and unable to beat the addiction that had caused so much pain in my life.

Now, 23 years later, I had come to find Gil's name and confront the wreckage of my past. This could be my last chance to start life over. But I couldn't approach the Wall.

Through the morning haze a man walked toward me. He looked like an ordinary government worker in a suit and tie. "Walk with me," he said, and without a thought I did. Together we walked along the path. Then we stopped and the man held his hand over some names on the Wall. "You'll find him here," he said.

I looked up to where his hand had been, and there among the 58,000 names cut into the black granite was Gil's. Staring at the spot, I knew that nothing I could do would ever erase my friend's name from that Wall. The only thing that could change was me. With God's help, I could start today.

As the Sun broke over the Potomac, I turned to my guide, but he was gone. Today I would like to tell him how my life has changed. But first I would ask him how he knew where to look for that one name. — Mike Osuch, Charlotte, Arkansas [End quoting]

God knows our desires and needs, and how **best to help**, <u>always</u>.

CHAPTER 8

AUTHOR DAVID ICKE IN TEHACHAPI A SERIES PART III

4/13/97 HATONN & DAVID ICKE

Editor's note: We are continuing to share the visit from author David Icke. This is a continuation of the transcription of our 4/13/97 meeting with Hatonn and David Icke. This is the third part.

DAVID: Well, if we want to go on for a bit, we can mess around and take some more questions. I thought I would say a few things first—where I've been, things that I've come across. First of all, this kind of book, it has quite an unusual cover on it [*See box on this page for his latest book:* I Am Me, I Am Free]. The sticker comes off (laughter) because I wanted to focus on some of the things I was talking about earlier, which is not just that the world's controlled, but how it's done. Basically how it's done is turning 5 billion people into a herd instead of unique individuals. It occurred to me that the attitude that we have for the physical body is a classic expression of conditioning, because in Sweden you don't need a sticker. In Britain you need a sticker to get it onto the shelves. At least in some parts of America I think they are going to need oxygen. Just keep taking deep breaths you will be fine in a minute, don't worry about it.

The only difference between those reactions is how infinite consciousness has been conditioned in those countries in the years they have been alive. I remember going to the old city of Jerusalem once in 1993, and in the old city it is a small area within the city walls, but it is still broken up into four parts: there is the Christian quarter, an Armenian quarter, a Jewish quarter, and an Arab quarter—I remember I was just down from that big Islamic mosque temple watching these little Moslem kids playing football (soccer they call it in America). As I was watching these little kids—there were about 6 or 7, something like that—it occurred to me that by that age they already had conditioned into them a certain view of themselves, a certain view of "God", a certain view of Jewish people. Had that consciousness become incarnate in the old city of Jerusalem, for example, literally five minutes down the road, in the Jewish quarter, or Christian quarter they would now have a very different view of life themselves and Arab people. The only difference between that is the conditioning.

It seems to me that, if you observe people, most people, it is very hard to see any original thought manifested as a view or an action that hasn't actually originated out there somewhere and come back out through them as a conditioned response rather than a real thought. I think that in many ways, if we get too pulled into the three-dimensional information, which is very, very important, we can, if we lose the balance, we can get pulled out of the way we got into this situation and the way we can get out of it. And that is taking our power back which is why—I was talking to someone just at the break there—it is very, very important that the stuff about the manipulation also goes out with spiritual information about how we take our power back and who we really are.

And in the same way, it is very important that the stuff about the abductions of children and all this stuff goes out with the big picture of who is responsible for it and to what end. Because if we just put the children

information out without the big picture, then we can get a situation whereby the people who are abducting the children then start offering the solutions to their problems, which is to microchip children to stop it happening. So it's very, very important that all the time this big picture keeps going out and we don't get pulled in to just one aspect of it, 'cause in that way, actually doing what we believe to be right, putting information out, can play into the hands of the people that then want to offer solutions to the problems we are exposing.

Like I said earlier, I found in every country I have been in similar things happening. I guess one of them and it links into mind control—one of them is people going crazy with guns, and the solution being offered is to disarm the population. Now, there is no one that wants a world free of weapons more than me, and I wouldn't personally pull a trigger to save my life. I would tell you that straight up front because I don't see the point in trying to meet violence with more violence. I see it as pointless. However, there are significant numbers of people who would do that, and the people who wish to take control know they would and, therefore, they wish those weapons to be taken out of circulation to make the takeover basically troublefree. And so around the world this is going on.

In the United Kingdom, in Scotland, we had the famous example of this in Dunblane, where the guy went into a children's gymnasium and blew a lot of kids away. The same has happened in America within a short time after Dunblane. A guy called Martin Bryant went crazy with a gun in Port Arthur, Tasmania, and about a month before I arrived in New Zealand a few weeks ago, someone there did the same. The solution has always been to disarm the population. My understanding of the situation in Australia now is that, by September, the Australian population will be in effect disarmed.

We are definitely looking at a global agenda unfolding because the same is happening in every country. I talked earlier about mind control being "as above so below". What the collective consciousness is being subjected to also in these events is trauma-based mind control. As it's been shown, a mind in trauma is much easier to manipulate and it is much more suggestible. Now it is not only the Cathy O'Briens and people like that who have been through the trauma-based mind control—they have been through it in a very extreme individual way. Anyone like me, who picked up the newspaper and read about Dunblane and saw the picture of the children's classroom on the front page of all the newspapers, on some level went into trauma at the very thought of it. So these events are multidimensional in terms of their effect. They offer problem, reaction, solution: to disarm the population. But they also traumatize the population and make them more suggestible to other forms of mass manipulation. I feel that this is obviously not without the people involved knowing exactly what they are doing. One level of it is trauma-based mind control, and another level of it is problem, reaction, solution. In the end, I think we are looking at an agenda which includes some kind of military intervention of some kind, some kind of military intervention in each country, unless we wake up. I just used the Australian example of how the thing fits together.

In official buildings, as I understand it, in Indonesia, there are maps of Indonesia, the land that is claimed to be Indonesia. These maps, and I have seen a copy of them when I was in Australia, these maps include the top third of Australia, which they put on their map of Indonesia. At the same time that these maps have appeared, the Australian government has announced that, if attacked from the north, it would not defend Australia above what it calls the Brisbane line, which is a line drawn across Australia just slightly above Brisbane. That is precisely where the Indonesians have drawn the line of what belongs to them. At the same time Indonesian people have been encouraged to settle in northern Australia around Darwin and

places like that. At the same time the Indonesian army, while I was there in Australia not more than a month ago, was on maneuvers in the very area with the Australian and American forces, the area they are claiming is theirs. At the very same time, a guy called Martin Bryant goes crazy with a gun, and the solution to that has been to, by September, disarm the Australian population.

So you put all these different things together, and it doesn't take a genius to see there is a pattern there. I think this pattern is more obvious in Australia because what surprised me there is just how controlled it is and how rapidly it is moving along the New World Order agenda, particularly in the area of Victoria, Melbourne and all that part of Australia. They have got a Premier in there in Victoria called Jeff Kennit, and he is pushing this New World Order along very, very quickly in terms of its agenda.

I do feel that Australia could be very significant here because, if you want to create a center for something, a center for data control or a center for control in general, then it's clear they want an English speaking country. What better than an English speaking country that has a relatively small population and is literally thousands of miles away from the other English speaking countries which would make it very difficult for people in America to challenge anything that is coming out of Australia, the same with the people in Europe.

I do think that Australia is very, very important. There are people there, particularly a former civil servant called Sawyer who has identified a number of strange things going on with telephone exchanges being built that are far, far bigger than Australia ever needs. He has identified that it is actually a massive computer center quite capable of being the center of the global computer mind-control network. I guess if I was sensible and I was really wanting to bring this about, I think Australia would be a very good place to put it. Certainly it is a very controlled country.

Just finally on that point, about trauma-based mind control and on the collective consciousness, what I find here kind of interesting is that the mental profile of the people that are doing this stuff is almost exactly the same. And secondly, these horrendous events with guns are invariably are taking place, not in downtown cities, which would have a lesser effect on the mind because, "oh, well that's a city"; they are taking place in small quiet communities like Dunblane. I have been to Dunblane. I mean, it is just a quiet community where if someone coughs it gets in the newspaper. Port Arthur, Tasmania, another small place; nothing ever happens there, people feel safe. I think the mind-control state of mind that was sought by these events was summed up after the Australia event, the Australia killings, by a front page headline in the *British Daily Mail* which said: "Is Nowhere In The World Safe Anymore?" That is exactly the state of mind that we are being manipulated to take on because when anyone is in fear then they will demand that someone out there protects them from what they have been manipulated to fear, and if they have been manipulated to fear guns, they will press and press for the population to be disarmed.

I think it is important that even people like me who are very—I have no desire to see weapons in existence at all, but I think it is very important that, no matter what your personal belief, you look and ask the question, Ok, I would like to see no guns in circulation, but that includes the military as well, and it includes the police as well, and it includes everybody. And no matter what my personal feelings are, if we are not going to get duped, the question needs to be asked, "What is the motivation of those who are wishing to take guns out of circulation now? Never mind what our feelings are about guns, what is the motivation of people who are seeking to do it now?" And the motivation in the Australian example and endless others is pretty obvious. It is to disarm the population in preparation for a military takeover.

AUDIENCE: I think it is so interesting that you are talking about the child abuse thing because there has been a major story just dominating all the tabloid newspapers, supermarket tabloids, in the United States for going on three months now, about a little 7-year-old girl, Jon Benet. Could you comment on what you see behind that?

DAVID: Yes, I could. I will tell you a story about all this. I started to gather information the last time I was here from witnesses that appeared very strongly to be trustworthy, that there was at least a major Satanic child ring and drug-running ring in Colorado, based particularly in Denver and Boulder. So when I heard, back in England, this story came on the news about Jon Benet in Boulder, Colorado, my antenna immediately sort of started shooting upwards. When I came back over here, I was on my way out to Australia, and I spent a week in California doing research, just before I left for Australia. I thought, well let's start and see how many children go missing in America every year. I rang Washington to try and get some federal figures, and they told me no federal figures were available, they didn't keep them. Tell you how many cars went missing last year, but not children.

Eventually I come across this missing-child line, an 800 number across America, and I rang them, and they were very helpful. They confirmed there were no federal figures, but they said, "We will fax you the address and number of all our branches in every state, and they will keep the state figures." Well, I was just off to Australia so I didn't have time to ring them all. But if anyone wants to do it for me, I would be very grateful. I thought, I will check Colorado because, for a number of reasons, it was pretty obvious there were some pretty black things going on in Colorado, not just related to children, but I think Denver is becoming a major center for this, for reasons that I might talk about in a minute which relate to Canada and stuff. I think it is good to get this stuff out. I came across it the other week. Anyway, I rang the lady at the branch in Denver, and she told me, last year, 1996, 19,000 children went missing in Colorado. Eleven thousand were found, which to this point has left 8,000 children and young people in Colorado gone missing in 1996, officially reported, who have not been found. Now they are only the ones that hit the paperwork and the databases. How many more go missing that never hit the official reports? So I said to this lady, "Is Colorado an unusual state?" She said, "No, it usually goes in America by population. If you rang California, the number would be higher." I said, "Was 1996 an unusual year?" She said, "No."

I said, "I haven't got time to ring them all now, so would it be reasonable, for a rule of thumb then, just to multiply 8,000 in Colorado by 50 states to get some idea of the kind of range we are looking at?" And she thought that would give a fair assessment of America. So you multiply 8,000 by 50 states and you see the figure you get, and they are the ones that hit the paperwork. So obviously not all those children and young people are going into Satanic ritual abuse, not all of them are going into hidden and government mind-control operations. But, the number of children that go missing is so completely ridiculous that it is very clear, when you take all the other evidence that is coming to light, that tens and tens and tens of thousands of them do. I do feel myself instinctively that the Jon Benet case is certainly part of this.

I talked earlier about how I thought the veil was lifting. I don't think anything in human form can stop it lifting. This is a done deal, this transformation of planet Earth. This question is, and it's down to us, how bumpy is the transition going to be? I think that, when you look at the way the veil is lifting, that things are now coming to light like the Jon Benet case and like the Bush stuff and many others, where the chinks of light are beginning to appear in this suppression. I don't think the Jon Benet case will go away. I don't

think Oklahoma will go away. I don't think any of these things will go away because I think one thing that they have done —there are two things that people of that mindset cannot understand or relate to or cope with: that is, people who are in integrity, and people who are not in fear. I think, over a period of time, they have had such a clear field to run the world as they wished that they have gotten lazy and they have gotten sloppy. And at the time they are getting sloppy, more and more people are waking up. I think a number of these things are actually going to be ways this gets into the public arena. Of course, with the Jon Benet thing, if pedophilia is as rampant staggeringly as it appears to be—I mean, what better than to have children in that sort of beauty contest circuit? It is obvious that that would be used, indeed, perhaps, even set up from the start by the mindset that we are talking about. I do think it is involved.

AUDIENCE: So you see that particular case as a chink in the armor and not a part of the cover-up?

DAVID: I think the Jon Benet story is clearly, at the moment, being covered up. I don't think you can go on covering up things when information is coming out, when information is coming out increasingly at the rate it is. I think they have made a really big mistake, for instance, over Oklahoma, because that is not going to go away. It doesn't matter, to an extent, what that court decides. It is obviously a stitch-up anyway. That story is not going to go away, because it's too ludicrous. I do feel myself that there is an anxiety now among the controlling Elite to push this on quicker, quicker, quicker. And that will manifest, to an extent, in seeking to discredit even more urgently those who are putting this stuff out. Because there is a point where they are trying to get this installed before the awakening, which they demonstrably know is going on, reaches critical mass. Once it reaches critical mass, and I don't think we are far from it, this agenda is in desperate trouble. I do feel an anxiety to push it on and push it on. I think some of their time scales are getting behind. Everyone that stands up and speaks out is pushing their time scale behind a little bit more. So I can see some major mistakes being made. I think they have already been made and will have prove to have been so.

AUDIENCE: David, if you agree that there is a mind some place that is running this New World Order, a centralized power, what do you see the common man has as his power to overcome this uncollected? These guys are working on a single thought, a single mind idea. How is the million-points-of-light out here that you are awakening, how are they going to collectively bring it all together and overcome this power?

DAVID: Well, in the end, it is like I talked about before the pudding [*break*]. Once we access who we are and start to manifest that vision, that power, that focus and that fearlessness in our everyday lives, we will naturally do the things that will bring an end to this. What they have worked to do, and this is what mind control is in the end, is to delink us from that level of our multidimensional self. It is interesting when you talk to people like Cathy O'Brien, one of the things that they so often say is, "No matter what they did to us, they could not get to our spiritual core." Because the spiritual core, pure love, soul, is so far out-of-this-world vibrationally, they can't touch it. What they can do is delink us from it if we allow it to happen. Then we become a fragment of consciousness. It is interesting, wherever you look, you see, "as above so below."

I am sure people here know all about multiple personality disorder and stuff like that after what *CON*-*TACT* has been printing. Multiple personality disorder is basically breaking up the mind that operates through the physical body into compartments that are unaware of the other's existence. In a way what we are looking at in the collective consciousness and our own higher consciousness is that we have been

compartmentalized in the same way, so that our consciousness here, looking through the eyes, and hearing through the ears has become delinked, compartmentalized from its higher dimensional self. So, in a way, almost every person in the world is a multiple in that sense. Once you kind of break down those barriers, and they are basically emotional barriers, and you relink with multidimensional self then in the same way that Cathy O'Brien's mind became whole as the compartments were removed, so we become multidimensionally whole when we remove our own compartments, this egg shell I talk about. At that point we are accessing a power well beyond a knowledge, an understanding, a wisdom, well beyond anything that has been manipulated in the world, because you can't get out there vibrationally unless your heart is open. And if your heart's open, then you don't abuse children and you don't manipulate countries into world wars in this century. I think it is very important that we keep in our mind the fact that the real power is with the mass of the human race, and not with this handful of people who have manipulated us. It is the knowledge of the mind, and consciousness that has been passed over for thousands of years through the higher levels of the mystery schools and the secret society networks which has allowed a situation in which the few get hold of the knowledge of the nature of consciousness and stuff and therefore use it on us to manipulate, while using inquisitions and ridicule and stuff like that to keep that knowledge out of the public domain, where we can use it for positive reasons, because knowledge is not good or bad: it just is.

AUDIENCE: It sounds good, David, but where can I go to get those children out of that hole? Where can I go for support?

DAVID: You know that.

AUDIENCE: I know that but I can't go to the police, I can't go to my government, I can't go to a lawyer. Who can I go to?

DAVID: You can go to some lawyers. The point is where can I go to? I can't go to the police, I can't go to a lawyer, I can't go to a politician about this, so what am I doing? I'm going around, bypassing that, going direct to people who can make a difference, which is all of us. If you go via the established structure, then you are just wasting your time because that is there to stop, not to put this out. Then go direct to people, put it out, tell them about it.

AUDIENCE: Maybe I am belaboring the point, David, but where do all these thousands of people go to make the change?

DAVID: Only they know that. If you are looking to me to say what I think you should do, you are giving your power away to me. You know! It's accessing that: somewhere in you, you have an intuition which says, "If you want to do this, this is where you need to go." I don't know where you need to go. You know where you need to go. That is why I am simply not going to get into, at any time, with saying this is what people should do in terms of action, because I'm then just doing what I'm challenging which is telling people what is right for them. I know what is right for me. I know what I'm trying to do to highlight this. I'm not even going to begin to tell you what I think you should do or even what you could do. You know that. Accessing it is your responsibility, not mine.

AUDIENCE: So you think one person can change it all?

DAVID: Well, one person can change it all. I remember, in the very early part of my awakening I bumped into a psychic when I was still a television presenter. She started giving me this information which was kind of blowing me away because this was all new to me at the time. She was telling me that I was going to go out on a global scale and talk about all this stuff, and I [would be] facing opposition, but they would always be there to protect me, and all this stuff. I was thinking, "What?" One of the things she said, funny enough, was and I will never forget it—one man cannot change the world, but one man can communicate the message that can change the world. So one man can, but there is no need for one man to do it because we are all that one man and we are all that one woman. It is just a choice.

AUDIENCE: Sir, regarding your comment about the future resting with the vast majority of people who sense what is right versus the tiny fragment that's, through our inaction, attained control of the planet. An interesting idea that Commander Hatonn has discussed and alluded to is that there has been such a massive program of cloning going on for so many decades that something on the order of two/thirds or maybe three/quarters of the physical beings walking around on the planet could be called, to one degree or another, soulless. I wonder if that idea has come your way and how you would respond to that? It makes the job all the harder, I guess would be another way of saying it.

DAVID: Well, first of all, if you take what appears to be the case, that secret technology and development is anything, thirty, forty, fifty years and more ahead of what is in the public arena, then if they are admitting to cloning sheep in the public arena, then they have clearly been cloning people for a very long time. It is kind of funny, almost, in the papers: "Oh well, they might be doing people in three or four years." Funny, isn't it?

AUDIENCE: Well Domino's has them doing sheep at the sound of a button with a pizza on top, because they are so excited about having done it once, the guy gets snowed in with cloned sheep.

DAVID: Well, I will tell you a funny story. You know these guys that came with the cameras to *CON*-*TACT* and stuff. One thing I think that we might remember is that the media is not knowingly manipulating, in the vast majority of cases. There are publishers that are knowingly manipulating, there are editors that are knowingly manipulating, there are key writers, key correspondents. But most journalists—and I have been one—are some of the most uninformed, manipulated people you will ever meet in your life. We have this saying in Britain which goes, "You can not bribe or twist the great British journalist, but seeing what they will do unbribed there is no reason to."

I will tell you a funny story. When I was talking down in Los Angeles about a week ago, I talked twice in Los Angeles on different nights, and after the second one this guy came up to me with an English accent, and he said, "Can I have a word with you?" I said, "OK." He said, "I am from the *Observer*," which is a broadsheet Sunday newspaper in Britain. And we are having this conversation and it's, like—talk about not up to speed—at one point, and it was ever so funny, and I mentioned about Bush and his drug running—this is a journalist on a Sunday newspaper in Britain, not a tabloid, a "serious" one (the difference between tabloids and the serious ones is the serious ones use bigger sheets of paper and longer sentences, and their nose is slightly higher in the air) so this guy says at one point, he said, "Bush was running drugs?" I said, "Yeah!" He said, "What, when he was President?" I said, "Welcome to the world as it really is, I hope you will be very happy here."

So, most journalists are just naive. There is a combination which I find is incredibly manipulable and that's naiveté and arrogance: the naiveté that you will accept the stuff and not question it, and the arrogance to think that, of course, since you are a journalist, if it was going on, you would know about it.

So, what was the question again, I'm miles away now. Oh, cloning. Yeah, so I think that cloning is definitely a reality. It is ridiculous now that sheep stuff is in the public arena. I guess to an extent it makes things harder, but, I mean, we can go on piling things on top of things about how hard it is. I think ,actually, we are starting to turn the corner here. Again it comes back to what happened to *CONTACT* and others. If you weren't making a difference, they wouldn't even bother with you. I found it interesting: I have been in Denmark about three times now, and none of this is going out in Denmark. They asked me in from England because no one else is doing it in Denmark. It is amazing in a country of five million people how you can get things around pretty quick. I was talking the last time I went about their main newspaper. It's called *Politiken* and it's edited by a Bildeberger. Someone sent me recently a whole page article in *Politiken* talking about these people with theories of global conspiracy and all this stuff. "Don't listen, it is all nonsense, basically please don't listen." I have picked up on an aircraft recently, I think it was *Newsweek* (could have been *Time*, but I think it was *Newsweek*), and they had a page article about conspiracy theories; "Don't believe it". They don't waste that newsprint and that space unless they think it is necessary. So we are turning the corner here, and we need to keep focused on that.

I mean, you talk about cloning. Well two can play at that game. When I was up in Canada last autumn, I spoke in Vancouver, and they recorded the talk and they networked it around Canada and it had a really significant effect. When I went back to Vancouver this time, everything had upped a lot of gears. I spoke to 650 people in two nights in Canada. They are really beginning to open up there. The reason I am telling you that story is that the guy who put the meeting on, when I met him, when I arrived this time, he said to me, "Which one are you then?" I said, "What do you mean?" He said, "Which David Icke are you? Well a guy who is a conspiracy buff in Vancouver had heard the tape you did in VanCouver and then got hold of a tape you did in Los Angeles you did in the fall as well, and he is putting it around that they are not the same people."

Well, the guy putting in the meeting in Vancouver was told, "The real one spoke in Los Angeles; you are getting the clone. You have been ripped off." So when you look at my schedule, you will see that I am talking in Denmark, Britain, Australia and Canada and the United States all on the same night.

Actually, I think it is worthy of talking about this Canadian stuff. I don't want you to come across it. It relates very much to the United States and the big picture. When I was up in Canada the last time, I started to realize that there was a major operation going on up there to absorb Canada into the United States by 2005. This time I stayed with the guy and his wife who are at the forefront of exposing this. The man is called Glen Keeley, and what happened to him was that he was involved in putting together a big property deal some years ago; it was a big complex. Then he got a call from a government minister who wanted a clandestine meeting with him one morning. Basically, the conversation went along the lines of, "This is a big project; it would be a shame if something went wrong with it, wouldn't it? I mean, you need the government behind you, don't you?" The line was basically, "If you'd like that to happen, then put 5% on top of your cost and I will tell you where to send the money." So this guy, Glen Keeley—seems a very straight guy—immediately dropped the project, got out of it, and spent one thousand days on Parliament Hill in Ottawa protesting, day after day after day, shouting profusely at Brian Mulroney the prime minister, asking

him how many five percents he had taken that day.

We talk about "Can one man make a difference?" He was telling me that, at the early part of that stand, he was being laughed at and ridiculed. But by the end of it, people in the government were giving him documents. And then, synchronicity happens, because the team is coming together now big time. She came across him, a lady named Shelly Ann Clark.

Shelly Ann Clark was born into a wealthy diplomatic Canadian family, and went to work for the Canadian foreign office, and came into a significant position. At one point, she was special assistant to a guy named Germane Dennis. He was one of the negotiators of the Free Trade Agreement with the United States. She was called out a number of times in the middle of the night between 12 and 4 o'clock, and she was told to do two things; first of all, shred documents which showed what had really been agreed at a federal level between Canada and America, and to produce a new version of the Free Trade Agreement which the provinces of Canada would see. For instance, if Canada was giving up 40% of something in the agreement, the doctored document for the provinces said they were giving up 10%, and so on. So they didn't know what they were agreeing to. During these clandestine operations in the middle of the night, Shelly Ann Clark-this is in the '80s, now-also saw what she called a bio-rhythm chart which was the sequence of events through the '80s up to 2005 which would lead to Canada being absorbed into the United States. One of these—and it was scheduled back in the '80s for 1995—was the pulling out of the union by Quebec. It even named, back in the '80s in this chart, the premier, the man who would be premier of Quebec at this time now, and his name was Lucien Bouchard(?) and that is who is premier now. They got a little behind in the time scale because in 1995, right on the button, they orchestrated a referendum which failed by a small majority.

The last time I was in Canada I saw an article in, anything like a free newspaper left, called the *Toronto Star* which was looking at the way Lucien Bouchard(?) was making life difficult and unpleasant for English speakers in Quebec and they were leaving Quebec in droves. What the guy's doing, of course, is exporting the majority so when they go the next time, they will get it. In this bio-rhythm chart—incidentally, Shelly Ann Clark is now married to Glen Keeley and I stayed with both of them in Canada this time—the scam to get Canada into the union (and for something else very important that I will talk about in a second) was something called the Grand Canal Project. It is to dam James Bay in the north of Canada and to redirect the fresh water flow down into the United States. It is a massive operation that will cost hundreds of billions of dollars. The idea is to sell to the Canadian people—because, of course, NAFTA is dismantling Canada's economy—it is to sell to the Canadian people the idea that, if this is done, they will be able to sell water, which they have in fantastic abundance in Canada, to the United States, particularly to the Midwest, which will mean there will be no more dust bowls or anything like that because there will be a permanent, constant flow of fresh water. And in doing that, they will be able to have a very, very large check from the United States for selling them that water.

DAVID: The idea is to underestimate the cost. Oh, another thing that would be offered, of course, is that at a time when jobs are getting scarcer because of NAFTA this project will create hundreds of thousands of jobs and more for Canadian people. And if you're without a job that's another incentive to say yes to this stuff. The idea then, and this is from the bio-rhythm chart back in the eighties, is to under price, very significantly, the cost of the project. To borrow the money from the international bankers to fund it and then, before it's finished and before any money is coming in from the project, it runs out of money. Big

time, runs out of money. The idea then is for whoever's Premier at the time, and I'm sure they know who that will be already, is to have crisis meetings with the international bankers. Who will say to them, "We can't lend you any more money, because we're not sure of getting it back. Therefore there's nothing we can do because you cannot guarantee repaying it. You've fallen on this." And they will say, "There is only one way that you will be able to finish the project and start to get this money in and that is to have the United States guarantee the further hundred billion (or whatever it is), loan that's necessary to finish this project." Take into account, by now in the sequence, Quebec is no longer in the Union. And it's also planned for Ontario—which is already the 51st state of the United States, in truth—to start focusing down towards the United States in terms of where it looks for its focus. And the Canadian people will be offered the choice, if that's the word, between a completely bankrupt, chaotic country, or economic stability being returned by being absorbed into the United States. The land that is necessary to build this canal is already being bought up, and much of it already owned, by key Illuminati families like the Bronfmans, who have been buying it up over a long period of time.

Also, at the moment, there is another scam going on in which there's a lot of talk about Indian communities having rights to land, historically, which is currently owned by White Canadians. What is going on here, it appears, is that something I also think that we need to get focused on, especially in the New Age, where if you are a Native person, you must by definition be enlightened. A Native person, a Black person, a Chinese person, a White person is consciousness incarnate, full stop. Their state of being has no relationship whatsoever with their physical body. And, so as some of the Canadian Indians, who interacted with Glen Keeley, have said, "You think you have corruption in the White community—it's no different in ours."

And I think that what is planned is for great chunks of land, which just happened to be exactly what is required for the canal project, will be handed over to the Canadian Indians, to that part of them that are not focused on the spiritual side of life. And they will then sell it on to the international bankers. So, what's the other reason for this, because I mean this is intellectual geniuses that we are talking about, therefore there's never one reason it's just going to get Canada into the Union. The plan that Keeley started to identify— and I think he's absolutely right, because the stuff that I've come across and people in this room will have come across fits into this also—is to use that water, when it's on flow to turn the Midwest of the United States into one of the greatest, if not the greatest, centers for food production in the world, while at the same time destroying other areas of food production, elsewhere on the planet. To the point where what the United States—not the United States, what the hidden hand working through the United States—chooses to do with the food produced in the Midwest will, every year, be the balance about how many people eat and how many people don't.

Part of Colorado just goes into this area that Keeley has mapped out for this great flow of water and therefore this tremendous fertile area that it will become. And just off the edge of it is Denver, which is increasingly becoming the focus of so much. I was talking to someone the other night who had worked for the Federal Government about this and he was saying "My wages used to be paid from Washington, now they started being paid from Denver." And things are moving there. It's no accident that the McVeigh trial has gone there. And I do think that all these things are connected. The good thing about this is that although they're looking to—and, of course, it's the food cartel owned by the same people, like Archer Danliels Midland and stuff, but it's behind this part of the scam of having control of whether people eat or not. I think 2005 was on the bio-rhythm chart; maybe that's gone forward now because they just missed the referendum result they wanted in Quebec but certainly in the early part of the next century it is, to a

certain extent, feasible to play the first side of this, which is bankrupting Canada.

But there's people I've talked to, up there, about the civil engineering nature of this project. You're talking twenty years and more before that flow of water can bring about the food scam that they're planning, and my feeling is that anything that takes twenty years to bring into existence, ain't going to make it. But, that's the sort of stuff that I got up there in Canada and it certainly fits with a lot of other stuff.

It's not just, you know, whether it's going to happen or not, I'm talking about what they're planning.

AUDIENCE: About ten or fifteen weeks ago *CONTACT* printed the last report by Serge Monast that exposed Project Blue Beam, that's probably the report he was killed for, and it exposed a very similar story to what you just told, involving Saint James Bay. But, with a hydroelectric twist, involving a planned power outage to nineteen Eastern and Midwestern States in the United States and an armed uprising by the Cree Indians. And a much shorter time-line, and I think you'd find that very interesting information. And one of the most interesting little snippets—buried deep down in the story, which wasn't more than six or eight pages—he also exposed the idea that, of course, the technological innovations, like this cloning business, are metered out to the public by the Illuminati. And he actually portrayed a picture of sort of an inverse spiritual realm of dark energies communicating through sort of negative mediums, if you will. The nine areas of technology are controlling the scientific and technological futures. Very interesting story.

DAVID: I couldn't agree more. I've thought that myself for a long time. I think he was absolutely right. And I think what you've said about the shorter time-scale thing, I also feel a lot of sympathy with—there are long cycles and then there's the bits in between, as well. And something that I think fits in with what you've said there, is in Ontario there is a big power company called Ontario Hydro, which is actually headed by the same kind of people. There's a guy called Maury Strong who has massively manipulated the environmental movement who is involved there and it would appear that at the Bilderberg meeting in Kingscity, Toronto, in 1996, June 1996, hosted by Conrad Black who owns 52% of newspapers in Canada, or at least he does on behalf of British Intelligence, anyway. On the agenda of that Bilderberg meeting was both the removal of Quebec from the Union and the manipulation of Ontario Hydro. So, definitely, what you say and I think what Keeley says does interrelate and is part of the same big picture, absolutely.

AUDIENCE: David, when you say bio-rhythm, do you mean they're using the bio-rhythm aspect, or they're just laying down a schedule?

David: Well, I'm just using Shelly Ann Clark's description, as she said what she saw was just like a biorhythm chart. But I think that's an interesting point because this knowledge that's been passed on through initiation is the very knowledge that's beginning to reemerge in our part of the pyramid. And I think there's absolutely no question that they understand about the flows of energy, they understand about the power of astrological energies, the power of numbers, the power of names, and the power of doing something when the energy flow gives that something the best chance of success. And I don't think it's any accident whatsoever, although it's tried to be explained in other ways, that Waco happened on April 19th, and Oklahoma happened on April 19th, and I understand that even the first shot was fired that started the American War of Independence was on April 19th. It's a number that keeps coming up and so they're certainly working with these energies because, like I said before, knowledge is neutral. You can use it or abuse it. The very same knowledge that we're trying to use positively, they use for negative reasons. It's the same knowledge; so not only the date, but the place on the planet, when you go for an astrological reading with a good astrologer, who's coming from the scientific base of it, they ask you for your birth date, and also your birth place. So, when an agreement is signed, it's signed in the right place on the planet, from an energy point of view, on the right date and, no doubt, they go into such detail that even the right people are signing it at the right time. So, this flow of energy is with whatever they want to bring about, that's for sure.

[To be continued.]

CHAPTER 9

THE NEWS DESK, *SPECIAL* by Dr. Al Overholt 5/17/96

QUESTION & ANSWER: AN EXCHANGE WITH LaROUCHE CONCERNING CHINA

From THE NEW FEDERALIST, 4/14/97, [quoting:]

pict 2 men

The following exchange between Lyndon LaRouche and a Chinese political activist (who spoke through an interpreter) took place Feb. 16, during a question period at the Schiller Institute/ICLC Presidents' Day Conference in Northern Virginia. Subheads of course, are ours.

CHINESE GUEST: My name is Chao Ping Lee. I escaped from Tiananmen Square during the June 4th Movement (1989) in Beijing, among several leaders. When the massacre occurred, I was the Workers' Union Commander, and so I, with my naked eyes, I saw all the process of massacre. After the June 4th Movement of Beijing, in order to escape the chase of the Chinese Communist Party, I took refuge in the United States. Afterwards, I myself, and the other friends, who took refuge abroad—they are the leaders of the workers' organization—we organized the Chinese Workers Autonomous Union. I was elected the chairman. For several years, we have done a lot to push forward China's democracy, strive for the basic autonomy, human rights, the right to work, the welfare of the working class. We have devoted a lot of time and energy.

For these years, I myself, and my friends, all our efforts (have been) made in order to accelerate the coming of liberty and democracy to China, our motherland. In order that the billions of Chinese population can breathe as freely, liberal air as the American does. We devoted our time and youth. Many friends returned back to China, to do the underground secret work. And they were arrested again, and put into prison again.

THANKING SCHILLER INSTITUTE

The friends from Schiller Institute, have been giving us lots of help, to give us the weapons of ideology and philosophy to accelerate the pro-democratic movement of China. For many years, we have contacted many political parties, organizations; after a comparison, we deeply feel that there are very few who really

put Chinese problems on their international agenda, as Schiller Institute does. There are only very few organizations who are really doing penetrating research on China, in order to save China from collapse, politically or economically. I therefore represent my organization and my friends in expressing our heartfelt gratitude to Schiller Institute.

However, here I must put forward some very serious problems, for consideration. During recent years, the Chinese economy has been booming fast. The exports and imports have augmented a lot. The infrastructure construction goes very quickly. The most conspicuous is that while the world economy was universally depressive—many countries even rushed down very quickly—the GNP of China increased at a fixed rate, no less than 11%; that's conspicuous.

On the other hand, because of the one-party dictatorship of the Chinese Communist Party, democracy and freedom have been suppressed. In order to maintain this dictatorship, to perpetuate this dictatorship, the Chinese communists were taking another step cruelly suppressing the pro-democratic persons. So that, in the whole of China, there are many problems which we are worrying about. The first major problem is, the intensification of ethnic contradictions, which manifests itself in the Taiwan problem, the Tibet problem, and the Singkiang problem.

The second problem, is the intensification of the economic contradiction, which results in the non-equilibrium, or imbalance, of the regional economy and politics. And mainly the contradiction between the eastern coast and the hinterland, the north and the south, which means the earlier-developed and the laterdeveloped provinces. These contradictions are intensifying continually.

Although China is economically in a booming situation, in culture, in morality, in education, it's degenerating very seriously, so that we need an advanced theory, as Mr. LaRouche has proposed it, the megasystem, with the economy management theory. We need such a weapon to make China another new Renaissance, so that China can get rid of all these problems. It can be compared as after the 1890, many advanced theories were introduced into China, like Marxism-Leninism, which helped China to get rid of the imperialism. But their disadvantages have already been proven, so that in this stage, what we need is only Mr. LaRouche's theory, which is the most useful for Chinese development. Thanks.

LYNDON LAROUCHE: I think that the speaker has touched upon matters which are of fundamental, strategic significance, and has cited the China case, which is an exemplification of the nature of the problems we face today.

Look at China, first of all. And, before looking at China, look at China's **enemy.** The enemy of us all. The British Imperial Commonwealth, which is the declared enemy of China, which is the complexity which we face in many countries. For example, in the United States, we have many evils. We try to fight them. But we don't let the British Commonwealth intervene to organize to fight against the evils. We don't even let academics who think like Brits intervene in our domestic affairs, if we can prevent it.

CHINA'S ENEMY

And the problem is, that China is in a state of war, imposed upon it by an agent enemy of China, called the British Empire, something which China, collectively, remembers very well from the last century. So there-

fore, simplistic reactions to problems are not appropriate. We have friends from Ukraine and Russia, here today, and others, who could tell you the same thing. We have in every one of our countries, we have crises. We have great injustices. But we live under the hammer of the threat of the extermination of our nations. And therefore we conduct our internal struggles of our nations in a way not to place the existence of our nation and its purpose in jeopardy. And this is the problem, as the speaker has said, in respect to China.

What has happened is, that China has historic problems. China is the oldest living civilization on this planet: 5,000 years. There's no part of this planet which has a culture, except China, which is 5,000 years old. And in 5,000 years, China has picked up a number of internal contradictions, as they say, which are also part of their history, as all of our cultures have.

In the United States, we have a divided culture. We have a legacy of racism and slavery in the United States, which is unique among decent nations, and we have to fight that issue. And we have people in black skins, who are among the best slave herders, who tell Black people they are inferior, and they should go get their own inferior culture, and not try to deal with White superior cultures.

We have these problems.

But the key thing to remember, is that China is **embattled.** The British are out to destroy it. By British Empire, I mean the following: I mean a ruling group of people, who are of the Venetian type, financieroligarchs, who run a thing called the British Empire, or the extended British Empire, as a result of British participation, on the victorious side, in various wars over the past 200 years, almost 300 years. The British are ruled by a chosen monarchy, which was an elected monarchy, an elected, hereditary monarchy, the House of Welf, of Orange-Welf. It is ruled not by a **Parliament.** It is ruled by a **Privy Council.**

THE PRIVY COUNCIL

You know what the British Privy Council is? You should know your enemy. Every leader, every minister of a Commonwealth country, except those that revolted, is a member of the British Commonwealth. The British Commonwealth governs every Commonwealth country, directly, by dictatorship. Every minister of a Commonwealth country which has not resisted—as Sudan has resisted, or Nigeria, in a sense, has resisted—is an agent of the British monarchy. Every elected official of government, of every Commonwealth country, is an agent of the British Empire.

Now, you look at China from that standpoint. What's going on out of Hong Kong? Who's running the Japan operation against China? The same Britain that ran the two Sino-Japanese wars, 1894 and 1930 onwards. Who is deploying the opposition in Taiwan, which is trying to create a conflict between Taiwan and mainland China? British agents! Including some very highly placed; all in the name of ethnic issues.

Who is trying to destroy Indonesia? Who is destroying Thailand? Who is insisting every morning on destroying Myanmar, which is on China's flank? Who tried to destroy Korea? Who is trying to orchestrate Korea to become a trap for South Korea and for China, in a very important area of China? Who is sending people into Singkiang to stir up revolts under British pay, and then report them in the British press, to attack China? Who has deployed the Taliban in Afghani-

stan? British Intelligence [enhancement mine].

And we are fools, many of us. We refuse to recognize we don't have a **spiritual** enemy, only, on this planet. We have a very **real** enemy. That enemy is the British Empire, which is represented by the monarchy, which is evil. If you don't believe it—they don't even know how to breed straight. And the British Privy Council, which runs the Republic of South Africa, which runs Museveni, which controls and runs, actually, a non-Commonwealth country, Eritrea. Non-Commonwealth Ethiopia is controlled by the British Empire. Every Commonwealth country in Africa, except Nigeria and Sudan, are under direct control of the Empire, even though there are forces which have patriotically resisted it. India has resisted it.

It's the largest force on this planet and they're out to destroy China, and thus, what we must recognize, is we must further the elimination of the enemy, so that we may go about the business which we should have gone about at the end of World War II, if Roosevelt had lived, instead of being succeeded by Truman. We must proceed to defeat the enemy, while advancing honest principles, respecting the problems in each of our own countries, and among nations, resolving that upon the success in defeating the enemy, we will then have the circumstances to clean up a lot of problems, inside our countries. [End quoting]

And we think England and the British Empire are our friends??

When will we wake up to the fact that the U.S. Government has no real friends, even though the <u>people</u> of many countries like the <u>people</u> of the U.S.

CHAPTER 10

<u>THE SOVEREIGN CITIZENS (AUTHORITY)</u> Vs. <u>THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT</u> by V.K. Durham And Ray Bilger 4/14/97

Ref: Excessive Misconstruction and Abuse of Powers not granted nor vested nor enumerated to the Central Government, by treaty (*Constitution*) from the Sovereign Citizens.

In the landmark decision of Marbury vs. Madison, the Supreme Court of the United States, (1803. 1 Cranch (1) 137, 2 L. Ed. 60) stated that (quoting:)

By the *Constitution of the United States*, the President is invested with certain important political powers, in the exercise of which he is to use his own discretion, and is accountable only to his country in his political character and to his own conscience. To aid him in the performance of these duties, he is authorized to appoint certain officers, who act by his authority, and in conformity with his orders.

In such cases, their acts are his acts; and whatever opinion may be entertained of the manner in which executive discretion may be used, still there exists, and can exist, no power to control that discretion. The subjects are political. They respect the nation, not individual rights, and being entrusted to the executive the decision of the executive is conclusive. The application of this remark will be perceived by adverting to the Act of Congress for establishing the Department of Foreign Affairs. This officer, as his duties were prescribed by that act, is to conform precisely to the will of the President. He is a mere organ by whom that will is communicated. The acts of such an officer, as an officer, can never be examinable by the courts.

But when the legislature proceeds to impose on that office other duties; when he is directed peremptorily to perform certain acts; when the rights of individuals are dependent on the performance of those acts; he is so far the officer of the law, is amenable to the laws for his conduct, and cannot at his discretion sport away the vested rights of others...But where a specific duty is assigned by law, and individual rights depend upon the performance of that duty, it seems equally clear that the individual who considers himself injured has a right to resort to the laws of this country for a remedy...

That the people have an original right to establish, for their future government, such principles as, in their opinion, shall most conduce to their own happiness is the basis on which the whole American fabric has been erected. The exercise of this original right is a very great exertion; nor can it, nor ought it, to be frequently repeated. The principles, therefore, so established, are deemed fundamental. And as the authority from which they proceed is supreme, and can seldom act, they are designed to be permanent.

This original and supreme will organizes the government and assigns to different departments their respective powers. It may either stop here, or establish certain limits not to be transcended by those departments.

The government of the United States is of the latter description. The powers of the legislature are defined

and limited; and those limits may not be mistaken, or forgotten: so the *Constitution* is written. To what course are powers limited, and to what purpose is that limitation committed to writing, if these limits may, at any time, be passed by those intended to be restrained? The distinction between a government with limited and unlimited powers is abolished, if those limits do not confine the persons on whom they are imposed...It is a proposition too plain to be contested, that the *Constitution* controls any legislative act repugnant to it; or, that the legislature may alter the *Constitution* by an ordinary act.

Between these alternatives there is no middle ground. The *Constitution* is either a superior paramount law, unchangeable by ordinary means, or it is on a level with ordinary legislative acts, and, like other acts, is alterable when the legislature shall please to alter it...

Certainly all those who have reformed written constitutions contemplate them as forming the fundamental and paramount law of the nation, and, consequently, the theory of every such government must be, that an act of the legislature, repugnant to the *Constitution*, is void...

So if a law be in opposition to the *Constitution* if both the law and the *Constitution* apply to a particular case, so that the court must either decide that case conformably to the law, disregarding the *Constitution*; or conformably to the *Constitution*, disregarding the law; the court must determine which of these conflicting rules governs the case. This is of the very essence of judicial duty.

If, then, the courts are to regard the *Constitution*, and the *Constitution* is superior to any ordinary act of the legislatures, the *Constitution*, and not such ordinary act, must govern the case to which they both apply.

Those, then, who controvert the principle that the *Constitution* is to be considered, in court, as a paramount law, are reduced to the necessity of maintaining that courts must close their eyes on the *Constitution*, and see only the law.

This doctrine would subvert the very foundation of all written constitutions. It would declare that an act which, according to the principles and theory of our government, is entirely void, is yet, in practice, completely obligatory. It would declare that if the legislature shall do what is expressly forbidden, such act, notwithstanding the express prohibition, is in reality effectual. It would be giving to the legislature a practical and real omnipotence, with the same breath which professes to restrict their powers within narrow limits. It is prescribing limits, and declaring that those limits may be passed at pleasure...

The judicial power of the United States is extended to all cases arising under the *Constitution*. Could it be the intention of those who gave this power, to say that in using it the *Constitution* should not be looked into? That a case arising under the *Constitution* should be decided without examining the instrument under which it arises?

This is too extravagant to be maintained.

In some cases, then, the *Constitution* must be looked into by the judges. And if they can open it at all, what part of it are they forbidden to read or to obey?...

Why otherwise does it direct the judges to take an oath to support it? This oath certainly applies in a special manner, to their conduct in their official character. How immoral to impose it on them, if they were to be used as the instruments, and the knowing instruments, for violating what they swear to support!

The oath of office, too, imposed by the legislature, is completely demonstrative of the legislative opinion on this subject...

Why does a judge swear to discharge his duties agreeably to the *Constitution of the United States*, if that constitution forms no rule for his government?...

It is also not entirely unworthy of observation, that in declaring what shall be the supreme law of the land, the *Constitution* itself is first mentioned; and not the laws of the United States generally, but only those which shall be made in pursuance of the *Constitution* have that rank.

Thus, the particular phraseology of the *Constitution of the United States* confirms and strengthens the principle, supposed to be essential to all written constitutions, that a law repugnant to the *Constitution* is void; and that courts, as well as other departments, are bound by that instrument. (End quoting.)

Currently, in this time of our American history, we have a president issuing executive orders which directly infringe into, and upon, the rights of the American people. Likewise, his appointees, delegees, delegates, nominees, committees, relatives, friends, foreign employees, corporations, trusts, etc., who choose to pervert the *Constitution of the United States*, have all violated the inalienable rights of We Sovereign Citizens, the ultimate Authority in "Our" government.

We Sovereign American Citizens are the ultimate Authority of the Government of the United States. This was clearly identified in Marbury vs. Madison (1803), when the *Constitution of the United States* was 14 years old. Also, when Marbury vs. Madison was held by the United States Supreme Court, the *Bill of Rights* (ratified, December 15, 1791) was 12 years old. The intent was clear, unmistaken, and firm, as to the rights of individuals guaranteed, held perpetual, inherent and inviolable by acts of any branch of government, albeit state or federal.

Does the President possess the constitutional power to enter into treaties with other nations? Yes, he does, as long as they do not impede the original treaty of the *Constitution* with the American people.

Can the President of the United States issue executive orders, or inquire of Arlen Specter (per letter on White House letterhead), to snoop into the pantries of American households for the purpose of food confiscation from "cult" groups such as Mormons and Christians? No! Constitutionally, no! He is not in possession constitutionally of such powers. Nor is Congress.

Does the President have the constitutional power to delegate the powers of the Office of the President of the United States, or, the laws of the United States, to such persons who have sworn allegiance to other nations while acting on his committees, as appointees of said executive, thereby operating in conflict of interest with the mandatory laws made in pursuance of the *Constitution of the United States*? No!

Furthermore, do our judges in the Judicial Branch of "Our" government have the power to circumvent or ignore the *Constitution*? Certainly not according to the Supreme Court in 1803.

And does our Congress have the power to enact laws which are repugnant to the *Constitution*? Again, you do not need a rocket scientist to tell you the answer when the Supreme Court was so emphatic about it in their decision in Marbury vs. Madison in 1803. Yet the Congress continues to pass unconstitutional laws day after day after day!

Since it appears for all intents and purposes that all three Branches of "Our" government are in fact operating totally outside the parameters set forth by We the People in "Our" *Constitution*, what are we to do to correct the situation?

Thomas Jefferson told us in the *Declaration of Independence* in 1776, "that, whenever any form of government becomes destructive of these ends, it is **the right of the people** to alter or to abolish it, and to institute a new government, laying its foundation on such principles, and organizing its powers in such form, as to them shall seem most likely to effect their safety and happiness."

If we can do this without guns and only with our pens, we may live to see a future fit for our children. What we need is a 260 Million Civilian March on Washington, D.C. And this summer would be the perfect time for it!!

CHAPTER 11

AN ODE TO GRANDMA

"To be continued as inspiration unfolds"

The U.S. Congress cries and shrieks Whenever a lady called "Grandma" SPEAKS! Uncovering lies that parasites seek To cover deep with rhetoric sweet.

"She lies, she lies," the asshole parasites yell. But Americans believe the truth she tells. And time will cause the knowing to flow. Yes, the day will come when all will know.

The *Constitution* will once again Become the rule for every man. America shall be for God and Law, And to all nations a "Land of Awe".

A li'l ole lady from Okawville With fiery red hair and an iron-clad will Has Congress actin' like a jumpin' jack, And fearing a gallows on a tree out back.

Come home, boys and girls of Congress dear, We'll plan a welcome-home party here. A rope for you and a hoss for me: Someone may hang from a cottonwood tree.

Now the end doesn't have to end that way, If Congress brings our *Constituiton* into play. You politicians can still have some say Of how you wish to end this play.

-A Non A Mouse

CHAPTER 12

HILARION: UNDERSTANDING YOUR BIO-ELECTRIC SENSING MACHINE

Editor's note: The following writing is by the Ascended Master known as Hilarion of the Fifth Ray, the Emerald (green) Ray of Healing, among the seven great "Rainbow Masters" communicating at this time to help us through Earth-Shan's planetary transition and rebalancing. See Journal #7 called THE RAINBOW MASTERS for more background on this important group of teachers, plus earlier writings by them. Refer to the Back Page for Journal ordering information.

5/17/97 MASTER HILARION

Good afternoon, my friend. Please release of the emotional charge and allow the energy to flow naturally and smoothly. It is I, Hilarion, of the Fifth Aspect of Creator's Spectral Expression. I come in the Light of Holy God of Lighted Creation. I come as the Cohan (Master Teacher) of the Emerald Ray.

Ones on your planet are greatly concerned with the physical well-being of the body in which they are housed. Here we shall give forth some insights that will help to clarify the causes of the conditions that ones are experiencing. For most this will not be "comfortable" reading because the reasons for illnesses are most often other than what a person wants to hear, let alone accept.

The physical body is "merely" a conduit for the interaction into and the interfacing with the physical experience. I say "merely" because that body is a most exquisite creation indeed and poorly understood by your current level of so-called medical science.

It is a self-contained bio-electric machine that is quite suited to handle a wide array of energy patterns and frequencies that allow for the animation and coordination between the physical and the non-physical. The body's electrical system is quite sensitive and balanced in such a manner as to have the capability to respond and alter according to emotional desires of the one controlling the mechanism.

YOU ARE NOT YOUR BODY! "You" are the one inhabiting the mechanism and it responds to your desires. There is similarity between "you" inhabiting and operating your body, and the process of sitting behind the wheel and driving your automobile.

The body, for the most part, is self regulating and will tend to run quite well in an "autopilot" mode. However, there come times of experience where the body is subjected to threat, such as physical injury, when it will offer a reactionary response to the danger and bring focus to the impending physical condition.

An example of this reactionary impulse would be to quickly remove one's hand from a hot stovetop. The body will retain information that will help one to avoid future damage and will offer a cautionary warning to the host (YOU) when the hand even gets close to a warm object.

This mechanism is part of the design of the body so that more primitive (lesser aware spiritually) users will be able to persist long enough in the physical without demise so that there will be adequate time sequence for growth.

This is the situation wherein one will tend to live instinctively and obey the signals of the body such as hunger, thirst, and rest. Ones will seek out the satisfaction of these basic needs so that they can experience as fully as possible.

As entities begin to grow more and more aware spiritually, they will begin to come out of the fog and into a more reasoning condition wherein mental anticipation of the future need for food will be recognized and planned for through storage.

This is the point where ones begin to awaken enough to realize that there is something more to the experience than to just exist and search out survival needs. This is where ones begin to reason with others the value of working together with one another in order to quiet the distractions and concerns of the body. This is where there occurs the first spark of sensing that man is more than a reactionary animal and that there is an inner desire to explore this awareness.

As cultures and beings evolve, there comes the need for Guides and Wayshowers to interject more and more of the true nature of the physical experience. While Esu "Jesus" Sananda is a good example of one such Wayshower who came to your planet 2000 years ago, MANY have come at this present time. These more advanced ones will volunteer for the challenge of fulfilling this task and will choose to take on a body in the physical to bring forth the all-important messages concerning the non-seen-but-felt spiritual connectedness of mankind.

These awakening nudges will often cause great emotional stirrings in the body. Ones will not know how to handle these energy surges at first, because they are subtle yet strong in their grip upon the physical apparatus. The surges will cause an array of sensations within the physical which, in turn, can provide the physical entity with guidance as to what is right versus what is wrong.

Much like the reactionary impulses to avoid physical danger, the body will offer reactionary impulses in response to other kinds of situations, which can nudge you to go toward that which will offer comfort and warmth. And in the case of the presentings of spiritual truth, the body will offer the best it can in the way of "gut felt" responses to that which is being offered.

"How", you may ask, "does the body do this?"

The physical part of the body is but "only" one small part of the entire apparatus that makes up the entire, functioning, bio-electric machinery. Just like in a computer, you have all the physical components—the main processor, the memory modules, the peripheral (audio and video) circuit boards, and the interconnecting wiring. And yet, more fundamentally, the computer still requires electricity (energy) operating in very focused ways in order to function and come to life at all. In the case of the body, there are various electrical counterparts associated with each physical part of the body, including each organ and each individual cell. More fundamentally, there is a coordinated electromagnetic (LIGHT) energy field that encompasses the entire physical body. Some can actually see this "luminous" electromagnetic field under the proper conditions and call it the aura.

Your body's electromagnetic field interacts with the electromagnetic fields emanated by others and will respond to the various frequencies of these fields.

This is when you ones will say that you KNOW you can trust a person immediately; you don't know why but you can just "feel" it. This is why, when another comes offering true spiritual knowledge, you "feel" it within your "gut". You are responding to the higher-frequency energies flowing into the electromagnetic field of the body. The body then responds with a desire to find more of what causes this reaction.

This is also the reason why some ones will be frightened of you. They will know that you hold truth and they cannot hide their trickery from you and that you will, in time, see through their games. These ones have resisted the spiritual path, having not yet learned to recognize that there is value in the experience. These ones have an energy signature that is much lower in frequency. They are usually the ones clinging to the physical-material for their comforts and security. They are much like the animal that has to horde and hide food from others that might take it away—not realizing that there are infinitely abundant sources of nourishment for both the physical apparatus and, more importantly, the soul (the non-physical, God-like, thought projection of Creator Source).

When ones turn from their purpose, there come the "STRESSES" of the life experience. This unbalanced condition is a signal to you so that you can stop to evaluate where it is that you are heading and compare that to where your heart tells you that you should be heading. The heart knows the direction that will garner fulfillment.

More accurately, it is the emotional (electromagnetic) energy center associated with the heart that is attuned to both your Purpose from Creator Source and the impinging emotional currents of the ever-changing electromagnetic pulse-wave universe in which you exist. This heart energy center responds by instinctively offering that which will help you to discern your most satisfying path in life.

When you first start heading in a direction that is not fulfilling to the purpose for your being down there, you may or may not notice the subtle annoyance that you feel. But be assured that it is there. This causes slight distortions in the energy field of the body as you resist the natural flow of your experience. These distortions are what you ones refer to as "stress" and the corresponding worry and frustration is a by-product of the electromagnetic distortions in the nonphysical part of the body.

If these distortions are allowed to persist, they will cause physiological malfunctions within the body. The physical body will respond to the out-of-balance (out-of-phase electrical impulses) condition of the electromagnetic energy field of the body. This will result in negative physiological changes within the body if the condition persists—such as colds, flu, cancers, and especially

that #1 cause of death: HEART dis-ease.

Please be aware that the direction of the individual always starts with a thought and a decision. When ones are considering choices of action is when ones should really make an effort to monitor the response of the heart or "gut" while evaluating their choices. Some do this automatically and may cause frustration in others because there will be times when the only reason they can offer for an action is: "I don't know; it was 'just' a feeling." These perceptive ones have learned to recognize and utilize the "bio-feedback" that is being offered to them.

When there is illness of any sort in the body, you can be assured that the one experiencing the illness was not paying attention to the signals offered through the heart energy center. There are choices and decisions associated with the condition that allowed for the stress to persist on and on until there is great unbalance within the physical, causing improper coordination between the various energy centers, and thus the body will not regulate itself properly.

When ones can isolate that which causes them "stress", they will be looking for that which has a decision or choice associated with it and would be wise to perhaps re-evaluate or look for that which they are resisting. Usually those things that the heart desires by way of growth have responsibility associated with them, and ones know analytically that there are often "growing pains" associated with such responsibility—as the primitive, ego-based, reactionary mode of living is replaced with a freer, more personally responsible mode of living.

Many will go through many life experiences without ever recognizing the connection between the physical condition and the non-physical stress—only to cast blame upon another for their lack of physical balance. YOU each are creators of YOUR experience, either through deliberate action or passive reaction. Your physical condition is no exception!

Ponder upon these words, for they are offered in love and NOT with the intent to be offensive or hurtful. At this time many are crying out for assistance with the physical condition of the body. You will see that there is great value in finding within yourselves the TRUE cause(s) of any unbalanced situation.

The subject matter discussed here is far from complete. It is offered as a general overview so that ones can come into awareness of self in a general, yet more balanced, manner. There shall be more coming forth on this subject of the physical body's functioning. Please be patient and understanding. Thank you!

I am Master Hilarion. I represent the Heart Center of God. In Light and Love, SALU!

CHAPTER 13

TUTORIAL ON VOLCANOS AND RELATED GEOPHYSICS

Due to the recent alert from Commander Soltec in last week's CONTACT about the impending explosion of Mt. Popocatepetl near Mexico City, as well as the frequent rumblings (and volcanic alerts issued by the media) concerning Mammoth Mountain and Mono Lake near Yosemite in California (with its attendant large skiing and hiking resort community), we are reprinting the Professor's lessons on volcanos at this time.

To quote from Soltec's 5/22/93 writing on this subject: "You ones in California and Nevada, especially, need to be very aware of that old volcano in the Mammoth and Mono Lakes area, because you have been experiencing a great deal of renewed activity there. Not only are there earthquakes, but you also have a lava dome that has been building for quite a few years, and this is not something to be ignored.

"As you should be aware, I have given instruction on this area several times in the recent past, and the information was given for a purpose. This sleeping giant is awakening, chelas, and you ones are most likely going to experience, in your lifetimes, an eruption of this volcano.

"This is not some little insignificant volcano, but one that, during its last eruption, made Mount St. Helens look like a little toy. The ash cloud at that time spread as far east as Nebraska and Kansas, as far south as Old Mexico, and as far north as Wyoming. The ash within a 100-mile radius of the volcano could accumulate to as much as 3 to 4 feet in depth, and there would also, most likely, be hot pyroclastic ash flows, which could extend as far as 150 to 200 miles from the volcano itself. So, as you can see, this is not a volcano to be taken lightly, and this new flurry of seismic activity is symptomatic of magma movement below the surface.

"The Long Valley Caldera is approximately 20 miles in diameter, and the area of magma uplift within the caldera is approximately 7 1/2 miles in diameter. The magma chamber lies at a depth of approximately 5 miles, but it is rising continually. The new round of earthquakes recently is cause for concern in this place, as the area is riddled with many faults as well. As your part of the world moves into its "vacation" time of year, the concern for this area should be ringing loudly, as this is a very popular vacation site, and many could be caught there unaware of the potential hazard that exists."

We are in serious times as the signs of building pressures within Mother Earth continue to intensify. Thus it is time to again share this very readable tutorial on the subject of volcanos and related volcanic activities.

The writing below originally appeared on pages 17-26 in Journal #21 called, Creation, The Sacred Universe, as there had been, according to the media, an "insignificant" rash of small earthquakes in this same Long Valley Caldera area at that late-October 1990 time frame. — E.Y.

10/24/90 #1 SOLTEC/HATONN

Hatonn present in service unto God and Man—within the Light of Truth. So be it. I ask, Dharma, that you avail yourself and service, briefly, to Commander Ceres Anthonious Soltec for, before we write this day, I must call urgent attention to you ones. There has been a rather small Earthquake within the past 12 hours in Northern California which bears great importance. It is a sign to you ones who will "see" and "hear". The quake itself is not of great importance; it is the fact that it is in the area of Lee Vining (close to Yosemite) but that is not the point. It epicenters in the area where the radioactive "bulge" of molten matter made radioactive by your Nevada testing is "coming to a head". This quake has two points of interest—it tells you where first the toxic material might surface and also relieves a bit of pressure from the "cone" itself. I move to stand-by, thank you.

* * * * *

Soltec present to speak of general information regarding the type of quake just experienced in this most important area. I am responsible for the Command following most closely your Earth Changes in a "geophysical" attitude and, hopefully, allow you ones to have knowledge regarding these changes and "possibilities" involved. I can also tell you what to look for relative to a given action as follow-on. Please do not ask me to define explicitly in "Earth-timeframe". We calculate possibilities and probabilities by "sequence of events". I shall also make it as simple for general understanding as I can find words to fit descriptions.

The relatively small quake in point was experienced in California to the coastal area near and around San Francisco as well as throughout portions of Nevada (most important indeed). To allow understanding to the "lay" public, I must first speak of vulcanism in general. Therefore, I ask ones who know all this information to please be patient, for we find that 99.9% of the human masses do not have the foggiest idea of that which we outlay unto you.

VULCANISM

The term "vulcanism" implies volcanos—and they are, to be sure, a spectacular product of it. But vulcanism involves much more than mere volcanos. *Any invasion of the Earth's crustal zone by magma from below is properly called vulcanism*. If the magma pushes its way far up into the crustal strata but does not reach the surface, it is termed *intrusive* vulcanism, but if the magma flows out onto the surface via volcanic or other vents, it is called *extrusive* vulcanism. (These, of course, are Earth/English words and will need translation for other language groups.)

The question may well be asked, "Why does molten material from the Earth's interior force its way into and through the hard rock of the crust?" This is one of the questions that has vexed your geologists for many years—not only, "Why does magma invade the crust?" but, "Where precisely does the magma originate?" It is obvious to you "close" observers that release of pressure on the interior of the Earth by deformation and fracturing of the crust triggers the outward movement of magma, but whether it originates initially at the Earth's core, the mantle, or even the crust itself is difficult for you to determine for you have not enough knowledge or ability to research those pressures and temperatures to reach valid, provable conclusions.

It depends on the TYPE of volcanic activity. Most volcanos tap only relatively shallow source regions; however, this does not obviate the deep-seated sources for certain types of volcanic activity.

Nearly all major mountain masses are underlain by intrusive masses, and frequently there is some sort of extrusive vulcanism in evidence as well—simply through visual observation. Mountain-building mechanisms such as folding and faulting cause vulcanism, but vulcanism, once set in motion, can be a potent mountain-building mechanism in its own right. Massive intrusions may lift and warp the surface layers, and extrusive magma, finding its way to the surface through faults, can build huge piles of volcanic rock. Also, intrusions may be exposed by the wearing away of the softer overlying strata by erosion, and the hard igneous mass will stand up as highlands. The Adirondacks and mountains of New England, for instance, are of this type.

Please understand that I am speaking of the United States in this instance for this is where the scribe can have association and this is where the subject in point has and is occurring. The information is valid for all Earth locations geographically.

Other examples are the smooth lava flows in Alaska's Valley of the Ten Thousand Smokes which poured out of a volcanic vent just a few of your decades past and still have the appearance of motion as observed. Today the area, Katmai National Monument, as you have named it, has only about 100 smokes active. It is, however, an area only in the "sleeping".

Another great example of a landscape filled with volcanic plugs, the Kapsiki Mountains in Cameroon, is far different in visualization. Where each great "protrusion" (plug of rock lava) was once a live volcano, its vent filled with molten lava. As the volcano expired and eventually eroded away, only the solidified igneous rock, relatively harder and more resistant, has survived for your modern-day viewing.

INTRUSIVE VULCANISM

BATHOLITHS AND STOCKS:

The largest of the intrusive masses is the *batholith*, found to underlie every major mountain system and frequently exposed at the surface as the roots or cores of ancient mountains that have eroded away. But the batholith is not merely the upper margin of the monolithic Sima volcanics. It is a lobe that has forced its way well beyond that into the sedimentary (or altered rock) layers that form the continental epidermis, because of lessened pressure as a result of diastrophism. As for size, a *stock* is simply indication of "size". There is not "reason" of two terms other than somebody felt it helpful to describe the "bulging" or "hat" under the surface as a *batholith* if over 40 square miles in area and a *stock* if smaller. Both will be found in the same "bulge".

The batholith and stock are coarse-grained igneous or plutonic rock that has obviously cooled slowly deep underground. At their point of contact with the stratum above is a metamorphosed aureole or baked zone where the combination of heat, pressure, magmatic fluids and gases have commonly given rise to concentration of useful minerals. For practical Earth purposes you may as well regard these as essentially "bottomless" structures, and intrusive rock has not been "seen" to actually crystallize as extrusive lavas have. You are, as usual, dealing again with conjecture on your placement and it serves well enough in concept.

LACCOLITHS:

On a much smaller scale than the batholith are several other kinds of magmatic intrusions. One of these, the *laccolith*, has some of the character of a small batholith or stock except that it is fed from below by a tube cutting across the overlying strata like the conduit of a volcano. However, where the volcanic bore gets into the surface rocks, magma rising up the laccolith feedpipe loses some of its impetus and spreads out between two flat-lying rock layers, eventually forming a lens-shaped mass that lifts and bows the surface into a dome and this is indeed most important to the subject in point.

SILLS:

Similar to the laccolith but much more common is the *sill*. In this case the invading magma spreads out as a flat sheet, often for many miles, but does not throw up the overlying layers. Sills come to your attention when erosion exposes an edge as a sheer wall, often darker and harder than the surrounding rock. The down-cutting Hudson River, as example, has revealed a sill in the Palisades that is particularly striking because of the columnar jointing of the cooling magma. Another major feature standing out in a moderately subdued landscape is the Great Whin sill of Northumberland, England. The black escarpment describes a 100-mile crescent from the Pennines to the sea, and since its steep side faces northward, it was seized on by the Romans as the foundation for Hadrian's wall. Again, within the U.S., you will have a good example in the Black Canyon of the Gunnison.

DIKES:

If the invasion of the surface layers is in the form of a thin sheet cutting sharply across all horizontal strata but falling short of intersecting the surface, then you have a *dike*. Visualize a sill turned on edge, except in the case of a dike it draws magma from its entire lower edge rather than from a bore or conduit. Dikes often occur in swarms, most frequently radiating from a volcanic vent. If the resulting igneous rock is harder than that which surrounds it, erosion may lay bare the solidified magma in the volcano conduit as a *neck* or *plug* and the radiating dikes as long narrow ridges. Ship Rock, New Mexico, is an outstanding example. One can see the radiating dikes exposed at the surface and Ship Rock itself is a volcanic *plug*.

PEGMATITES:

Note that although the originally molten rocks involved in intrusives are properly classified as plutonics and should therefore display a coarse granularity, only the batholith or thick sill is highly typical. Generally, the smaller intrusives isolate the magmatic melt into such thin or limited quantities that cooling is quite rapid and crystal formation is impaired. However, it is possible that a long intrusive finger may keep its contact with the molten mass below and selected gases and fluids will find their way into this backwater (*pegmatite*).

Occasionally, crystals will grow to huge size under these unusual conditions. In South Africa mica crystals have been encountered measuring 10 to 15 feet in width.

EXTRUSIVE VULCANISM

VOLCANOS:

Volcanos are, of course, of particular interest not only because of their unpredictable explosive habits but because of their impressive structure. They tend to follow fault lines, and thus the world's great seismic zones. Faulting, Earthquakes, and volcanos go together, and faulting is the basic cause for the other two. The Pacific's unstable margin is often popularly referred to as the "*Pacific Ring of Fire*" because of its extensive volcanic activity. Everywhere, cones of all sizes, both active and dormant, are evidence of continuing vulcanism.

It is foolish indeed to ever refer to any volcano as "dead". Dormant is your word most suitable for use and should be used if there has been no eruptive activity in historical time. Even historic time is not sufficient. For instance in 79 A.D., your labelled "Vesuvius", was not even a very imposing landform which was half hidden inside the broken remnant of the older Monte Somma and had never erupted in the memory of human inhabitation. There were not even any fanciful legends of vulcanism, so long ago had been its most recent activity. Yet in that fateful year Pompeii was buried in a great blast of fiery ash and Herculaneum was overrun by repeated flows of hot mud. Then for sixteen centuries there were only ten additional major eruptions. But in 1631, after 130 years of quiescence, Vesuvius began its modern, more frequent eruptive cycle marked by increased lava flows that had been of little consequence earlier. So today Vesuvius is by any measurement active, its personality changed considerably from its former self; and if Somma is any evidence, there have been many times in the distant past when Vesuvius and its precursors have surprised the sleepy folks along the Bay of Naples.

The United States' own Cascade Mountains, pimpled with 600 miles of snow-capped cones, must be regarded as merely dormant. Lassen Peak, the least spectacular of the lot, was active in 1914-15, but there has been a tendency to think of the others as "scenery". All are very new, geologically speaking, scarcely mutilated by erosion, and this, of course, is why they make such outstanding scenery. But by the same token, dear friends, they are more likely to be alive than dead after such a short time span. Evidences pointing to just such a likelihood are very modern cinder cones all around the base of Mt. Shasta, another in Crater Lake, and recently discovered by your own geologists, hot spots high on the slope of Mt. Rainier and Mt. Baker, and Mt. Lassen itself.

VARIATIONS IN ERUPTION

No two volcanos are alike in their eruptive habits and as you have seen from the Vesuvian example, an individual volcano is often capricious. Some are spewers of ash, like Irazu in Costa Rica, which erupted continuously for almost two years (1966-1968), subjecting the residents of the capital city, San Jose, to a seemingly endless rain of thick dust. Others eject lava but with variation: Vesuvius goes off violently with loud explosions and gushes of lava streaming down its flanks; Kilauea, the Hawaiian crater, quietly spills lava over its lip with a minimum of fireworks; Strombolian lava, cooling and crusting over lightly in the crater, traps gases beneath it, which explode every half-hour throwing incandescent clots high into the air.

Then there are the spasmodic eruptors whose conduit becomes clogged with hardened igneous rock between eruptions. With a cork in the bottle, so to speak, it is not uncommon for the increasing pressures to blow out suddenly through a weak spot on the side of the mountain. This is what happened to Mt. Pele on Martinique in 1902. Internal pressure started the cork, pushing it out of the vent in the form of a high spire, but before it could wholly clear the passage the side blew out. A dense cloud of intensely hot gases and self-exploding lava mist swept down the slope to the sea, completely wiping out the town of St. Pierre in an instant.

CALDERAS

There is yet another kind of happening that involves the reverse of eruption, that is, a sudden emptying of the magma chamber. When this occurs, the entire top of the mountain, lacking support, collapses and is engulfed into itself. The end result is a huge crater-like pit called a *caldera*. Crater Lake, Oregon, is one of these. It is not a true crater because glacial evidences on the contemporary slopes indicate that a peak of over 12,000 feet must have existed to support full-blown glaciers. This reconstructed volcano, dating back probably some 8000 years, has been named posthumously Mt. Mazama. But volcanos can blow their tops—how do you know that it collapsed rather than blew up? You can know because the entire surrounding countryside would have to have been covered with debris from the old peak and there simply is none. So now you are faced with the question, what causes the abrupt evacuation of a magma chamber? And you have no certain finite answer.

Of more recent origin than Crater Lake is the caldera of Krakatoa, an island just off western Java. On August 27, 1883 there were four tremendous explosions, the last of which was heard 3000 miles away in Australia. A towering dust cloud was thrown up, noticeable around the world for two years, and a great tidal wave drowned 36,000 people. Subsequent investigation revealed that a deep pit had replaced two-thirds of the island but that despite the dust and ash ejected, the bulk of the island had collapsed and the sea had rushed into the resultant caldera. The area is still indeed active. A new volcanic island is building called by you, Anak Krakatoa (child of Krakatoa). But even the original Krakatoa was merely a remnant of an earlier, much larger island. Like Vesuvius, standing in the breached caldera of Somma, generations of crustal ulcers appear on occasion to be healing but the infection distressingly reasserts itself again and again when least expected.

LOSS OF LIFE

On recounting the loss of human life from volcanic disaster through the centuries, one might be inclined to wonder why anyone would choose to live with volcanos as neighbors. But if a given cone can be classified conveniently as "extinct, local residents come to love it, are inspired by its majesty, or even regard it as divine—that "the mountain" could be venomous and turn on its friends is unthinkable, until, of course, it does so. Agricultural people are drawn to the frequently fertile lava soils, willing to take an unknown risk to derive a known livelihood. And if the giant should cough up rejuvenating showers of ash periodically, so much the better. Anyway, absolute security is not a guarantee of living anywhere. Why would anyone choose to live in Earthquake country, tornado alley, or along hurricane coasts? The law calls these "acts of God", and God seems, in the short run, less lethal than midtown or freeway traffic, which threatens you all on a daily basis.

CLASSIFICATION BY CONE SHAPE

The simplest classification of volcanos is on the basis of the shape of the cone. Most of them fall generally into one of three types that are easily recognizable, and the cone shape also gives some indication of the type of ejecta and the eruptive habits of the volcano.

First, there is the *cinder cone*. This is the product of a violently explosive volcano where the lava has solidified in the vent, forming a plug. The accumulation of steam and magmatic gases gradually develops sufficient pressure to blow the plug with such force as to shatter it into tiny fragments (called *cinders* and *ash*), and these are deposited in a symmetrical pile around the vent, the larger particles nearest the vent and the finer ones farther away. The resulting cinder cone is steep sided (around 37 degrees, the maximum angle of repose of unconsolidated material) and usually symmetrical (Mt. Asmara in Ethiopia). Although evident in many parts of the world, the cinder cone seldom achieves any great size, as erosion rapidly wears away what is essentially merely a pile of loose material. The disappearing islands of the Pacific are often mere cinder cones, where an eruption may throw up a pile of solid ejecta above the ocean level to be visible for a few days or months until wave action removes it.

The second type of volcanic cone is called a *shield* or *dome*. Here a quiet flow of fairly fluid lava issues from the vent, forming a vast low-angle cone as it cools. Mauna Loa-Mauna Kea whose 13,000-foot tips form the island of Hawaii is an excellent example of this type of cone, and if the low angle of the island's slope is traced to the sea bottom some five miles deep, the true size of this twin cone becomes apparent.

As often as not, however, a volcano passes through several stages in its history, alternating between explosive eruptions and lava flows. The resulting cone develops a combination of the low-angle shield and the high-angle cinder cone. These are *composite* or *strata* cones and display concave slopes with a sharp peak. Imagine first a cinder cone, but before it can erode away, it is overlain by lava flows. Then built on top of this another cinder cone, followed again by lava. The end product looks like Fujiyama, Shasta, Rainier, or Egmont, the world-famous volcanos that inspire poets and legends. The most tell-tale concave slope development, however, is shown by Mt. Shishaldin in the Aleutians which is smoking and active today. Its classic shape is totally unscarred by any type of erosion as it continues to build. Currently, Shishaldin towers well over 9000 feet above sea level and almost 40,000 feet above the ocean floor and growing.

The four formerly mentioned volcanos are considered dormant, but El Misti in Peru is equally as impressive and still active, as is Mayon in the Philippines. Mayon, despite its generally low elevation and lack of picturesque snowcap, is reputed to be the most perfectly shaped of the world's composite volcanos. *I URGE YOU TO NOT BE FOOLISH IN YOUR ATTITUDE THAT THESE "DORMANT" GIANTS ARE CONTINUING IN DORMANCY. THE ENTIRE OF THE CASCADE CHAIN IS AWAKENING.*

Now, let us turn to a most important link-up with information regarding the current quake in point:

FISSURE FLOWS

Lava, in pouring out onto the Earth's surface, does not always issue from volcanic vents; it may well out of faults or fissures many miles in length. If the lava is highly liquid and the terrain fairly subdued, such *fissure*

flows have been known to cover thousands of square miles and build up extensive plateaus as in Eastern Washington, Eastern Oregon, Southern Idaho, and Northern California, U.S.A. The bulk of peninsular India is also of this origin. In Washington the Columbia River Gorge and the Grand Coulee reveal along their sides a banded layering of differing colors and textures, each of which represents a separate flow. On occasion, the hot lava will be heavily charged with gases, and as the lava cools, the escaping gases leave holes in the rock, making it extremely porous. Water will occasionally flow through the permeable (*scoriaceous*) rock as though it were a pipe. It is also possible that in a moderately viscous flow, with the surface cooling and congealing through contact with the atmosphere, the hot, still liquid lava underneath will run on and out leaving an igneous cave.

SO WHAT, SOLTEC?

If you reason carefully regarding the quake in point, you can determine the situation and watch for further example or increased activity—in any and all directions. This can allow you to begin to determine likelihood of damage and <u>extent of passage of radioactive material</u> from the Nevada testing site. Because of underlying strata, the flow will be toward the Pacific Sea and will, obviously, affect the immediate areas around the site of the "caldera" container and the direct fissure network radiating to the sea.

It would be expected then, that material flowing from the nuclear testing center in Yucca Flats outside of and north of Las Vegas would flow along fissure lines into Death Valley and thus and so, however, this is a false premise. A brief and general outlay of descriptive flow from Yucca Flats test grounds would be between the Spring Mountains to the west and the Spotted Range and Sheep Range to the east, moving through and into "Devil's Hole" which I believe is one of your National Monuments north of the town of Pahrump, Nevada, on the south edge of the Amargosa Desert east of the Amargosa Mountain Range and scattering in all directions. The most open and active fissure, however, runs on through (under) Sarcobatus Flat, between the Inyo and Toiyabe National Forests and pools in the major underground-to-surface cauldrons beneath Mono Lake. Mono Lake is not formed for no reason, dear friends, and it is quite a toxic lake in its already pristine state. *Lee Vining is at Mono Lake!*

Does this mean the only danger from radioactive material problems would be along that route, then scattering out from the Mono Lake Bulge (which by the way, is under water for the most part)? No, it means that it (the danger) is where the weakest surface portion of the landscape lies. The fissures running into Southern California are much more extensive but are deeper and less likely to show surface bulging. The flow, however, is much easier with much less interference from strata mass. *THE MAJOR FISSURES ALL END UP AT THE SAN ANDREAS FAULT!*

When you hear of the prophecies expecting death from open fissures exuding death-causing vapors—it will be from toxic substances, yes, but deadly because of radiation from foolish manmade experiments of nuclear materials.

How much will surface, if it surfaces? I cannot answer for it depends upon pressure buildup, pressure slippage vs. man-caused slippage and extent of flow. You can expect deadly gasses to spring from what you call Lake Elsinore and on down to the Salton Sea. These gasses may or may not be, radioactive. Watch the type of tremors for you can know if a quake is felt over a large area, it is a bit deeper than a little

surface jolt. It means a lot of deep churning and activity in radiating fissures.

Since you do not yet show surface fissures to any great extent and very little surfacing material at this point, you can surmise it is still in the "*intrusive*" stage and moved into the "*sill*" stage from and forming additional "*laccoliths*". *The area at Mono Lake represents a batholithic/stock in a location not noticed easily through visualization*. The lake is not "just getting lower from depletion of water" but is also more shallow from the "rising" of the lake floor.

I am not here, Dharma, to argue points of physical geology or geography. We have great difficulty with your new names for everything—the entire area described was once at the bottom of the sea and my vision and instrumentations recognize no difference except for isolating the identification of markers for you ones.

The quake in point is of little notice except for the massive information it should be telling you. More important substance is coming forth along the New Madrid Fault but the toxic quality of the California tremor bears more destructive potential from that aspect.

The widespread activity is indeed important but I have not the facility nor you the understanding, to outlay it all. I just ask that you be at alert. If you can understand the functioning of your "Mother's" circulatory system, you can better know where safety can be found in order to continue service in this time of transition and upheaval. You, in contact and counsel with the Higher Energies, will be given to know if you but listen. You who just desire to save your assets (of all types) will likely not hear and discount much of this information—so be it for it is most certainly up to your own acceptance.

Thank you, Dharma, for scribing this information. I realize you have neither the time nor the interest in these matters but your service is greatly appreciated for I have no receiver regarding these matters in this location. Much, much focus is given to this area geographically, and I am greatly appreciative of your willingness to entertain my input. I ask the blessings of understanding in behalf of you ones awakening from the confusion of the sleep and I am most grateful to be of whatever service I might project.

I take leave in salute unto you of our "land-locked" fellow-man. Saalomé and Salu!

Soltec to clear.

Hatonn returned to sign-off for this session as it has grown quite lengthy—being that Soltec has not been subjected to having to reduce a chapter to a page nor a page to a paragraph as has been jested upon Hatonn. When we come back I will continue with items of "TODAY'S WATCH" and shake you up a bit with Quantum Cosmic Code. I shall at first reduce the paragraph to a sentence but as you might guess the subject is technical indeed and may require a bit more in-depth projection of wordiness as we move into the subject of genetic doubles abounding upon your place these days of political and technical chaos. So be it. Let us close this segment and take rest. Salu.

5/29/93 SOLTEC

Toniose Soltec present. I come with the Host of God, and in the Light and Love of God of Creation, during this time of Transition Earth-Shan. We take this time and space to bring, unto you ones of Earth,

information regarding that which is taking place within and upon your planet regarding what has come to be known as Earth Changes. These changes come in many forms, yet all is interconnected and interrelated; therefore, nothing which takes place within the confines of your world can be omitted when dealing with this subject matter.

It is difficult to put into words, given your limited expression of language, the full impact of that which is taking place with your world and there are so very many aspects to tie in together that, without writing entire volumes of text, you have received but a mere smattering of the facts thus far. Keep in mind, also, that our main focus is to inform you ones, on a timely basis, of those events which affect your world on a day-to-day basis, and of those things which have been presented in misinformation, be it by purpose or by ignorance, and to bring basic education about your world to those who lack same. Either way, we must at all times remember first the purpose of this Mission, and that is to get a remnant through all the upheaval of politics, economics and geologic changes that are upon you ones of Earth-Shan.

The best defense that you ones have at this time is to be informed and armed with the TRUTH, which has become a very precious commodity in your world. Yet, this TRUTH is the only chance you ones have for survival. For without it, you too would be following all the other lost lambs unto the slaughter which the Adversary has planned for your world.

You are in the final counting of time as you perceive such and the Adversary understands this fact quite fully. It is because of this that the battle has grown so fierce of late and you ones are experiencing attacks from all sides. For you see, if the Adversary can cause you ones to become fragmented in your purpose and cause you to become side-tracked, then you can be defeated. Yet, if you stand united, stay on course, keep yourselves right with God and one in your purpose, armed with the TRUTH, nothing can defeat you. For as soon as you take your sights off God, the Adversary will slip in so quickly that you will not even be aware. This is no small enemy that you ones are dealing with and not one to be taken lightly and, for Heaven's sake, it is not one to be taken on without the Shield of God about you!

Ones become tired of our badgering to continually clear space, yet it is of absolute necessity during these times. You ones are here for lessons and you shall have many opportunities for learning, for it is the reason that you CHOSE to participate in this mission. This current mission is the greatest opportunity you ones shall have in your present dimensional expression to learn.

Yes, the lessons may seem difficult and many times you may perceive that you have failed, but believe me when I tell you that each one of you are making giant strides in your own development and it is only through such adversity as has been experienced that you ones experience the most growth. So, when you reach a point of wanting to give up and not participate any further, keep in mind that you are never given more than you are able to handle. And, the more you are given, the more you have grown. So look upon each obstacle with joy and understanding of what it represents.

We understand that you grow weary, but you are never alone so long as you request our presence about you and, should you stumble along the way, pick yourself up, dust yourself off and go on, and learn from the stumbling for in the learning you will have grown stronger.

In our writing of last week, we discussed volcanic activity upon your world and, during this writing, I shall

continue this discussion. Commander Hatonn has requested that my dissertation on volcanism, which was scribed by Dharma previously, be rerun in this edition of the *CONTACT*, as it is a very good primer for the information I have been giving forth of late. I would, therefore, urge each of you to read that article prior to delving into this article, for it lays a good foundation. [*That earlier lecture by "Professor" Soltec on volcanism and Mother Earth's circulatory system is the writing immediately preceding this 5/29/93 one.*]

PHYSICS ON A PLANETARY SCALE

Your Earth is constructed of several different layers, or strata. They are: the continental crust, oceanic crust, uppermost mantle, asthenosphere, mantle, outer core and the inner core. The crust and uppermost part of the mantle are relatively rigid. Collectively, they make up the **lithosphere**. The upper mantle underlying the lithosphere behaves plastically (a semi-fluid state), and is known as the **asthenosphere**. Convection takes place within the asthenosphere, as well as within the lower mantle. The lithosphere is moving, as a result of the underlying mantle convection, and the internal processes of the crust are significant to understanding geology.

The tectonic forces are those generated from within the Earth and cause deformation of rock, as well as vertical and horizontal movement of portions of your planet's crust. Mountain ranges are created by tectonic forces stronger than the gravitational forces. Mountain ranges are built over long periods of time as portions of the planet's crust are compressed and raised. Most of these tectonic forces are mechanical in nature and some of the energy is put to work deforming rock, bending and breaking it and raising these mountain ranges. This mechanical energy may be stored or converted to heat energy. An Earthquake is a sudden release of this stored mechanical energy, while melting rock, resulting in volcanic eruptions, is another type of release of this same stored energy. By your scientific definition, the machinery of the Earth works by what is called "Plate Tectonics".

Volcanic activity is directly related to Plate Tectonics and most active volcanoes are located near plate junctions, where magma is produced as spreading or sinking lithospheric plates interact with other Earth materials. Approximately 80 percent of all active volcanoes are located in the Pacific Ring of Fire, which circumscribes the Pacific Ocean. This area essentially corresponds to the Pacific Plate. In the United Sates, several volcanoes in Hawaii, Alaska and the Cascade Mountain Range are considered, by your scientists, as active.

The Hawaiian volcanoes are of interest due to their location, well within the Pacific Plate, rather than near a plate boundary. Below the Pacific Plate, where magma is generated, are what are known as "hot spots". Magma pushes upward through the fissures and fractures in the plate and vents to the surface, producing a volcano on the bottom of the sea floor, that eventually may become an island.

At the Hawaiian Islands, the Pacific Plate is moving in a northwest direction and passing over one of these so-called "hot spots", and so a chain of volcanoes has formed. The island of Hawaii is, at this point, near one of these "hot spots" and is presently experiencing active volcanism and land mass formation from the active volcanoes. Other islands to the northwest are off this "hot spot" and volcanoes on these islands are no longer active. In time, the larger island of Hawaii will also pass from over this "hot spot" and its volcanic

activity will also move into a quiet or inactive stage.

Magma, which becomes lava if it reaches the surface, forms locally within the outer 100 kilometers (approximately 62 miles) of the Earth's surface. Pockets of magma form from the melting of rock within the crust or uppermost part of the mantle.

LONG VALLEY CALDERA

We have been discussing the area in California known to you ones as the Long Valley Caldera, a volcano that erupted some 700,000 years ago, and one that is exhibiting signs of renewed activity in recent years. Let me first give explanation of a caldera for you who may be unaware of this term. A caldera, or crater, is a large volcanic depression formed by the explosive disruption of a volcanic cone or by the collapse of a volcanic crater floor. The explosive eruptions are rather rare, but usually extremely violent.

A large caldera-forming eruption may explosively extrude 1000 cubic kilometers of pyroclastic ["*pyro*" = *hot*, "*clastic*" = *broken; meaning small rock chunks and other rocky fragments formed during the cooling down into solid material after being hurled as hot "liquid" from the volcano*] debris, mostly ash. This would be about 1000 times that which was ejected by the eruption of Mount St. Helens in 1980. The most recent caldera forming eruptions on the North American Continent occurred between 600,000 and 700,000 years ago in Yellowstone National Park in Wyoming and in the Owens Valley in California (known as the Long Valley Caldera).

The main explosive eruptions are over very quickly—within a few days or a few weeks, but intermittent and lesser magnitude volcanic activity can linger on for millions of years. In Yellowstone, the original event left the result of hot springs and geysers. The Owens Valley event (Long Valley Caldera) is still producing volcanic and seismic potential hazards. Both the Yellowstone and Long Valley sites are still capable of producing future volcanic activity because magma is still present at variable depths beneath the caldera floors. Both are what your scientists refer to as *resurgent calderas*, because the floors of the calderas have slowly domed upward since the explosive eruptions that originally formed them.

The concern, however, with the Long Valley Caldera, as I have written on before, is that the rate of uplift has been accelerating and there have been swarms of Earthquakes in the area with magnitudes of 5 to 6, which became harmonic, and this is symptomatic of magma moving closer to the surface. It was considered, by your own scientists, enough of a potential hazard that a notice of potential volcanic hazard was issued in 1982. At present, the notice has been lifted, but the future situation there is still deemed "*uncertain*" by your scientists so they are continually keeping a watchful eye on this place. With the recent renewed Earthquake activity in this area, you can rest assured that they are once again taking a very close look at this area.

When a volcano, such as the Long Valley Caldera, erupts, it is the explosive type of eruption which spreads ash for literally hundreds of miles in all directions, and produces an ash cloud that can spread for thousands of miles. In a normal eruption, in addition to the ash itself, various gases are also released. These gases include: water vapor, carbon dioxide, carbon monoxide, sulfur dioxide and hydrogen sulfide. Even some thought-to-be-dormant volcanoes emit gases for very long periods following eruptions.

DEADLY RADIOACTIVE GASES

Although these natural escaped gases produce some hazard, the greater hazard in the Long Valley Caldera scenario is that of *radioactive gases*, which would be released if this old giant should come to life.

These radioactive gases present are due to all the fissures and fractures that extend over into the State of Nevada (where shaking has been felt as far away as Las Vegas in the recent series of Earthquakes associated with this situation). All areas of land mass have a certain amount of natural fissures and fractures created by the continual moving, grinding, folding and separating actions of the Tectonic Plates.

Nevada, however, has experienced a tremendous amount of tampering by man—because of all the underground nuclear testing that has taken place there over the years. So, here in this place you have natural fractures and fissures, but these have been enlarged by man's interference, and new fractures and fissures have been created by the same man-caused interference. *There are also underground storage areas of hazardous waste of the most insidious kinds—genetically altered life forms, radioactive waste and the like. Yet, your new President has given the go-ahead to continue, for a limited time, the ridiculous practice of underground testing.*

These underground storage facilities are of grave concern at this point due to all the seismic and potential volcanic activity from that Long Valley Caldera area. If that volcano goes, there will be even more new fissures and fractures and you can bet that all those nice little surprises stored below ground will end up in the atmosphere and spread world-wide. That is in addition to the mass destruction that would take place from the resultant volcanic ash that would be naturally produced by this sleeping giant.

Let me take a few lines to summarize the different types of volcanoes you will find on your planet. **Shield Volcanoes**, by far are the largest volcanoes and are characterized by relatively non-explosive activity, resulting from the low silica content of the magma. They are broad, gently sloping cone-shaped and are built up almost entirely from solidified lava flows. During eruptions, the lava spreads widely and thinly due to its low viscosity. Because the lava flows from a central vent, without much lava build-up around the vent, the slopes are usually in the shape of a flattened dome or shield.

The Hawaiian Islands are essentially a series of shield volcanoes, built upward from the ocean floor by intermittent eruptions over millions of years. They are spectacular to observe and the eruptions are relatively non-violent because the lava is generally fluid (less viscous). The Hawaiian Islands, then, are composed of a series of layers of basalt (low in silica and relatively high in iron, magnesium and calcium oxides).

Cinder Cones are volcanoes constructed of loose rock fragments which have been ejected from a central vent. In contrast to the gentle sloping sides of shield volcanoes, cinder cones commonly have steep-sided slopes (approximately 30 degrees). Most of the ejected material lands near the vent during an eruption and builds up the cone to a peak. The steepness of slopes of accumulating loose material is limited by gravity to approximately 33 degrees. Cinder cones tend to be much smaller than shield volcanoes. Most cinder cones are in the area of 1500 feet in height.

The fragments of volcanic rock ejected from cinder cones range in size from 1.5 to 13 inches. Dust and ash are the finest particles emitted. When solid rock has been blasted apart by volcanic explosion, the fragments are angular and have no rounded edges or corners. If lava is ejected into the air, a molten blob

becomes streamlined during flight, solidifies and falls to the ground in a spindle or lens shape. Local concentrations of gas in magma cause eruptions that build cinder cones. They are not necessarily related to the silica content of the extrusive rock lava. Some cinder cones are found in Hawaii, on the flanks of much larger shield volcanoes. The life span of an active cinder cone tends to be short as the local concentration of gas is depleted rather quickly during the period of eruption.

Composite Volcanoes are constructed of alternating layers of pyroclastics and rock solidified from lava flows. They are known for their cone shapes and are associated with a magma of intermediate silica content, which is more viscous than the low-silica magma of shield volcanoes.

Volcanic activity characteristic with this type of volcano is a mixture of explosive activity and lava flow. Composite volcanoes are built up over long time spans. Eruption is intermittent, with hundreds or even thousands of years between eruptions.

During the quiet intervals, composite volcanoes may be eroded by running water, landslides or glaciers. These processes tend to alter the surface, shape and form of the cone, but due to their long lives and relative resistance to erosion, composite cones can become extremely large. Also, because of the sometimes long periods of quiet between eruptions, populations tend to ignore their potential hazards. They are normally quite beautiful and majestic-looking mountains, and this can tend to deceive people.

Mount St. Helens and Mount Rainier are examples of Composite Volcanoes. Nearly all the larger and better known volcanoes of the world are composite volcanoes and tend to align along (1) the Pacific Ring of Fire, which includes the Cascade Mountain Range, and (2) the Mediterranean Belt, which is home to the legendary Mt. Vesuvius. Several composite volcanoes are in Mexico, among which is El Chichon, which erupted in 1982. The towns near this volcano were buried by the heavy ash and ash flows, leaving thousands dead in the small towns and villages.

Volcanic domes are steep-sided, dome or spine-shaped masses of volcanic rock formed from viscous lava that solidifies in or immediately above a volcanic vent. A volcanic dome grew within the caldera of Mount St. Helens after the climactic eruption in 1980. Mt. Lassen in Northeastern California is a good example of a volcanic dome. One previous eruption of this volcano blew out horizontally and destroyed a very large area. A group of volcanic domes, known as the Chaos Crags, are located just north of Lassen Peak. These domes have a recent history of explosive activity and large rockfall debris avalanches.

The alignment of composite volcanoes along the circum-Pacific Belt is due to subduction at converging plate boundaries. For example, the source of magma for Mount St. Helens and Mount Rainier is the Juan de Fuca Plate, whose spreading center is in the Pacific just a little west of the Washington and Oregon coastline. This plate moves eastward and is subducting beneath the North American Plate, which is moving westward.

As this Juan de Fuca Plate descends, it is the upper portion of the Plate which, of course, tilts forward as it is going downward, and thus that "leading" surface of the Plate comes into contact with increasingly hotter material. Once it has slid beneath the continental lithosphere, it continues under the asthenosphere. At that point, temperatures are high enough to cause partial melting of the upper portion of the descending plate. The magma, being less dense than the surrounding rocks, then rises toward the surface, eventually

erupting and building these composite volcanic domes of the Cascade Mountain Range.

Let us draw this writing to a close, as we have given quite a lesson on volcanoes and volcanic events. Thank you for your attention, and we shall continue this lesson in basic geology.

As always, you are held in the Light of God and with our blessings.

Toniose to standby. Salu.